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' Li had the oopovt t} to meet wlth counsel in “hambers br1nFlv,

at which time. ev:rwone 1nd1cated they're refreshed, :enewed-andu

ready to-move_forward,f

.to the Court s rullng on the defendants' Rule 29 motlon for

I oam goepg to reser e lullng on ‘all of the Ciean Water Aet

o counts;' And’ apv counts that I've qranted judgment of acqulttal

£o the lawvers in chambers, I'm not so naive -

the Ruie 99 motlon -and aWIOw the case"to go forward to the'jury

Cwith proger~instructionsf

‘really. - But I'think'just for thes sake of the record and so-

T ——
- S " Page 3850
-(rcb"uar3'9;”2005hh%:;3 a.m.) '

THE COURT: Godd‘msrning- -1 hope e"etxaﬂe is we¢1

- "‘--:.Cw .

Lzt me, i:st_ef all, put on the.record_someth;ﬁg that

15 in ¥ gdras~

judgment of acqulttal I am rever51ng myself to tkls extent

on heretofore I have reversed myself in that regard and T w111

i
reeer ve rullng

I do so because, as Mr;'Korzenik pointed dut, that would

not be appealable. And I am not so naive -- 1've pointed out

.
o
[T
rt

I would'
believe'thatel.am infallible_' I.could be in efror; And if 1T
am in.erfor gI_sho 1d be corrected And the cnly way tQ 

f

preserve that would be to take the matter -- reserve ruling on

211 right.- ATy gquestions? Mr. Wittmano®

MR, WITTMAN: No, Your Honor. It's not a question:

that I pr eserve our ?19%?5 I think that with respect to the
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1 Court's ruling on Thursday on Counts 30, 31, 32,33, 33.2nd 35, | 1 was tnareupon calles as an adverse witness for ang on behalf of
2 I do believe that Your Honar's ruling does constitute a _ < the defenaant and, having been duly sworr, testified ag
3 - dismissal of those counts on the record. And I would suggest K] _ fa!lo:tj::f: N L _ o '
<+ that our clients cannot coﬁ_tinue to be-tried-under those counts 3 DIRZIT ZXAMINATION
S without bemg hvicé placed in jeopardy. And for that reasot, 5 BY MR, l.-‘;... r-lAN_: o
& Your Honor, we would object to the Court's ruling. But that's” '8 Q. Mr. Paimer, I'm gonna ask YOu to lean forvard and get -
7 tﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬁ'{hﬂg I have to say ahout it. 7 claser to that microphone sp BVeryene tan hear you. And el
8 THE'TOURT: I considered the possibility of that € us, pleas2, your full name.
§ objection. I presume that the rest of the defendants joinin 2 A James I Palmer, Ji.
IE']' ' that objection as well. . 10 G, And where do you lhve, 5i?
11 MR, TIMOTHY HOLLEMAN: Yes, sir, Ybur Honor, 1} A, My residence address is 4772 Chatuge, which is spelled
12 MR. HOLDER: Yes, Your Honor, : - 112 C-H-A-T-U-G-Z, Lanz in Douglasville, 'Georgia. The zip is
13 THE COURT: But I note that there has been no 113 30135 _ '
14 evidence presented by the defendants vet and that nothing has - | 1a O And ohok i -,'-:::r Tl WLy s entT
13 ‘occurred sinee the maotion was rulad on And Ithinw [ ag 15 A lam the regional administrator for Region 4 of the Unjted.
16 * pointed out in chambers that it's not that I have - it's not 18  States Environmental Protection-Agency. The 'regional office is
17 that1 have been inspired 'over'the weekend by the government's | 17 in Atlanta, Georgia, ' _
18 theory of the case. Instead, it's mare atong the lines of 18 Q. Are you here in ycu'r official ca paC|ty, Mr. Palmer?
19 preserving the matter for feview. And 1 think that the 19 Al No, sir. 1am here under subpoena. | am on anaual jeave
20 government is entitled to that opportunity in the event that 1 20 today because the events: surrounding my involvement in this
21 aminerror, ' : : C ' 21 matter all preceded my appaintrment as EPA regional
22 . Aliright. Anything else on behalf of the defendants? 22 administrator.” And bezause of that, my testimony today may not
23 MR, WITTMAN: No, Your Honor. ' 23 be construed in any way as any official statement or position
24 THE COURT: Anything else on behalf of the 24 of U.S. €PA. .1 am strictly here in. my personal capacity.,
25 . government? ’ 25 Q. andas YOU sy, you were subpoenaed by the defendants to
Page 3892 , Page 3894
1 MR. KORZENIK: No, Your.Honar. _ 1 be here this morning; correct?
2 - THE COURT: All right. Then I presume we're ready to 2 A [ was. ' :
3 proceed? Please ask the Jjury to join us, ' 3 Q. How iong have You served as regional administrator of the
4 {Jury in at 9:28 a.m.} 4 Environmentai Protection Agency Region 47 _ '
S THE COURT: Good merming, ladies and gentiemen. I 5 A My appoiniment was announced on the " 1Bth of October, as U
S met briefly with thé_attorneys tn chambers this marning, and 1 & recal, in 2001, 1 was sworn in the first business da\'/ of
7 think the consensus of 'the group was they were refreshed and 7 Januaryin 2002. . S
8 -renewed and ready to move forward. I presume that the jury is 8 Q. And Region 4 of the Environmentat Protection Agency is
9 likewise refreshed ang renewed. Long time no see. It's good 8  responsibie for what region of the country?~ —m—
10_ to have you back. _ ' _ : 10 A 1t's the southeastern region. There are eight states --
1] We made some changes in the Jury reom to try to make it a 11 there areten EPA fegions, Region 4 covers eight states --
12 little more homier, 1 guess would be the word for it. Hung 12 Mississippi, Alabama, Tennesseg, Kentucky, Georgia, North
13 some pictures and moved some things around. It's always nice |13 Caroiina, South Cardlina and Forida. o
14 when the Jjudge gets in there with a laser level and- levels up 4 Q. Would you tell the Jury a little bit about your
15 all the pictures and puts them Up. Butwe had a great deal of | 15 educational background starting with your graduation from
16 help from the stafr as well. And I hepe that you enjoyed the - 16  college?
17 surroundings. We're tifl moving in. And we'ra getting better 17 A 1 received my Bacheler.of Science dagres jn civil -
18 . atit every day, _ | 18 engineering from Mississiopi State University in 1970, Aftar
19 The parties have indicated that they are ready to move 12 working for four years, [ then went to the University of
20 forward. So Mr. Wittman, you may call your first witness, ) 20 Mississippi law schoal: Graduated there in Decermber of 1976,
21 MR.-WITTMAN: Thank you, Your Honor. The defenss 21 Q. Okay. After You draduated from the Ote Miss iaw school,
22 calls Mr. James Palmer as its f|r5t_‘.\_'lr{t_r_|e$5‘ i - =] 22 did you practice taw here in 'Missis'sippj?
23 ' THE COURT: -Mr. Palmer, winld You stand and De sworn, | 23 A, Idid. 1 practiced law with a Jackson law firm but lived
24 sin ' B _ : 24 in Newton, Mississippi. for threa years befare then gaing back
25 JAMES PALMER Z5  into state service, where I'nad been before | went to faw
L
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1 school. And I then went to the Att-::rne\; General's office in 1 Q What s it?
2 early February of 1980, : . 2 ltisa ucpy of the ADHJ 28, ?000 |etter that I wrote to
3 Q. How long did you remain in the Attorney General's offica? 3 Dr. 5 :all and to Mr. Lucas an behalf of the firm advising them
4" A. Alittle over four years. [ then moved with the Attorney 4 that we were accepting representatron of these gentlemen angd
S5 General to the governar's staff and served as staff counsel and 5 their corporat:ons This was what the firm and. what alf firms
6 adm:nlstratwe assistant until about the Summer of 1986 when I | Yg- would call an engagement letter.
7 was appcun:‘ed executive director of the governar's office of 7 ME. WIT__rMAN. Your Honor, | offer inta -evidence
8 general services. And then in Septemnber of 1987 was appointed | '8 Dafendants' Exhibit 810, : t
9 executive director of what was then the Mississippi Department 9 THE COURT: Any objection?
10 :_ of Natural Resources now. the Mississippi Department of 10 MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, my question s whether it's
11 Environmental Quality. 11 relevant to his test:mony )
12 Q. What did you. do whl!e you were at the MDEQ7 12 THE COURT: Do you DbjECt te.it then"
i3 A Well, a5 executwe derector of the agency that 1 had i3 . MS. HARRIS: Yes, Ida. I haven L even had a
14 formerly served as legal counsel for, I was responsibie forthe 14 chance -- .
13 aaministratinn and ‘enfercermant "\‘ -5 variety- of ooth federal ahd | i5 THE COURT: Al right. :
16 state enwronmental Iaws One SECtJOFI of the agency 16 MS. HARRIS: — to finish reading it. It's three
17 essentially was the enwronmental unit that had been the air 17 Ppages. '
18 and water poilutlon controt .commission. Another uait in the 13 TH:: COURT: What does it do, Mr. Wittman, other than
19 agency was the former state geologncal survey. Another unit 18 ta boistar the proposition that the firm did accept
20 was the former state parks commission, And anather unit was 20 representation? . .
21 the former board of water commissioners. Afl of which had been | 21 MR. WITTMAN: Your Henor, it reprasents — not oniy
22 fotded inta this agency in about 1978, ' 22 that, but it aiso represents his initiai evaluation of a
23 Q. Andhow long did you remain in the MDEGQ? 23 situation until he was retained his counsel. :
124 A, Itock my state retnrement effective January 1st of 2000. 24 THE COURT: Could he not simply testify to that?
25 1 was there as- executlve dlrector for about 12 and a quarter 25 - MROWITTMAN: I'm sure he could.
_ Page 383G . Page 3894
1 years. _ 1 THE COURT: Objection is sustained. ' ’
2 Q- What did you do when you left your employment withthe | 2 BY MR, whrmMan: :
3 MDEQT’ . 3 Q. When you first undertook to represent Mr. Lucas and -
4 A Lwent back into prnvate law practlce with the firm 4 Dr. Beall, did you observe any coliateral issues relating to
5 Butler, Snow, O Mara Stevens & Canpads in Jackson. 5 tha mannar in which business hag been done in the past and what
¢ . When youjoined the Butler, Snow firm or after you jOInEd 6 needed 1o b2 done in the future insofar s they were' concerned?
7 the Butler, Snow firm, did you spocnaipe in any particuiar 7 A Yes. - -
8 area of the practice of law? _ B Q. And tall the ladies and gentlemen of the ]ury what you -
% A Idid. Because my work in state service had focused 3 _observed in that regard.
10 pnnclpally on the enwronrnentaf field, then when [ went back 10 A Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas came to our firm principalty
11 into private law practlce I essentia[!y hmcted My practice to 11 because of wetlands i Issues that had arisen in the context of
12  environmental hatters. ' : 12 their reai estate cleveloprnenrs in Jackson County. But as: ‘they’
13 Q. And when you were practlcrng Iaw in the Butler, Snow firm, 13 explained the full picture of what was going on at that paint
14 did you have ‘occasion to represent, Robert Lucas? 14 inthe dew[cu'nent it also bacame clear that there Were iSsuss’
15 A 1did: Mr Lucas and Or. Beall -- Robert Beall came to 15 invalving wastewater and water systems infrastructure
16 the firm, and the firm agreed to prowcie representation to 16 principally that was in place to sarvice the parcels that were -
17 these gentlemen and to their two ‘corporations, Big Hill Acres, 17 " being sold. Sp we - wa then tried 0 understand ail of the
18 Incorporated and Ccnsolldated Investments Incorporated. 118 parties invelved and the relative rights and responsibilities
19 Q. 'Okay. I'm gonna show you what has been markad for 19 and onhyatlons or ali -.hose parties. )
20 identification as Defendants' Exh|b|t 510, 20 Q. Did you réview what had nappened in the past at Big Hifi -
721 MR. WITTMAN: May I apprcach Your Honor? 21 AZ72s and with Mr. Lucas and Dr. Basll regarding their
2 THE COURT: You may. 22 relauonsop with requiatory authorities?
23 BY MR. WITTMAN: 23 A Wadid. we asked ther to bring us current on what had
2% Q. Do you reccgmce th:s uocumﬂnt7 . 24 been hzpparing, how Iong 1t had been happening, who the
25 A, Yes, ' 25 requiatory parties were with whom they had been engaged and

3 (Pages 3895 to 3898)
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essentially what the status of the matters were at that time.

———

: : Lo ‘Page 2501
Mr. Lucas and Or, Beall abeul theyr knowlados of wetlan

look at it. Does this aczuratzly reflect whét'you'learned from

H : 05 on
<7 Q. Did you become famiiiar with the fand sales contracts that : the propery?
3 weredn use. by Big'Hili Acres at that time? "~ 3 A Iidoss . _
4 A Wedid. We asked them to give us copies of the C b7 Q houan take tha down, Diz vou g aut ang INSpect the
5 transéctional documents that they wera using, and we did review | s . Property yoursaif? ‘ '
& those. : _ & A Tdid. My seniof partner, Mr. Crawford, and §, who worked
7 Q. 5f&f§8u¢vgr-.advise Mr. Lucas that Big Hill Acres should 7 together on-this case fer as iong 2s [was involved, agreed
B use a different contract for the sale of lots at Big Hil ' §  that Isnouid go take a view of the arsa - actually areas
9 Acres? . T 9 piural -- that were invoived hera, I arrangsd ta drive dawn
10 A, No. . . 1G  and meet Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas. And they then drave me
11 Q. What was the status of Big Hill Acres '-Jvith'_tt-'l'e'_ ' il through the combined area tnat s oo varous maps known as both
2 Environmental Pmtec_tionfa'gency.when you first became involved | 12 Big Hill Acres and Consolidsted Invastmentss. By § think gver .
15 with Big Hill Acres? - e ' ' ) i3 .bme, alfofit s generally referred to as Big Hiil Acrt_es.
14 A, AsT recall, because we became involved in April of 200{1 OO Lonk #ony VD, 3 Eie Ll half af oGt 4 i the
15 2 nember of Months cariier in 15993, tn"e"t.orps'of'Engineers. the 15 secton of your letter dealing with context. Do you see that? |
16  Mobile district office had issued a cease and desist order, 16 A Yes, - L S
17 following which L.S. EPA Region 4 alse issued a Cease and i Q. Couid I have that on the screer, piedse? Page 7. Bottom :
18 desist ordar,. And-either with that EPA prodeed -4'_or Cand D, i3  half on context. Page 2. If I can use the Elmo. That‘s' fine,. )
19 there was a proposed.conse‘nt-o_rder that was sent to Dr. Beall 19 MR. WITTMAN: Could | refer to.the Eimo, Your Hongr?.
=0 and Mr. Lucas for - with a request that they enter into that 20 THE COURT: Youmay, :
21 agreement with EPA, S o 21 BY MR WITTMAN: _
22 Q. Oka?. And did you have occasion to give advice o 12 Q. Just take 2 moment and look at that. D_oes'that'. reflect
23 -Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall regarding that proposed EPA consent 23 what you tearned from your drive t_h_r_é_ujﬂ r_hg_ Qr_}_gﬁg@, _
24 order? . S 24 Mr, Palmer? T
23 A Yes, we dig, 25 A Whalt this paragraph reflects is a combination of
: _ Page 3900 S o : Page 3902 |
1 Q. I'm gonna show you at this time what's been received in 1 information that we hag obtained from Dr. Beail and Mr. Lueas |-
2 evidence a5 Defendants' Exhihit 811, 2 as well as my own personal observations in the areas through
3 MR, WITTMAN: If T couid have it on the screen, . 3 which we drove, ' ' _
-4 please, Your Honor? 4 Q. Did you have any concerns aboyt the timber cutting
5 . THE COURT: Oh, you want it -- T'm 50rTY. 5 operations that had occurred 'Béfo.‘e"i?lr, Lucas and Dr, Beall
& BY MR. WITTMAN: . . _ ©  bought this properry? o
7 Q.' Do you recognize that as a capy of a ietter you wrote on 7 A Idid.
8 May 10th, 2000, to-a Mr. John Hankinson, whe v\-fa's”thg fegional | 8 Q. And what were those concerns? o
g administrator at that time of the Environmental Prptectiph. 9 A Weli, as we understood'ﬂ'te'_ﬁis__tbr)? of the passage of
10 Tageney?TTTT ——— : o o 10 title — from prior owners to Big Hill Acres and Consolidated
11 A. It appears 1o be that. | mean, ] sea only the first page. 11 Investments, it became clear that a kay ingradient in those
12 AsT1recall, it was 3 muitiple page document. But yes, that 12 trahsactions was the cutting of timber off of the prdperties
13 appears to be the. letter. _ S ' 13 that were held by the prior owner, which we understaod to be.
14 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, may I give the witness a 14 Wachovia Bank. So there was a lot of timber cutting activity
15 copy? Itisa multipage decument, 15 across the parcals that ] drove through. .
16 THE COURT: Yes, 16 Q. Okay. If we turn to the next page of your letter, I'll
{17 BY MR. WITTMAN:. _ 17 refer you just briefly to the tc-b of that dacument, You say,
1§ Q. If vou would, glease; Mr. Palmer, turn to the second page- 18 "To date, timber land has not beén included in the discussions -
19 of that letter. Did you attampt to find out what Mr. Lucas 15 of Big Hill Acres, We suggest that an essantial party is
20 knew about watlands on the: property when he and Dr. Bealt 20 missing." Why did you befisve that an essential party was
<1 bought the land from the timber companies? - ' 21 missing? . o
122 A iwe did. ' ' o 22 A."We took the view that the impacts to the area caused by
23 Q. Direct your attention ta the paragraph of the letter an 23 storms that produced substantial erosion’ were attributai_:ile to.
24 page 2 that ['ve highlighted an the scresn. Take a moment and {24 tha logging activities. And 35 bist we Understood how the
25 25 tra n'sacti-d;is occurred; we took the view that those
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Page 3903 :
‘ 1 activities -- those Tinal ibgging activities before the sales 1 Q. Now, did you have occasion to review the earlier cease apg
2 were actompiished and even some timber removal after the saies _ 2 desist order that had been fssued by the Corps of “Engineers on
3 were accomplished would not have been entitled to pri_yilegre' 3 June 3rd; 19997
4 :under what's called the silvicultu'rai exemption under Section. . 4 A Yes. Dr, Beall and Mr. Lucas brought Lopies c,-.‘ both the
5 404 because the property was being converted from a tlmber 5 Corps of Engirieers' cease and desist order anc the £PA ceasa
& operation'to a development operatmn And that was the paint .- L) and desist order for us to rewew and we did. .
-7 we we*Ec{arslng here; 7 Q. I'm gonna refer you to the bottom of page 4 of your Ietter
8 Q. Okay. Dbes that mean that the responsrbahty for any | & toMr, Hankinson where you specrflcally address that, do you -
9 erosion, for example, that had been caused would have been the | 9. not? _ _ .
10 responsibility of the timber cdmpany? T 10 A Where spe:ircaiiy, Mr. Wittman, are ¥You drrectmg me,
i1 A, That was the ccmtentron we wera' ralsrng here yes 11 Q. Bottom of page 4. It says, “"Big Hill Arres, Inc.,
12. Q. Did you give any advice to Mr. Lucas or Dr. Beall as to 12 activities sirice June 3rd, 1992." Do YOU see thatj
13 whether the sale of a fot cantammg wetlands was subject ta” 137 A Well, T see what you're ta!kmg about. Yas, | fnean, I can
14 Section 404 of the Clean Water Act? 14 read the lanfiiage
{i> A We discncead ra And w v2 BUVisEd them that there's oo 15 Q. Okay. _
16  provision in Section 404 of the Clean Water Act that prohibits. 16 A, We referred to the Corps of Engineers’ Cgase.and desist
17 the sale of property which’ daes or coutd cuntaln wetlands areas | 17 . order and to the fact that the EPA consent order has 3
18 'that are regulated pursuant’ to that prov:sron of the Clean 18 - statement in it saying that no additionai Iots containing )
19 Water Act. i 18 . impacted wetlands-will be sold wrthout the authornization from
20 Q. If yourd turn to page 4 of your letter, Did you advise 20 the Corps of Engineers.
21 the EPA of that as well? And | refer you to about the middle 2t Q. And did you review with Mr. Lucas and Dr. Baall what they
22 of the first fuil paragraph 22 had done in response to that order'f‘ '
23 A Yes, we did. 23 - A, We did. '
24 Q. And you referred to the r:ghis responszbmtles and 24 Q. And what did you learn?
Hiizs |tabﬂltlt’_‘5 between Big Hill Acres and the many purchasers in 25 A, Well, they advised us that once they gat the Corps of
Page 3904 3 : L Page 3906
1 the development as regards activity which resulted in any 1 Engineers order, thay had glready been working with their )
‘2 impact. .\What did you mean by that’ 2 wetlands consuitant; Dr. Dana Sanders, to perform on the ground
3 A Atthe time we entered this case, there had been already 3 delineations of areas that in Or. Sanders' opinion gk the '
4+ several years of activity on the ground.” Some obwousiy, in | 4 profile to be classified a wetland ares and that Dr. Sanders
5 our opinion, was in terms-of alterations to the property 5 had flagged those for Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas, wha i in turn then
© - attributable to the timber ‘cutting’ activities I have mentmned ) 6 withdrew those areas from sale or offer for sale
J"? ' 'Persons had bought [ property and had mavad on to the pmperty 7 Q. Had Dr. Saniders-been hired by Big Hiit Acres befare you
7 'i 8  andwere themselves begmmng to engage in actr\rstzes that we 8 and the But}er Show. flrm were retamed to represent Big Hill
' "__9 had concerns about alsp’ bemg regulated 3 Acres?
10 And 50 we were coricerned about trying to sort aII this out |1e A ves. Dr. Sanders, as’ [ recail had been at workasa
11 to see who-had’ actually done what where and what the resuits or_ 11 wetlands consultartt for these two cornpames and for Dr. Beall
. 12 consequences.of their activities were, There were even other 12 and Mr. Lucas for some time, _ o
: JF 13 parties, like-the county having bmught road rnatenals m to 13- Q. Okay. And what was your understaﬂdmg c. \."hc Dr, Sal‘_:ders
' L] 1+ build or enhanc:raﬁnays i4  was ultimately going o do? . .
" lis And the point that we were trying to make is that it 15 A well, it was our understandmg that, as | ment:one., a
16 appeared to us at that time that a number of different partles 15 moment age, Dr. Sanders was retamed to survey the parcels that
17 had been active on these preperties for a number of ¥ears. And. P17 atthat point représented what had come to oe known as Big Hill.
15 we srmply thought that the gcwernment should be locking at the 18 Acres. And he was going to then apply aporopriate dalineation
19 aiteratmns that we saw out there in the contaxt of who drd 19 . protodols to generate maps that would denict on macs areas that
20 what. 20 :-.m his Gpition would meet those protocols to be dassified s
21 Q. Were yau at all concerned that Mr. Beall and Mr. Lucas 21 wetlangs. - ' _
22 migbt be held responsible for the actvities of third 22 And 1 also belisve, because he had had dasu..:; ans Wi[h
23 parties - ather parties on the property? 23 " government regulators, he was goma to cehneate arzas that in
24 A Well, I think we may have raised that snecmtaliy iy *hls 24 his opinion reflacted some degrE° oF atterat-m a:c:rd'ng tca
L?_S or Dther Jerters But yes that's why we raised these DOIHG 23 dassification apprcafh that the government had pr»scrmed by
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. _ Page 790~ . ' Page 3505
! cateuon, such as land Llearmg ar road bJIICIN"IG or house pad 1 properties, o _
2 construciion, driveway construction. That was cur apprecianon - | 2- Q. "And what advice did you give Mr, E=ah and Mr Lucas abauyt.
3 for wnat Dr. Sanders wes brought in o e, 3 agreeing tdthe proposed consent order? .
4 Q. Ckay. If you .voulu Wwrn 1o page 5 of that May 10t 1+ A We[l we recornmended that they net agree 10 the. Dropesed
5 etter. And Il ask you abclur the second qu paragraph, 5 consent order as it was wrrtten and prozeeded to then: engage
[ Basedogycur |nvestrgataon wEn you came aboard back 1n Aprr' & wrth U.5. EPA pomr by poing to. recommend alternatrve :

"7 of 2000. M “Palmer, were there any dcv-ﬂropment activities-at 7. approaches in & number of the’ ar‘trcles in the proposed cunsent
B Big Hill Acres after Jue 3rd, 19997 8 order that we thought would generate E document that might
9 A The accounting that Dr. Seafi and Mr. Lucas. .gave us of 9  be -- might be agresable to both the _government and to

18 their aevelopment activities over then about a =i yoar perigd 10 Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall. .

i1 and my observation of what they described when I rede with them | 11. Q. But as proposed, did you befieve that the consent order

12 through the ares indicated o me that the subdivisions plural, 12 depr:ved Big Hill Acres of its vahd rght 1o contmue its

13 - each of which, of tourse, had independently been deveioped, 13 business?

14 were essentially develaped our in terme nf Foandwave anr that STV OA we s S

15 sl of thing. ' 15 Q. Okay. Now, did you invite representatrves of the EPA to

1& Q. By May of 2000, hat the roads at Big Hl“ Acres 16  come down to meet you at the site at Big Hill Acres?

17 essentially beén r:ompleted‘r‘ ' 17 A, Well, wa extendad that invitation several times,

16 A Asbest] recalf, the roadways had been cnmpieted in terms 18 Mr. Wittman. . .

19 of opening -+ just opening the pathways that traversed the 19 Q. I'm speaking specmcarly in this trme frame of May of -

20 property generally east west north south. Not all of them had 20 2000. .

21 been paved. Butin terms of the basic Incar:ons or iayout of 121 A T nave to look closely at the letter,. but I thmk Ican

22" the roads, as best I recall, that was in-place, 22  answer the question yes.

3 Q. We - had intraduced into evidence during this trial an 23 Q. Would it helg refresh your recollection if you would Jook
24 exhibit by the government, Government Exhibit 138, which you - 24 at the top of page B of your 1erter7 '
25  can see on the floar there in frant of you. Doss tnat aenal 25 A YE'_S :
o . . ) Page 39081 . ) . : : Page 3910 -
i photograph essentially depict the way the property locked when- - 1 Q. Okay. and Why did you want to meet at the site? -
2 you went put tﬁere in May of 2000, April of 20007 1 2 A Fromthe very beginning, our approach was to attempt to -
3 A Well, Twasn'tin an alrplane, Mr. Wittman. 1 saw it on 3 move all of these controverted matters to dosure through.
4 the oround, which a!ways gives you = different perspectiva. 4 séttlement. | simply found over Mmany years that people have a.
5 Looking at the exhibit and reflecting on the mars that -5 beftter appreciation of things if they Can get gut pn the
6 uitimately 1 saw, i appears to me that the exhibit reasonably & ground, walk ar::runc[ iook at it and better understand regily
7 accurately dasicts the general layout of the roadways as best | 7 what's going on as it's happening than, as I said -- as i see .
8 can determine. 8 i this letter, sitting i our air conditioned cffices in
9 Q. Okay. If you would, turn to page 6 and. take 3 look just 9  Atlanta or Jackson. And we just recommended that all- ofusget T3

10 at the last paragraph on that page. Mto ask you a 10 together and get down o the Bround and see how we could move -

1t question about the language that T've hrghhghted Cn your : 11 the matter along . . :

12  screen there. Why were you concerned about the EPA's demand 12 Q. Didyou review ynur conr:erns as expressed n thrs letter, .

13 that Big Hill Acres stog ‘:ellmg any of its remaining land? 13 M™r. Palmer, with any of yaur partners at Butler, Snow?

14 A well, from our earlrest dlsc..isslons wrth Dr. sanders, it - 14 A Yes. As] mentlsned from the outser my Senigr gartner,.

15 was clear that thrcunhout thrs area there Were some tracts - 15 Mr. Crawiord, and i worked tagethar on this cass. essentially in

16 some lets that had besn laid out where there were.no wetlands 16. lock step. From trme to ime, as we needed to ask other -
17 acall. There wers sthier IoG that sad soma watlangs araas 17 members of the t'rm quastions that were conataral to the
18 that Dr. Sanders” ha:i Jdentrfled And then there were other - 18 environmental matters, YES, we would consult weth thesa

18 lots wherg there wer= substa nt:ai wetlands areas that hehad .. |19 attorneys.

20 raentrﬂed - 20 Q. Ckay, Im Gonna show you what I'va marka= 75

21 Our-concarns were th 13t f Dr. Beall and Mr, Lucas had 21 wdentification as Defendants’ Exhinit B13.

22 antsred into that consent nrd=f tnay wouid ha-:e litzrally gone 32 MR, WITTMAN: And if we could screen ‘ha:, Your

23 outof business tha-. very cay. Even 2s to praperuss wherg . 23 Honor without the jury seing it cn the Eim

24 there were no wet]an._.s wnarsoever ang they wouid kava tnan {" st 24 THE COURT: Ail right,

25 ali revenue or potential revenue frorn the sale of these 125 BY MR, WITTMAN:

MARGARET W. SEAL, RMR, CRR
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Page 53511

C S Page 3913
i Q Do you racogniz2 that as 8 -- an e-mail you sent o 1A Well, we got a letter.
2 Mr. Jahn Crawfard on May 10th, 20007 2 Q D-\ay Lzt me show you what's een recewed in “wdence as
3 A ldo. I Cefense Exhibi $132 and ask if You recognize that'as g Copy of
2 Q. And who s Mr. Crawford? _ < 2 letter sant to you by Ms. Thanne Cax of the Enwronmé_hta[
5 A Again, Mr. Erawford was my sanior partner and the nead o & Protectinn Agency? . S C
B the" euv:ronmentaf practice group In the firm and essentially y & A Im seging only a pomon ot it, but it appears to be sq,
7 o coufi m the matter. ¢ oyes, :
§ Q. And was this e-mail sent on the dats tnat It bears, May 5. C Okav :
9 10th, 20002 : a MR, wr-r-wm May I hand the wmacs 4 copy, Your
10 A Yes. _ 10 Honar? . :
11 - MR, WITTMAN: 1 offer into avidence Defendants: i " THE COURT: You may. :
12 Exhibit 812, Your Honar. il MR. WITTMAN: Your Hanor, T'm not sure [ offered this
13 THE COURT: Any objection? 133 document in evidence. 1I'm not sure. i like Yo just offer it
14 . MS HARRIS: One moment, Your Hano.. [ 14 atths tme. 1 think | hRve '
'S Your Hener, [ objeet on ralevance of this and sy 15 THE COURT: Give me the number agam
16  within it. i6 ME. HARRIS: No objection.
17 THE COURT: They're still looking at it. 17 MR, WITTMAN: 813.
18 MR. WITTMAN: Did you want me to respond, Your Honor? ] 18 THE CLERK: Itis in avidence.
19 THE COURT: Na. I thaught Ms. Harris was not 19 THE COURT: It is already in evidenca.
20 fiushed. Are you finished, Ms. Harris? 20 MR. WITTMAN: - Thank you, Your Henor.
k3] MS5. HARRIS: I'm finished. 1 would also just ask we 21 THE COURT: Credit for that rapid response goes to
22 be provided these exhibits before they coma up. We have not 22 the clerk of the court.
23 seen these. And 1'd like to review them before I'm put in this _23 o MROWITTMAN: T'l manage to get her mixed up before
24 position, : 24 the day is up, Judge, I'm sure. But T'lt try nat to. o
25 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, [ can do that. T can give 25 BY MR. WITTMAN
: ) . : Pa'ge 3912 . Page 3914
1 heracopyof everything I'm gonna use. 1 G How did the Environmental Protection Agency respond o
2. MS. HARRIS: That would be helpful. 2 your request that it look into the activities of the timber
3 THE COURT: Your shjection is as to relevance then'«' 3 companies? And [l direct you to the last line on page 1 of
4 MS5. HARRIS: And hearsay withir it 4 that letter. o
5 THE COURT: Mr. Paimer, was th:s e-mail communication 5 A, The agency took the position that they were nat going to
& provided to your dients, Mr, Lucas, or was this an interoffice 6 pursue any prior owner -- in the way this was written, it would
7 e-mail that went oniy to — between you and Mr. Crawford? 7 haveto be - the way 1. |nterpret it, not onfy the owner of the
B THE WITNESS: Your Honar, as best I recall this was B property but contractors acting on behalf of the owners at the
2 strictly an interoffice -communication. ' 8 _ time or subseguent to the saie: That they were not going to
1 THE COURT: Ohjection is sustamed 1G  pursue the possibility that these parties could have been
11 BY MR, WITTMAN: : _ 11 responsibie for and could be then held liable for envirpnmental
12 Q.- Let me ask you this, Mr. Paimér. What was youf view of 12 consequences associated with their timber cutting activity.
13 the EPA's position at this time? And specificafly, did you- 13 Ang they exiended an invitation somewhere i this paragraph for
14 sense any cwerreactrcn on the EPA's part w|th respect te their 14 ustg reengage on that if we chose 1o, ) :
15 dealings with 8ig Hill Acres? . 15 GQ. Ckay. Would it be fair to say, Mr. Palmer, that you,
16 Al My early assessments; as they would be i in any enforcament 16 acting an behalf of Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall and the companies,
17 action and all of my years of experience, fs to gzt & sense of 17 dlsagrned with the Environmental Protaction Agency about how
13 the direction that the regutators are taking with respect then 18  the timber companies and ather third parties sheuld be dea!t '
19 to my.sense.of the viotations they are assefting. My early - 13 with out at Big Hill Acres?
20 sense, given what information we had been provided and 0 A We.did.
21 d=ve|op|ng my just first impressions drlvmg through the area 1 Q. Okay. If I can ask you toturn to page O of the letter.
22 was that the government's proposals were heavy handed. 22 Ang the first paragraph, Ms: Cox gppears io take issue, does
23 Q. Aliright. Mow, how did the Env1ronm&txon 23 she not, with -- there we g0 - your staterment in vour May 10th
24 Agency resaond to your letter of May 10th, ZODO that you sent |24 le%ter regarding the Corps of Enginzers’ visit to the pmper“Y '
25 o them? 25 in 1296, dossn't she?

i
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Page 3915 Pag=s 3ai>
1A Yes, she does. Co 1 request is. '
2 Q. Did YGU review the report of that 1996 visit tha* was 2. A 1ts 2 mechanism available to citizens to cbkaln dsCuments
3 prepared by Mr. Ephriam? : 3 from the federal government. It's called the Fresdom of
4" A Yes. Some long time after this letter, we asked for a 4 lnformatlon Act, And folks may ava:l themselves of that law tg
5 copy of |t via the Freedom of Information Act and we gotacopy | 5 obtain offcnal docurnents recoras, information fram the
& of what you re putting on the screen now. We did not have this | 5 federal government.

7 cantemﬁb‘lag\eous with either my letter or Ms, Cox's reply. We 7 Q. Okay. Soif you look back at Ms. Cox's letter an page 2

8 got it some pariod -- some substantial peried later. 8 at the top where she ig distussing with you your May i0th

5 Q. Allright. I've got Exhibit 89 -- Government Exhibit 89 9 letter, she didn't give you any documentation to back up the
10 nn' the screen, which is the report prepared by Mr, Troy Ephriam | 10 position she took in that letter, did she?. :

11 with the Corps of Engineers, ] iake it you did not have this 11 A No. .
12" reportin May of ZDOU’ 12 Q. If I could direct you ta the last paragraph of her ‘el'ter

13 A. No. : i3 on that page, the sentence beginning *Recognizing that selling
1+ Q. It was prepared in 1995 -- 1 misspoke. Did Mr. Lucas have |14 these property lots themselves is not prohibited bv Sectinn sna
12 acopy of it i May of 20007 1D of the Clear Water Act™

16 A Nottomy knowledge, no. 16 A Yes. :

17 Q. Did Ms, Cox ever send g copy of rt 1) yau’ 17 Q. Did Ms, Cnx agree with you that the sale of lots at Blg

18 A Ne. : 18 Hill Acres was not prohibited by Sect!on 404 of the Clean Water
19 Q. Did Ms. Cox & ever tell you that the Corps of Engineers 19 Act?
20 closed its file on Big Hill Acres in 1996 and took no action at 20 A. Yes, _
21 aly 21 Q. Okay. What advic'e if any, did you give to Mr. Lucas
22 A No, 22 about that, whether he had to foliaw the Clean Water Act to
23 Q. I'm gonna show you what's been received in evidence as 23 sell lots out there? _
2% Defendants' Exhibit 7 and ask you to take a moment and-look at | 24 . Well, as I testified earlier, in our earliest
25 it ' : ' 25 conversations with Dr. Beall and Mr- Lucas, we advised them --

Page 3916 : Page 3918
T A Mr W:t‘tman I couid take all day, but I can't read it I torepeat myseIF - that the Clean Water Act does not prahibit
2 ~ THE COURT: You didn't turn off the auto forus 2 the saie of property which does or might contain wetlands that
3 function, did you? There You go. - Thank YOou. 3 could be determined to be within the scope of that particular
4 © THE WITNEZSS: Thank you. J1 % section of the Clean Water Act. . :

5 - MR, WITTMAN: Bubba was teaching me how ta use this 5 Q. Okay. What was the FPa's reaction to your attempts at
§ iast night. Thank you, Your Honor. 6 reaching an amicable resolution of this matter? '
7 THE COURT: That is a frightening prospecL 7 A Well, our efforts towsrd that end, Mr. Wittman, unfolded -
8 BY MR. WITTMAN: : : B over a number of months. And as reflected in a long senes of
9 - Q. Mr. Palmer, this document is g document that was received 9 correspondence between our firm and first one attorney, |
10 earlier. It's a migrographicsystem data report from the Corps 10 Ms. Cox, and then Mr. Paul Schwartz, who took the file after
11  of Engineers. Lo you see that? 11 Ms. Cox moved to ancther EPA region. But from the beginning,
12 A1 do. 12 we asked EPA [o work with us to resclve all issues ---to
13 Q. And it relates to the property at Big Hiii Acres. And it 13 ultrmately reach a global settlement in the matter as Quickly
14 finds theres ng waterway at Big Hill Acres, does |t nct’ 14 as we reasonably could, urdarstanding that Dr, Sanders stil
15 A, That's what it says. 15 had work to finish, And thera was still technical 1ssues that
16 Q When you get down to the type of final action doun at the- 116 were cartainly beyond the lawvers' sontrol. Byt that we V'unted
17 bottom, what do those initials FNV stand for? 17 to work towards sattlement, .
18 A, I urderstand tnat to miean finding of no wo!atlon 18 Q. If vou'll inok frna!ly at the Jasz page of Ms. Cox's
19 Q. Okay. _ 19 rasponse to you, she taiis YoU that the EPA also desirss o
20 A Although, Mr. Wittman, we did not get this document from 20 - ent2r into good faith sut‘fement discussions; is that carrect?
21 the Corps of Enginaers. we got the other documer:t thatyouput |21 A Yac . :
22 onthe: screen, Bui this, document that you'e showing me now, I | 22 Q. Mow, veu tols us 3 momane 35C that you were aware that the: |-
23  don't racall being disciosed | by the Corps of Eng-neers when we 23 Corps of Enginesrs had issuad 2 CZase and desist order to
24 submitted our FOIA request, - 24 Mr. Lucas in june 5f 199%: tsrracyy -
25 25 A Yes.

Q. Tell the Iad_:es and gentlemean of the Jury what an FOjA -

MARGARET W. SEAL, RMR, CRR
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' Page 391% Page 3521
1 Q And'I'm génna show you what's in evidence as - I believe | 1 that = brought into an area from some othar area and is ., .
2 its Gevernment Exhibit 139, whlch is the June 3rd, 1999, ceasz | 2 dspositad thars ano would be: & snsidered fiil, But again, as_
3 anc desist from the Corgs of Engineers, and direct your 2 h2s bean mentioned, these siatutes have dafinitions for the |
4 attention to the last paragraph on that page. There it goes. = isrms. But then those da initions have been tested many times’
5 The paragraph will start "You're hereby _directed Lo cease and 5 in many cases. :
& dESIS" Do you see that? 5. Q. Were there any dredging activities go:ng on at Bng Hitl -
7 A Yesx ‘ . 7 Acres when you were invalved reprnsentmg the cnmpany’
g8 Q. And wh-af\actwltles was tna Corps of Enginears ordering & Al ldid naot personally observe activities of that nature .
9 Mr. Lucas to cease and dasnst from? 9 either with machines mowna material around or dump trucks, jif -
10 A Well, I can't see the whole .page here. But earller - in 18 vou will, bringing material in. The times that T was down
11  earfier paragraphs the Carps recnted the standard language - 1i -there; I did not persanally observe any such act:wtlas to the. -
12 from Section 404 of the Clean Water Act about discharging 12 best of my recollection. o
13 dredged or fill materlal And 5o what the cease and desist- 13 G Now, the Environmental Protectian Agéncy aisa issued a
14 crder girected these partles to do is to-stop discharging . 14 cease and desist erder of its awn in - let ma get the exacr
13 dredgen nre fiit matenat 1t watare of the United States. i3 Jadle - August of 18997
16 Q. Andis there a speczfc Iocanon thats referred to in 16 A. 1believe that's correct.
17 this letter? _ 17 Q.. August 4th, 1992, ‘Was that essentialiy a follcw-up of the
18 A well, T can't see the whole letter, unless - ) 15 order previously issuad by the Curps of Englneers? '
15 Q. I'm looking at the first paragraph_there ON your screen. 19 A, Essentially. . .
20 A. Yes. You have backed it up.- In the very first paragraph, 20 Q. Let me show you this ane pomon of that order. Dces what
21 yes, there is reference tg a specnf!c Iocahon And I'm trymg 21 I'have highlighted there at the bottorn, Mr. Palmer, reflect
22 to remember if at some point the geographlc description of - 22 ‘what Mr. Lucas and the companies were vrdered to do? - _ ' o
23 these sections was denominated, the site, 5-1-T-E. But yes, 23 A, Well, that's what it says, Mr. Wittman. The parties that
|24 there are sections indicated by section, townsth and range in 24 were addressed here were told to immediately cease. .
25 Jackscn County, Mississippi. 25 participating in causing or allowing any additional disch_arges
Page 3520 o Page 3822
1 Q. If you'll skip down m about the third paragraph, I think 1 of dredged ar fill material. And there's reference to the
2 that's the paragraph you were looklng at that deflnes what 2 C.FR. cite into the discharge area.
3 Section 404 dea!s wnth" 3 Q. Whichis essentially the same thing that the Corps of
+ A Yes. . - 4 Engineers had ordered?
5 Q. Thal's that paragraph right there {indicating)? > A Essentially. We would have to go back and lay the two
& A Yes. & cease and desist orders down side by side to see if there were
7 Q. And it DI‘DthItS tha placemnnt af dredged or fill matenal 7 differences in either the preambie or the mandates, but the
8 into waters of the Unlted States lnc udmg wetiands wlthout a - & gist of the two orders T would say is essentially the: same
9 Department of the Army permlt? B & Q. And just ta go back and do that and look at the beginning .
| 10 A Yes o . : o 10 - of that EPA order, tnat addrgss—e——scloes it not, the same area
11 Q. That's what this letter said. Okay. _What are dredged or 11 of Sections B, 9, 10 and 15 of Township & South Range 8 West
12 fill materials? ' o 12 in Jackson County, Mississippi?
13 A Well, Mr. thtrnan frankly, there are many, _many, many - i3 A It appears to, ves. o ) .
11 court decsions that deal with those words But from my 1+ Q. Was it your understanding that thaéa two orders 'were'f_c'r
15  perspective, matarial that is - that is in an area - 15 all practical purposes one and the sama?
16 MS. HARRIS: Your Hanor, T m gonna object ta this. . 16 A, Well, essentially the sama.- WlthOUt agam doing & 5|de :
17 These terms are defined by statute and I dont know that hl: 17 by side line by line comparison, I cart: say that they
18 opinion is relevant to that. . 18 absolutely were. Qur appreciation for these bwo government
19 THE COURT: Objection o Lvnrr'uiéd "He ma\,' answer. 19 orders months after they were issyed, ‘though, was that
20 A Materials that are in an area that is determined tobea 20 conclusion that they were essentaaﬂy the same and dzrected at
21 wetland that aré moved around, whether they are dug and - 21 the same activities in the same places.
22 relocated or moved around by machines or if there are treﬂs and |22 Q. To-your knowledoz:did Mr. Lucas’ "omply mth those orders'r'
'3 debris that are moved around, that are moved into a requlated 1A They represented to us that they did, o )
24 area. T've always usad that acpeeciation for the term dredged. 1247 Q. To your knowledge, was any dredged of fill material S
25 Fill material I've always lgosziy considered material 23 deposited in what was descripad 35 the discharge area after the
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Page 3923 [ Paﬂe 3015
1 date of entry of these orders in August of 20007 . 1 _ MS., HARRIS Th-;, is onz of then, Ive never sean it
2 A Drn Beall and M eucas repre:ented to us tnat thag had -2 beforg ths, -
3 not occurred. ' L 3 THE ZOURT: That's Defangarts 0 Tnat‘s the
4 Q. I misspoke. August of 1999, Correct™ 4 zmait betwsen Mr. Palmer -- - .
5 Al Yes, sir. 5 MR, KORZENIK: Your Honor, could 1L if [ may, add:
&6 Q. Okay “You mentioned Dr Dana Sand=r5 We talked about | 6 they're subpaenzed from bwo differert partes, both from Big.
‘7 hima mcment ago. Did you have any input :ntd Dr. Sanders 7 Hilt Acres and alsc from D.R. Sanders and thizy were ndt
B wetlands defmeat:dns that he was makang 8 ‘producad pursuant to grand jury subpoena. -
‘9 A No. Dr. Sanders was retained to perform that specraltzed 9 THE COURT: Were these documents produced‘) )
10 work I am not ::Ompetent to perform that work. ' 10 MA. WITTMAN Your H:;no. [ Jo ngt know '
11 Q. Okay. Did the' Environmental Protection Agency have any 11 THE'COURT: | apprecnate your candor.
12 invalvement in the work that Mr. Sander:r - Dr. Sanders was, 12 MR, WITTMAN: Tt happened -- the production happened
I3 doing? 13 befare [ got heavily invoived 1n the case. But I know there 1.
14 Al Yes, _ 14 were some documents that were not orodiiced heeaica thay warg
13 Ay And did the Sovirgnimentst 0 rorection AgEiy, in 15 subjectto attorney/dient privilege. I don't think this
16 far:t undertake to direct Dr. Sanders on occasion?. 16 document is necessarily one of them. But itis not something I
17 A, According to Dr. Sanders they did. 17 can't do without. I can proceed without it
18 Q Okay. And I'm gonna show you -- 18 THE COURT: [ was going fo comment that he can
19 MR. WI‘H‘MAN' If Tcould just show this to the 19 cerainly testify to what he did. He can tEStIfY ta what he
20 witness and not to the' jury, Your Honar, on the Elmo. 20 said and what advice he gave to Mr. Lucas without necessarily
21 BY MR. WITTMAN: 21 the presentation of his e-maif —
22 Q. I'm gonna shiow you what I've marked as Exhlblt 840 - 22 MR. WITTMAN: Sure. Ican dothat
23 A, Yes. : 23 THE COURT: - interoffice e-mail. I'm gonna sustain . -
2% Q. And ask you to take & moment and 1ook atitand see if you | 24 the objection. _ B
/125 recognize that as an e-mail that you sent to Dr. Sanders 25 MS. HARRIS: - Do 1 have to dg it for the other two
: Page 3924 Page 3926 |.
I concerning the EPA site visit, 1 1 when he tries to move those | in; or could we go ahead and -- -
2 A Yes. And it was replymg to, as 1 recali an e-matil that 12 MR. WITTMAN: I'm gorina stay away from those now that
3 Dr. Sanders had sent to ma. 3 T've seen you have an objection to them.
4 Q. Okay. 4 MS. HARRIS: Okay.’
5 MR. WITTMAN Ydur Honor, 1 offer into ewdence ) MR. WITTMAN: I'm gaing to try to. . .
& Defendants Exhibit 840. & THE COURT: well, agaln lettars and memos and
7 MS. HARRIS: Objectidn Your Honor. 7 e-mails that tend to simply underscore or botster what 3
g THE COURT; what is your ob]ectlon3‘ : I 8 witness said is not necessarily needed as an exhibit. And :
5 - MS. HARRIS: :hese ddcuments were not turned Over. S objections on those lines if ali likelihood wouid be sustained.. .
10 And I'd like to approach. =~ =~ - e e o MR. WITTMAN: Okay. Thank you, Your Honc:r
11 THE COURT: You want to what? ' 11 (Bench conference concluded)
12 M3, HARRIS: These documents weare ndt turned over. | :i2 THE COURT: Is the document camera clear?
13 And I'd fike to approach the bench. : 3 Mr. Wittman, is the documerit camera Llear so 1¢an turn it back
- 14 THE COURT: Oh, you would like to apnroaen I'm . |14 on? Anything on there? ‘Okay. Good. For whatever reason,.
[ 15 sorry. | simply did not hear you. You. may. . 15 when the document camera is turned off from the bench, the
[ 16 {Bench conference on the recsrd with all counsel;, . "1 16 speszkers go off in the jury box. S6 [ want to be sure that I
17 defendants not present, as follows:) = | 17 ‘use that -- use that feature sparingly.
18 MS. HARRIS: In the materials that Mr. Wittman just 18 BY MR. WITTMAN:
19 turned over to me, there are these three acditional letters - 12 Q. Ithink bafore we took the break rMr. Palmer, | was asklng
|20 that we have riever szen before that I thmk that's a discovery | 20 you about the EPA's direct:cn of the work Dr. Sanders was
21 violation. Given that they have not been provided to us before | 21 doing. Do you recall that? -
22 this time desoite the sxistence of exhibit cutoffs and 22 A ldo.
23 everything else, we - *au!d ask they not be admitted, 23 Q. Was that a concemn dr ydurs?
24 THE COLPJ ) .;hat about the one thar's on the screen | 24 - A, It was, '
25 now? 25. Q. why?
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. AN My own recommendation, siong with Mr. Crawford, was that we

____—_'-_'———__
: L e o ! Page "93‘7 - : Fage 3970
1A Because Or. Sanoﬂrs nad been retained by Dr Beall and 1 g‘\ oevono what was being asked for and begin to- generate 5 -
2 M Lucas to perform very specialized serwcas asa consultant 1 series of additicnal aids in the form of maps that we thought
3 And we feit that that's what he should be aliowed to do and be 3 would be mare helpful to EPA than simply boxes full of paper.
4 prepared to- bltimately dafend his work product.” 4 Q. Okay. And did Mr. Lucas cooperata with the Enwronmental
5 Q. And did you s¢ advis2 Dr. Sanders and Mr. Lucas" ' 5 Protecticn. Agency _ : . S
6 ' A We did.. . : - & A To the best or my - knowledge, te did.
7 Q. WE‘QR did'Qr. Sanders complete his wetlands’ delineation? ' .| 7 Q. Okay. and was his attitude one of attempting to -
B A. Idontrecal precisely. ' There are certainly letters B accomplish what you were trying to accompllsh =thatis, tp
5 ,that will reflect several iterations, Mr. Wittman, of _ 9 see this matier resolved? - - Ce
10 Or. Sanders' work. He had generated an initial series of maps. 10 . A Yes, 3
11 He then from time to time — I don't know how many times --was | 11 Q. In fact, while I'm on that subject, are.yot familiar with
12 on the ground with one or more EPA representatives. T don't 12 the concept of an after the fact - after. the fact permit or an
13 know if Corps of Engineers’ representatwes ware on the ground 13 a-nf permit that the Coros of Engineers is5ues?
14 as well. But that ied to-some changs - amendments to his 14 . Tam. : _ . .
i3 wulk prudod. : ' s ) wauld yay rnll us what that imvolves? What doag ‘hot mcan
16 But there camie a ime when he finished producing the maps. | 16 .to get an after the fact permit? . - '
17~ There were some substantial téchnical difficulties that arose, 17 A. Well, as the term suggests, if someone conducts an =~
18 frankly, beyond hiscontrol fater on. But ultimately the = 18 activity without first getting 2 permit that would be required -
19 process ran its course sometime on into the year 2000.. _ 19 for the activity and then that activity is discovered, then if - _
20 Q. How long did it take the Environmental Protaction Ag]ericy 20 the Corps of Engineers chooses, it may fequire a remedy in the -
1 o make a determination as to the adequacy of Dr, Sanders 21 form of either some changes to what's been done or mitigation
22 wetland delineation? ) . 22 for whats been done and then they choose to issue a permit -
23 A. Well, as ¥ recall, the final submis’sion"a!onjwith 23 after aff that as though they would have done it beforehand if
24 Dr. Sanders' report, which we asked-him to pregare fo éxplain .24 & proper permit application had been submitted,
25 his professional approach, what he did, how he did it, where 'h_e . 125 Q. Okay. And were you aware that Mr. Lucas was indeed -
: Page 3928 _ Page 3930
1 -dxd it, what his condlusicns were, what his final maps were. 1 pursuing an after the fact permit for Big Hill Acres? S
2 After that was submurtad in the Fall of 2000, October or 2 A, Well, we discussed that as being an ideal outcome in an
3 November, it was several months, as [ recalf, before EPA 3 “ultimate globai settlement. To then return everything, not
4 finally agréed to our request and determined that that 4 only the property but all the parties to status quo through a
S submission would be the - what's called the jurisdictional . S global settlement resotution, that would involve aftér the fact
§ determmation for an the property. 6 permits. It would also involve then whatever remedies that the
7 Q. Now, during the period from Aprii of 2000 through the 7 government would require in the form of restoration of certain
8 summer of the year 2000, How cften did you communicate with 8 Impacted areas, mlhgataon for other tmpacted areas. ‘It would
4 reorFl.sentatives cf tha Enviranmental Protection Agencv on 9 be a global settlement. .
10 behalf of Mr.-Lucas and hrs companies? 10 Q. And was that a part of what Dr, Sanders was doing :n'ﬁls
It Al Well, on an as needed basis, agan, there are letters back 11 work? :
12 and forth between us. But 1t was ~ I would say on a fainy 12 A Tothe best of my u_nderstan_ding, it was because he was
13 reqular basis over those few months, 13 génerating the base maps that-wouid be essentially the
14 Q. Okay. Did you kesp Mr, Lucas and: Dr Beall mformed of 14 predicate for decisions on alt these paints. .
15 what you were-doing vuththe EPA? 7 ' 15 Q. And was that the main thrust of the work that you were
15 A Absolutely. That's the firm's. policy that we not only - 16 ooing in the Summer of 2000 on-behalf of Mr. Lucas?
17 wolld advise tharm orally of our oommumcaoons with’ government 17 A Yes. Tha! was our goal to.move all matters along, tke
18 regulators but alsa provide them with coples of correspondence 18 T Ve 53 i already, toward resolution. |
12 thatwe exchangad with those gavernment regultatars, ) 19 Q. If I may, Im .gonna show you a copy of & lr-tter dated June
20 Q. Whar advice, if any, did you give M. Lucas and Dr. Beari 20 Sth, 2000, that -- from you to Ms, Thanne Cox. :
21 canczming cooperanaa with e EPA? . ) 121 MR, WI'"MAN And if I may, Your Honor, approach and.
270 A wall, hat.itwes ir thair best nterests 1o ¢ooperate 22 give the witness 2 cooy“
33 fully with the govermment i terme of responding to 'fequeﬁis _ 23 EBY MR. WITTMAN: .
24 for mformation, tz i~z aroduction of dacuments and recards. 24 Q. boyou recognize that letter? .
35 A Yes.
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g And did you-send it ta Ms. Cox on or about the date that I Aand _t‘ne_ciat_ June DOL‘, is at the I:Op :
2 -|t bears? G lustasz maker of curiosity, wity is it on Big H||| Acres
oz ' A, 1did. We sent. thas lstter to Ms. Cox covering the I swationary if vou, as an attorney, wera resresentmg Big H|I|
1 responses that Dr. Beall and Mr. L.ucas were providing ta 4 - Agres af the tm—c : .
s QuESﬁGI‘IS -- information requests that the gevernment had T A well, berauss the questions were not posed to us as
o already sent to them Ana so this is the package which £ counsal. Ths "ruesuons WEeTe D0SeC to Mr. Lugas, Dr. Baall ang
7 CGHSVSM the answers that Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas prowdee T tether oo panies. So it was their responsibility to Drepare
8 as well.as ook, covering lefters. _ 8  answers. : :
a MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, [ offer into evidence 9 Q. Al right. DlC you ass:st in the preparatlon of these
10 Defendants' Exhibit 1193. 18 answers? : :
il M5. HARRIS: No objection. : 1 A, We assisted to the extent that we explanned very carefully
2 THE COURT: Without objection, it erI be marked and 1z the necessity of ganerating fuil, complete answers to al|
13 admitted. . . 12 questions, And 50 when the initial drafts of the answers were
14 {Exhibit D-1193 marked and received in evidence) : 14 prepared, we went through them to salisfy ourselves that the
i I5 BY Mp \A_,rr"rm AAL . : . _1: quuuuh;: By e dLLUrdteny dodressen ann fl!ity answgrm_ .
1 Q. I]USt want to go through this brleﬂy, Mr. Palmer, The © 16, Q. Okay. That last ling, I can't quite get. I just wanted
17  first paragraph simply says what you just toid us that you were 17 to set that up for the jury. The document goes through and
18 sending some materials to her. In the serong paragraph, you 18 " quotes each request,.and then the response is set forth in bold
19 talk about you regret having to respond to the infofmation’ © |19 print; is that correct? . : Lo
20 requested in piecemeal fashion, but it was necessitated by the 20 A ltis. We re-::ommended that form. That's the-farm that
21 press of time. What kind of. time constraints were youunderin |21 ourfirm had used in the past for submitting replies. It is
22 the Summer of 20007 - : 22 simply easier to restate the question and then tostate the
23 A Initiaily when we were retained, the information raguest, 23 answer and to distinguish the tws in beld type.
4 as’] recall, this one was cut there. We advised EPA that we | 24 "Q. Tjust have a few things I want to go overin this report
25 'had been asked to provide representation in the matter-and that [ 25  with you Specfcally on page 3,-you will see there's a
: _ . o Page 393?___ T : - -Page 3934
1 it was simply not feasible to provide fult and complete 1 guestion about 3i! persons.that are consulted-in the
4 responses on the time frame they had specified when they sent 2 preparation of the answer. Do you see that?
3 the infarmation request to our dlients. .And we asked for an 3 A. Which numbered question are you !ook:ng at?
4 extension of time, as I recall, of, I think, 60 days to reply 4 Q. Question 2.
5 to their information request: 5 A Yes. :
& Q. Allright. And did the EPA grantyou that request? € Q. Okay. 5o Mr. Lucas and Dr. Seall conferred, and thay rhen
7 AL No. As]recall, they gave us-30 days. But I would have 7 conferred together with you?,
B to go back and review the specifics of aur letters here. I 8 A Yes, - :
% think we got 30 days. 9 0. Andwas anyone e1se at the Butler, Snow firm mvolved in
12 Q. Now, atthe top of the second page, you tell Ms. Cox that — 10 those—ehscussmns‘-’ :
11 you're only covering the transmission of responses to the 11 A, Myself and Mr, Crawford :
12 information request and’ you're not responding to the rest of 12 Q. Ckay. Allright. I you would - that repart goes on to
13 her May 30th letter that we fooked ata moment aqgo; isthat . |13 provide a ot of information. I'm not going over ail of -- ail
1+ correct? T 14 of them, but just a few illustrative examples. For exampie, oni
15 A, That's what we said. - A : ' |15 page 4 in respense to Question 7, you sent all of the
1o Q. AndT think that covers -~ one other thing I wanted to |16 conveyance instruments for the parcels soid by Big Hill Acres
7 coveris on the third page. Again, you express your 17  ‘to the EPA hack i in the year 2000; is that correct? h
18  appreciation for har rereptweness to having a global meeting 18 A, Yes. Thavs what they asked for.
18 totry and get & final resolution of al the issues in the 15 Q. Allright. Then in Tesponse to Ne. 10 -- I'm gonna have
20 cose; comect? " S : 120 tofold this. The statemant is madza.in the response that in ~
it A, Correct: ' : . - 121 some cases surveying an initia! road and site preparation work -
12 Q. Now, lat's furs to what was sent.to Ms. Cox with that Jupe 22 was done even bafare Big Hil Acres, Inc., took title to the -
J3 3th, 2000, transmigsion, And I think you have a copy of that 23 property. What did you-mean by that? )
24 before you as well. It's 2 part of Exhibit 1193 actually. 24 A well, I_was recounting the history of the development that
LES Al ‘_do. It ts on Sig Hill Acres, Incorporated, stationary. 25 Dr, Beall and Mr. Lucas had given o us gaing back to the .
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1 i t‘:‘St]man But I'm just -~ sa the Jury will understand what
2 reciting -- they were -- in the answer here how they bagan iy ¥ou're sa /ng there, I Just. mcx one and show it to you, is
3 actual dévelopment activities at the layout stage back in those 3 . his the ¥be mapg that you're talking about that was prepareg?
4 days. . * A Yes. - '
5 Q. Okay. If you would, please; tuin tg page 5 and Queshion 5 % Oka;. Ang did you prenarﬂ' several sets of these types of
6 No. A11. And I'm not gonna take you through alt of this. But €& maps oun ing tne coursa c:f your dealings with the Enwronmentai
7 the Quest{on No. 11 asks for information about the oid lkegging 7 Protﬂtttor Agency during the Summer of 20007 _
8 roads being upgraded to meet county spexifications; correct? 8 A Ve did. There were several versions of those, It's a
9 And the construction of new toads for access to the property? 9 series of Dr. Sanders ‘maps. And we simply adapted his work {n
10 A Yes. . o Sl 10 tnis process of working with EPA to try to simplify aur
1 Q. And did you -- without taking us through everything in 11 conversations with them about when properties were sold, who
12 this report, did you for the next few pages go into some datail 12 deveioped what roads and when, what fots remained for saja ‘or
13 with the EPA as to every road that was on Big Hill Acres? i3 could be sold. It's the old business of a picture is worth a
14 A. Yes. Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas plﬁt {0 ﬁap’er the history of 14 lat of thousands of words. .
15 e~ TMEGEnLE of ol ';.;m.:--u;a L;ndugil WEsS Dacts, Al ia MA HARRIS: Yoor Honor, could T illq\aile a5 L0 wiiat
16 that's what this refiects is their story of how these roads 16. exhibit number that was and whether it's been admitted?-
17 came to be. - ) 17. MR. WITTMAN: It has not been admitted. I was using
18 Q. Okay. And are all of the rsads a‘ Big Hil-Acres cnunty 18 it simply a5 a demanstratwe at this pont.
15 roads, Mr, Paimer? 19 THE COURT: It's not yet been admitted,
20 ° A. To the best of my knowledge, they were dedicated as county |20 BY MR, WITTMAN: .
21 roads, yes, . 21 Q. Inany event, alt of the -- you say these were volumingus
22 Q. What does it mean to 'have 3 dedicated county road? 22  materials -- all of these voluminous materials were shipped out
23 A, Itgenerally means that when a subdivision is developed . 23 tothe EPA in June of 2000, which was roughly about -- jéss
1 2% and the roadways are then dedicated to the county, the intent 24 than two.months after you were retained by Mr. Lucas arig
25 - is to make those public roadways subject to county maintenance | 25 Dr. BealP :
o Page 3936 Fage 3938
1 and access. 1 A Yes, sir. Because as T mentioned, we had sougfit more time
2 Q. And when they becarmne county roads, is title to the roadway 2 than we were given to comply with the information request, - So.
3 transferred to the county? 3 alotof activity had to happen in a shart tlme to fully -
4 A Yes, as best I recali. 4  respond to these questions.
5 Q. Did you in this report -- or did Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas 5 Q. Had virtually al! of the raads at Big Hill Acres been
5 in this report give the EPA fufi information regarding the 6 completed orior to June of 2000° .
7 subdwvision plan -- and Hll girect your atention to page 8 of 7 A. AsTanswered when you asked me earlier, that was our
8 the report. . 8 understanding.
9 A Yes. You must he 'rererrmg to - 9 Q. Ihad forgotten I had asked you that earher Thank you.
10 Q. Quest:on 130 .- —_— 16 Let me direct your attention to page 9 of that réport and -
I A - Questlon 13. 11 specrf cally to Question 16. That question dealt with what was
12 Q. ves. : ' . 12' told ta the purchasers of the property?
13 A Yes. This s the answer that Dr. Bealt and Mr. Lucas gave 13 A Yas. _ _
14 tothat question about subgivision plans and plats. 14 Q. The question says lots which -- I Il reac the guestion:
15 Q And werg cameé Qr’ thosz plans and plats shipped to the. 15 “Frior to the sale of the Iots located at the site property,
16 Environmenta Pratection Agency in response to their Question TS what did responden[ tell the purchasers about the low lying -
17 No. 137 : o 17 property onthe property lots which i subject to periodic
18 A AsbestIzzn recall. ves. they were, Now, again, 1 18 fiooding?" And in bold we have the response that Mr, Lucas and
19 mentionzd awhila 3au that because of simply the volume of IS Dr. Seall gave with your assistance; is that correct?
10 material and the difficulty of soring through it document by 20 A. Tiis 15 the response that they gave. And thisis a point™ ©
21 cooument, we recommended that we shift to a new sat of maps |21 bezause we ware attempting 1o move them to prepare their
22 that would ba Th g5s2r o understand and work with and-wadld | 22 answers o thesa guastions whan | drove across the property
23 ataglance demt the 3 answers to the quastions on a map rathar 23 with them. And so with the Questions in-hand and I-was asking
"4 thanin words. _ 24 what they were going to éav, then this is what they said to me -
25 Q. I'm ganna e Nt some maps with you iater on'in your 25

. . P
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lnception of the:r m:tlai purchase in 1994, 5o we were simply

_
Page 3037

abeut this issue of flooding..
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1 i Q. What was the -- tnz auestion [ wanted to ask youis: What | 1 24 Tnera was ne language that | recall in the cease angaa i
] 2 was the problem with the fill and madequate Culverts installed < desist ordsrs that specifically mentioned the word sajeg o
3" by Jackson County? 3 lots.
4 Al Atone particular location, as T recall, on the south end T Q.. And |7 fac, the EPA i an earlier fetter [ showed you in
5 of the property, Mr. Lucag and Dr_-Beall painted out an area 5 May of 2000 had acknowledged that the ceasa and desigy d{d nct
& where some road work had been done. Part of that activity, as | 6 prevant the sale of lots, duw it'net?
71 recﬂ&cluded the repiacement of old culverts or the . VoA Yes, they did :
B instaliation ’r}f new culverts or both. And the paint they were 8 - THE.COURT: Mr. Wittman, would this be.a good time to
9 making is that the -- that larger cuiverts should’ have been & et the Jury have a mid-morning break?
10 used than were used. -And in the wake of heavy rains, water 10 MR. WITTMAN: Yes, Your Honor, _
11 ' could not. get through the undersized tuiverts, which caused 11 THE COURT: Ladiss and gentlemen You-may go back to
12 water to back up at that location untl it could then vent 12 the jury room. :
13 through the culverts. - _ 13 {Jury out at 10:51 a.m) :
i+ Q OCkay. Then finally, there's a question at the bottom of 14 - THE COURT: we'll take anout a 15 minute recess,
115 page 9, which asker wiether Mr. Licac snd e Renil hod 1z Rezgos Sl 1053 b, wndit 11:GY a.u.g
big mformed any puidiasers of iow Iying propertles of the 16 THE COURT: Are you ready, Mr. Wittman?
17 potential applicability of Clean Water Act Section 404. Do you 17 MR. WITTMAN: Yes, Your Honor,
18  see that? 18 THE COURT: Is the government ready?
19 A ido. 19 MR. GOLDEN: - Yes, Your Honor.
20 Q. And the answer is in boid print? 20 THE COURT: Bring in the jury, please.
21 A ltis. 21 Joryinat 11:10 am.} '
122 Q. Goes over to the foﬂowmg page" 22 MR. WITTMAN: May I proceed; Your Hongr?
23 A It does. 23 THE COURT: You may.
24 Q. Soitwas nat until May-ef 1999 upon being advised by the 124 BY MR, WITTMAN: _ _ )
25 Corps of Engineers of the potentiat applicability of Section 25 Q. I have one more question I want to ask you about that
Page 3540 . ’ Page 3942
i 404 that Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall undertook to make purchasers | 1. June Sth, 2000, report. And it relates to Question 17. .And
2 aware of that possibility; is that correct? 2 the answer, that again relatés to well, the guestion is
3 A. This is what they related to us. And at some point not 3 -whether Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall offer to provide services to
4 long thereafer, as a resuit of this conversation, [ recall 4 address the periodic flooding which would occur in the fow
5 that's when they decided 1o retain the services of Dr. Sanders. 5 lying areas of the site property lots, And the response refers
& Q. Were you aware, Mr. Faimer, that Mr. Lucas and Dr, Beall & back to an earlier answer and refiects that Big Hill strongly
7 were continuing tc sell lots at Big Hill Acres in June of 'JODO ' 7 disagraes with the contention that any of the property is
8 when this report was submitted? '8 subject to flooding; correct?
9 A -Yes I recall that their sales activities were still 9 A, That's correct. That's what Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas -
A0 engoing -~ at-least [ understood that from conversations with 10 represented to us. That was their answer. And thEil' answer '
11 them in early June. ¥l “was communicated to EPA. '
12 Q. What advice, if any, had vou given to Mr. Lucas and 12 Q. Several times? o _
13 Dr. Beafl about continuing to szil lots at Big Hili Acres in 13 A well, obviously at least twice in this document.
14 June of 20007 - : 14 Q. Al right. Let me show you what's been received in
i A. Well, the same advice that I mentioned earher We told 15 evidence as Government Exhibit 133 'It's & letter from Ms. Cox
16  them that the Clean Water Act does not prohibit sales of 16 dated July 26th, 2000, and addressed ta you. You have seen
17. regulated wetlands propertiss. 17 that before, haven't you? :
18 Q. Okay. 18 A, Yes, sir. : _
19 A So-— . 19 O And the purpese of the letter is to follow- uD on issues
20 Q. And had you continued to advise them that the restralnmg 20 raised in the June 22nd meating — 3 June 22nd meeting he!d at
21 order or the cease and desist order that was in ‘effect fromthe |21 rhe Mississippi DEQ in Jackson? :
22 Corps of Enginears in '99- cniy applied to developmant type 22 That's what it says, ves, sir.-
23 activities with respect to dredged or fill materiais? . 23 Q Now, on the second Eage af the lettar, T'd like to direct
4 A, That was th language of the orders themsalvas, 29 you ta the last paragrach of the order.” Now, did you at that
1 25 Q. ltdidn't acply to selting any lats, did it? 25 June 23nd meeting tell Ms. Cox.that Mr. Lucas had and would
Sl
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-1 rontinue to fease andror s2il lots at Big Hill Acres and I perking iot an relatad that message to my law partner ang
-2 Consolidated Invest nwnts“ Z  zsked that he' contact both- ::I:ent;. as quickly as possible, And
3 A I'did not. ' 3 tnatwas dens. And their response was communicated the next
4 - Q. WNO else was at that mesting? 4 day to Ms. Betry Ruth Fox who had hostea ar:d chaired the.
5 A, There were a numoer of persons from the Departmﬂnt o) 5 mesting.
6 Envrronmental Quahty, inciuding, as [ recal, two of the staff 6 Q. What dd you advise Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall to do
7 attnmeyqum the statz Department, of Heaith indluding maybe 7 regarding the sale of iots &t Big Hill Acres?
8 oneof therr“_attcrneys one or two people from U.S. EPA, "B A I advised them to valuntarily stop all sales transactions
9 " including Ms. Cox, and ma. -9 mmediataly as the government had demanded to, again, show
i0 Q. Wera you surpnsed at the receptton you-had at that 10 gocd faith attempt to promote settferment.
11 mesting? - ' _ . 11 Q. Addto yaur knowledge, did they do that?
12 A Iwas surprised at the number of people. Ianticipated 12 A. To my knowtedge, they did, yes. ‘Again, that was
13 sitting down with three attorneys -- with sormecne from DEQ, {13 communwated the vary next day by Mr. Crawford in my atsencn to .
:14 someone from the Deparment of Health and then someone from | 14 - Ms. Betty Ruth Fox, 35 I'recall.
‘ 15  EPA -- and mye<elf ra tri ag hpst wia reviid b advuanes sotilement LG AiE DEy Ruth Fox — was wiih th‘ upparrmﬂnr ar
{48 discussions. ] . : - 16  Environmental Quality at that pomt 85 an al‘torney? )
17 Q. And what did you understand the purﬁose of the meetingto |17  A. She was the senior attorney in the room on the 22nd As i
18 be, Mr. Paimer? ) _ 18 remember, the junior attorney with her was Ms Kelly Riley,. a5 |
19 A Wel, I went out there to be sure that all of us '_we.re 19 Irecall. )
20 focusing on the same cantentions about violations, an the 20 Q. Sothe Mississippi DEQ had been made aware as of June
21 wetlands front and on the wastewater front with the Department - [ 21 23rd --
22 of Health. There was yat a_nother front that I had advised our 22 A Yes.
23 clients early an that could be raised by the Department of 23 Q. - that there would be no further sales of lots &t Big
|24  Environmental Quality, and that is storm water issues. Alsg, 24 Hill Acres pending the resolution of the matier? ' )
' f 25  Clean Water Act issues. And we wanted — I wanted ta be sure 25 A Thatis what was communicated to them as the response of .
if : : ) ) ;
. _ Page 3944 Page 3948
1 thatwe were il preparnd to move forward toward the giobal 1 our dients to the govemments demand. _
2 settlement that I've referred to several times today. 2. Q. Is Mr. Lucas continuing 10 sell (ots that werg not
3 Q. Andif you wouid please describe for the ladies and 3 deli meated a5 wetlands by Dr. Sanders? ) _
4 gentiemen of the Jury what happ_ened at that meeting. 4 -1 dan't know what was happening on the ground. After the *
5 A, Wel, of course, we had a. ranging discussion. The 5 23rd of -- effective the 23rd of June, we understood that all
& meeting, to the bast of ; my knowledge, was not recorded. So & sales transactions - all sales tra nsactiens had been stopped.
7 everybody su‘rply tock notes and went away with their own notas, 7 Q. And that was comr_numcated o Ms. Fox?
5 But nght near the end of the meeting, Ms. Cox on behalf of EPA "B A Yes. ' ' ' .
9 made a demand to me that afl lot sates —- ail lot sales cease. 9 Q. Was it commiunicated to M<, Cax?
10 And T told her thar I waould immed:ately cnm_municate that demand 10 A Itwas communicated to Ms. Fox because she had convened
1l to Dr. Bealt and to Mr. Lucas and te reply back with their 111 and hosted the mesting. ' : : _
12 answer as quicklyas T could get to them. 12 Q‘ Okay. Now, even though that was doné on the 23rd of June,
13 Q. And that meeting that you attended was on June 9th, 1 13" on the 26th of July, Ms. Cox has issued a Section 309
14 believe? 14 administrative order; correct?
15" A’ No, s That was Junz 22nd. _ o 15" A. That's correct. :
16 Q. I'msorry. June 22n0. Okay. Now, this letter from 16 Q. Anddid you review the order that was |ssued at that time?
17 Ms. Cox is dated July 26th, 2000; Lor-ecP ' 17 A Yes, we did. o
I8 A, That's correcs, 1 Q. Before we get into the administiative'arder tell us, if
19. Q. and getting back to her s aternem to you that -- there we 12 vou wolld, Mr. Patmer, what is an administrative cease and
20 9o - about your client continuing to lease andor sell lats at 20 desist order?
21 Big Hill Acras, you said vou didn't kel ner that? 23 : A. 1tis a directive issued pursuant to federal statute,
11 A I certainly did riot sugaes &nytiung of the sortin the 22 which allows in this case EPA to order tha cessation of ce'rtairi
23 meeting. Again, [ toid avarybody in that recm that I would i3 actlvities. It is tantamount 6 an admlmstratwe injunction,
44 communicate the governmant's demand to Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas 24 1 you will, o
[' 25 which I dig literally as [ waiked out of the buifding in tha 25 Q. And I'm gonna refar ymi fo that adr’ninistratiy‘e i::rd_er, o
L .
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i ‘which the'j ]ury has seen before It is'a government exhibit. 1 areas that migit be left aione and mitigate, ali of thase-
2 MR W OTMAN; Ang ] beheve_ it's Government Exhibit 2 things had to be defarrad untrl we Zould get Dr Sanders’ work
-3 133 Your Honcr ] 3 tocdosure, ) . :

4 BY MR Wl‘l‘TMAN ' s Q. And dic you press Ms. Cox tu gﬂt "ha‘ accomplished; 1o Qet

5 . That's just the f|r5‘ pade of the administrative order; - 5 those dellneatrdns approved? )

& CDI’YECt" B AL YEs, S .

7 Al WelI ‘E.appears to be 5C.. : : ~ 7 Q. L2t me show ynu what's beah rn_a_rked as Defendants' Exhibit

8 0. Let me direct your attention back to.page 4 of the order & 824,

-9 and spacifically to Paragraph 16 g MR, WITTMAN: If 1 could shnw it just to the wntnesS
10 A, Excuse me? . : il fest, Your Honor?
11 Q. To Paragraph 16, whnch is not on your screen. 11 BY MRUWITTMAN: o
12 A, Okay. 1 thought my eyesight was failing there. 12 Q. ‘Do you recognize thrs as a copy of a Iel'ter that YOu sent
1 Q. Dkay Now, Paragraph-18, is that the portion of the order | 12 to Ms. Cox on August 3rd 20007 _
14 which directs Big Hill Acres to cease marketing, seling, 14 A It appears-to be so, yes,
15 canveylnq or ctherwise transferring title of the araperty vahi. ik MB. WITTMAM: Your Hanor, | offer iilu ewuem.e
16 after | receiving EPA approva! of the maps that Dr. Sanders was | 16 - Defendants' Exhibit 824. _
17 - working an? : 17 THE COURT: Any objection?
18 A, Thatis correct. i8 MS. HARRIS: No objection.
19 Q. Did you discuss this with Mr. Lucas? 19 THE COURT: Wlthout ob}ecnon :* WI" be marked and
20 A Yes. 120 admitted. _ _ _
21 Q. What advice, if any, did you give Mr. Lucas about this 21 * (Exhibit D-824 marked and received in evidence)
22 provision of the order? 22 MR WITTMAN: May I exhabrt it to the jury?
23 A Well, 1toid Mr. Lucas how surprlsed we were that the 23 BY MR. WITTMAN:
24 government wnuld be crderlng them to do something thatthey {24 Q.-aAnd the second paragraph of that Ietter Mr. Pa!mer does
25 stopped domg a month earher 25  that refer to the subject you were just tatking about with
_ o Page 3948 Page 3950 |

I' Q. Okay. Inyour opinion, was there a need for an 1 respect to approval of the deiineation maps of Dr. Sanders?

2 administrative C and D? ) _ 2 A Yes,

3 A Well, I didn't think so. But that was my viewpoint from 3 Q. Now, did you also respond to the July 26th tease and
4 the vantage point of attemptmg, agarn to move all of these 4 desist order from the EPA? ’

5 parties, especially the attorneys, along the lines of 5 - A Ibelieve we did, yes. : .

& sattlement. And especraﬂy since in good faith, our clients 6 Q. Let me show you what has been, [ beheve received in

7 had told us that they were going to stop marketing activities. 7 evidence as Defendants' Exhibit 818 the Ietter dated September

8 And we communicated that back to the-government and had no | & 12th, 2000, addressed to Ms. Cox.

g reason' to doubt that they were complying with their word. -9 MR: WITTMAN: And if ] may, Your Honor, I'd like to
18 Q. Did you have any conversations with Ms, Cox at the EPA 10 hand the witness-a copy because he can follow along a little
11 followrng the issuance of this administrative C and D? 11, easier? _

12 A AsT recall we sent a reply letter, yes. 12 .THE COURT: You may.

13 Q. And other than that, did you have telephone conversations | 13 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

14 with her? 14 BY MR, WITTMAN: o _ -
15 A Idon't recal] I couid have. But ] would have togo 15 . Q. And I want to show you just a few portions of that letter,
16  back and look at Butler, Snow records that I haven't seen in. - 16 if Immay. First of all, though, befare I take the first page

17 four years to give you an accurate answer on that, 17 off, that references in that first paragraph your hope that

18 Q. Okay. what were you doing, if anything,.in this time 18 Ms. Cox had reviewed Dr. Sanders' watlands report?

19 “frame rngardmg gatting apprcwa! of: Dr Sanders’ wetiand 19 A Yes. :
2n dellneatron" o 20 Q. Okay. Al right. And if may, just ta move thraugh
2t A lVeli ef course, we were making every effort to get that 21 this, direct your aftention over ta page 3. This refersto a .

22 essential piece of th15 -- of this matter to closure- because so 27 development evoiution map?
| 23 many things rested on it. Not oniy the issue of resumption of 23 A Tes.

24 'the sale of lots, but then all akeemipts to craft a plan to give 24 Q. Do you see that? Dld you sand th:s mag to |~‘Is Cox with
'LZS td EPA, 3 work out rﬂ terms of areas that might be restared 35 your letter of September 12th?

16 (Pages 3947 to 3950)
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Page 395:
- A. Let'me take a "10'w=r.t Mr ertman to see if we said here

we did :mluoe iter that 17 would he sent later. Apparentiy,
‘we did incllias it with this ietter, yes.

MR \r TTTMAR:
tHe scresn. And 1'd

Your Honor, if I could switch over 1o
liks to exhibit to the jury what has been.
recerved Jn ewdenca &3 Government Exhibit 142,

BY MR WITTMAN

Q. Isthatat
Mr. Palrier?

opy of the map that you sent to Mg, Cox,

A. Tt appears to be, VEs. . :
Q. Okay. And 1n this lerer, you talk about tr‘e deveiopment
hawing evclvec ike a Dat:“WDrk quilt. .Da you recall thag?

© AL ldo.

0. What dic vou maan ' that as vou [nr\k_ar_rhp evhitut vy

- &ant?

A Very early on, we asked Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas to give us

7 first an itemization of the specific parcels by section,

: townsﬁip and range that were included in both the Big Hill

. Acres and Consblrdated Investments portions of what had come ta
+ be known, as ['ve testified already, as Big Hill Acres. Once

we got the flist, the itermzabron, again, my preference was to -

. depict ail of that on a map so that the evolution of what at - -

thal paint in time appeared to be a farge development did not -

- begin fife that way but wound up that way over a number of -
-years through the acquisition of first one parcel, then ansther

Q- =R s T W T N Y RSP

e
fd ke 3

[

-
¥

© particular recitations, mainly the assumptroes that wers. there.

: adminlstratwe C and D, You came aboard in April of ?000

" Dr. Sanders and by others nat only to get the wetlands '
 delineation work done but efforts that had been undertaken by

Page 3953

Q. Okay. And in the next paragraph you tell her, do you
not, that you re assureo by B-g Hill Acres and Fonsalldated
triat &l sales tranSECUCI—l: cas sed on rrrdavj in2 3rd, 2000)
. That's correcs. - :
Q And that's’ ]USL wihat yor. communrcaued to Ms Serty Ruth -
Fox? a - :
A Ttis
Q. Okay Now, if you would, I'd fike, you to teII the iadreg
and gentlemen of the jury what efforts Big Hill Acres and
Mr. Lucas had made to comply with the EPAs demands through
this peridd of time that you're respondmg to the

s rrnrl--‘ .

A. I'hat's right Cur firm -- _
Q. You're now into September of 2000, about five months?

A. Yes. But what we were attemptiig to do here, Mr. Wittrran
is to recount for EPA activities that had taken place durmg
those few months when our firm was engaged hera as weII as {o
alsa recount work that had a!ready bean underizken by

r

our clfents to stabilize areas that had been subjected to
erosion and things ke that to simply make the government
aware of the efforts that were bemg exerted and the relanve

f
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Page 3952
parcel and they were ail purchased in a way that there was

some - they were contiguous, but they certamly were not. ail
“hought at one time.

" Q. And this was your effort to explain how the project had
-evoived?.

CALYes, if was.

Q. Going back to your response to the adni:mst rative Cand D
issted in July of 2000, Tw arqt 1:0 turn your attention, if 1
could, fo page 5 of your response.

MR, WHTMAI\ And |flcouid have back-the Eimo Your

Honor?

BY MR. WITTMAN- :
Q. In that second paragraph on that page, you say, "It's

unfortunate that the 309 order was based on these assumptions,”

and refemng toa port:on of Ms. chs Ietter to you In which
she enclosed the admnistrative C ang D |s that correct?

A Yes

Q. Ang why drd you drsagree with Hs Cox and call her :
assumptions erroneous?

A. Orders that are issued pursuant to thrs and other sections
which empower EPA to issue these orders follow the format that
begms with recitatians. Those recitations then are followed
by mandates. So e took issue with several of the recitations
that she set forth in the ord-‘*r which then becams the basis
for the mandatas. and S0 we expressad cur objections to those

o
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Q. what; if anythmg, had Big Hill Acres done to deat wr"h
_erosion at the site?

“A. Well, as best 1 recalf it would be typical management

=R - - ARV R P R

- whether or not

“invokad and 404 doesd't appiy, then those protectwe measures 1
“are not required. Only in limited crrcumstances as]

-some effort at erosion control necessary where you have had

Page 3559
Costs assaciated wrth those &fforts to deal wrth the issues

that had been raised.

practices, placing hay or maybe planting grass, other things
like that that would either stop or certa:nly |mpede the
progress of erosion that had commenced when the trmber was - |.
remoued and left the land largely unprotected. .
Q. Okay. Is some measure of erosron control necessary when
you've had large scale trmber cperatlons on a tract of land?

AL Well, there again, the answer to Your question depends on
the tlmber r_uttmg Dperanons are a regulated or
exempted activity.

Q. Okay.

A. And if they are a regulated actnwty, Lhen yes, Iogaers

must émploy what's called best managemont prarnces in the
furtherance of their Ioggmg operations If the exemption is.

to access roads and that sort of
thing. But the actual fogging operations are then exempted.
Q Whether it's requlated or unregulated by the cPA, isr't

understand it, with respect

large scale tlmber operations?

17 (Pages 3951 to 3954)
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2000, had Big Hill and Consolidatad substantially complied with

Page 2955 - Page 3057
1 A WeII after the operatron; Er- ouer tha other dlmensmn - 1 tne earherregquest for :nrormatlon t'lat they haz recstyad fram
2 of all of this ven,' compiex matter that Ive mentioned a time 2 the Epa? . )
"3 or twois the emergence in the 1990 of storm water regulatory 3 A Asferas we knew, they had.- And thass + “he . mentioned
4 provisions, - And so there are currﬂnt reqmrements for various 4 kanthig o3ragraph. ) . '
5 kinds of activities from construction to mining and to other’ 5 Q. Okay. Anc you go on tc say it diun"‘ apoear t 2t a fmal B
) actlvmﬁs\gat do reguire best manauemﬂnt practices o prevent 6 prepesal and fnal resalution would ocZur sean snaugh tg
7 sednmenﬁffom leaving job sites, construciion sites that might .7 forestall severe and irreparable harm. What did ¥ou mea_n:by
& enter waterways and cause pollution. o 8 thar?
S Q. Now, atsome point after June Z3rg, EDDD,' when Big Hill "9 A As] menticned a few moments aga, an ultirmats s=-*tl-=-nent.,
10 Acres voluntarily stnpped sell'mg lots, did you ask the EPA's 10 of all sssues could not occur untif the wark prr:ach.r:k rrom '
11 permission to allow the compames to start sei!mg lets again? 11 Dr. Sarders had bear finished, had been atcepted and then could
12 A We did. . 12 be used for the additional activities that nad to follow in
1 Q. And I'm gonna show you vat s been marked as Defendan_ts' il terms of watiands assessments and rmitigation p[anmng
i3  Exhibit 820, a lefter that vou wrote tn Ms. Thanne o an 14 Fuarsthing dennﬂdw:! o0 getting that dore. Ang s vrore v
15 Cctobe 20. And 1 ask you il you can wenbiy I, 15 not there. 5o it was necessary that we ask for ths reiief
16 A. Itappears to be a copy of that letter, yes. I can't see 16 before Dr. Sanders' work was finished.
17 the letterheéd, but -- 17 Q. Would that also be true of the after the fact Dermnt that
13 Q. I'llhand you & copy. 18 Mr. Lucas was trying to get" .
19 MR, WITTMAN: 1 offer mto ewdence Defendanrs 19 A Ok, yes. That — if it ever would have occurrad, i would
20 Exhibit 8240. 20 have ocrurred only at the end of the entire prnces;. '
21 THE COURT: Any Ob]ECtIOI‘l"’ 21 Q. Okay. Now, did you recgive a response from the EPA
22 MS. HARRIS. I believe lts uouernment Exh:b:t 134, 22 granting Big Hill Acres the permission to sall certain lots?
23 but I'm not sure. ' . 23 - A, We did. We were very pleasad to get that response. It .
24 THE COURT: Has it already been marked then? ) 24 was in the form of a letter. '
25 © MS. HARRIS: It may have ‘been. I don't know it 25 Q. Okay. And this letter is 1n evidencs, [ believe. I don't
: f .
_ Page 3956 Page 3958
I was admittad as that, But if sp -- . 1 have the exact government Exhlbtt I have the -
2 THE COURT: Is Government's 134 admitted, Molfy? 2 MS. HARRIS: It's 135. _
3 THE CLERK: It has been. - 3 MR. WITTMAN: Let me make sure it's the same. It's
3 THE COURT: That's Government's 134 already. | 4 1357 ’ '
3 MR. WITTMAN: If T may, Your Honor, TH refer to it 5 MS. HARRIS: Uh-hu.
6 aslevernment'"l'S"% and we'll not ofrer'yet another copy of it. & MR. WITTMAN: Again, I have a defense 2xhibit number
7 THE COURT Very good. 7 but T wilt use the government's exhibit to avoid duphcatlon
8 _BY MR. WITTMAN: 8 BY MR. WITTMAN: ) ) :
9 Q. I just want to refer you he Iast paragraph onthat 9.7 .Q. Let me show you what is in evidence, Mc_Palmer, as
10 page. And tell the jury, if you would Nhat you were asking 10 Government Exhibit 135, And let me give You 3 copy,
11 the EPAtg agree to in this letter. _ ' _ 11 MR. WITTMAN: MayIapproach Your Honor, so -
12 A, Well, as Ive already testified, Mr. Wittman, Dr. Beall 12 THE COURT: You may. ' _'
13 and Mr.-Lucas advised us and wa in turn advised the government, | 13 - Q It may'help you to follow along Is that your esponse
4 specifically DEQ, that they had ceased sales operatmns on 14 fram the EPA with respect to your request for reher'?
15 June23rd. Hera we were QOciober 20th, almost three months. 15 A. Ibelieve it is, yes. _
16 later, with no income from that source coming in. And we then [ 16 - Q. Okay. And did the £PA grant permission for Big Hui Ac- es
17 asked the uovefnment -- this was Drobabiy' our first request of , 17 to sell additional lots?
183 several - to rnlease some of those parcels for marketing and 18 - A, As I just said, they did. We were vary ple=s=d with that
19 hopeful sale ta begm o regeneraie some cash flow. 1% There were some inadvertent mistakes | in this letter, whmh were
20 Q. And you were dealmg in this requesL specifically with 53 ' 20 corrected, but yes.
21 lots? ' 21 . Q. Okay. And there were several d|ff=rent eate:an:s of Ic:ns
22 A, ves, in this raquast. _ : < |22 that were included in thts response from the £PA, were there,
3 Q. [ just direct you to the iasu Daragrapn an page . -~ ar 23 not’ '
4 the second to last paragraph on pag2 I. By October Z0th of | 2% - A, That is correct.
L“S 25 Q. And the first category which we have on the sereen right.

|
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wetlands areas first be zvoided, if at all possibie. And o

: .
- ' Page 3933 | Page 3961
1 now relates to property that clearly didn't contain any 1 the extert that they can't be aveides, then proposed impacts
2 jurischctional wetiands that could be marketed and sold - 3 .mwuEt B2 minimizac o the maximnum ax:ent ,,oSSlore And wnatever
3 immediately? : 3 13 left over tha: can t pe avonded ang mmmtzeo tha—s must he
< A That's right. This is what beth we and EPA came to call % muGgated. ' _ ' '
5 the Categoiy 1 lots, lots which according to Dr, Sandérs’ work 3 And rmitigation accurs in s_éverai differeng Ways -- gan -
6 producgd:d not contain jurisdictional wetlanas. And 0 & gtcur in Several different ways. There may be-additional
7 they - tﬁey‘were released. 7 tracts on the propérty that would be acceptable to the -
B Q. And the second category was some lats that the EPA claimed | 8 government for mitigation. There may be tracts off the
9 contained some jurisdictional wetlands but which had not bean '9 prooerty owned by the developers Anc if all that fanls there
10  impacted; correct? ' 13 are rnitigaticn banks that are available to satisfy those --
11 A Thatis corréct, - : 11 what's zallec campensatory mltlgatlon requirements.

112 Q. and I'm just gonng fold this 53 we can see the'second half 12 7 Q. Sois what you're saying that if someone has onveloped a
13 of this letter. or this page. And perm:s:.:cm was given to SeH 13 subdivision and there's some wetlands that happen ta be in that
14 lhose lots-as well? ) : : 14 snbhdivision, thar it's nnthie tn a0 te A wetands hank anA
15 AL Ves. OF wurse, ey §meoliuned, some corrections iad © 15 provide miugation property -- ditferent property, 1t you _

16 be'rnade. Thankfully we were working from those coiored ma'ps, 16 will --to make'up far the property that was inadvertently
17 not from boxes of paper or this would have been nightmarish, 17 included i the subdivision? ' .
18  very tedious. But yes, EPA did release some of the lots in ' 18 A Weil the Dank can be used to compensate for the wetlands )
19 Category 2, those that Dr. Sandars had delineated as having 12 losaes -- that's calied funictions and vaiues losses -- of that
20 some jurisdictional wetlands, but also had found that none of 20 particular wetland ecosystem. And once an assassment i i5 done
21 those particular areas showed signs of any of the |mpacts that 21 ofthe losses, then the developer will be required to o
32 £PA had calegorized, as I mentioned earlier. 22 rompensate for those losses in any one of several ways T've __
23 Q. The EPA was saying those iots could be sotd if you made 2 21 just described. N
2% disclosure of wetlands? _' 24 Q. Justtokeepit simp!e_for me. You essentially replace
25 A Yes. EPA, as a candition for releasing these what 1 would 25 wetlands that have been somehow included in a subdivision with
Page 2960 Page 3962
1 call Category 2 iot5 said that they would insist that, at the 1 other wetlands that can compersate for it; is that r|ght'f‘
2 point of sale or advertssnng for sale, prospeciive purchasers 2 A Yes. Andof course, that would apply sot Justto
3 be given written notice that - if it applied. That in this 3 subdivisions but industries or anything else, any development i
4 case, certainly in Category 2, it did apply. It did not apply < where regulated wetlands are involved. _ . .
5 to Category 1. That a portion of the property that they were S Q Allright. Did you advise your clients they couid sel
& considenng for purchase did contain some oelmeated wetlands | & the iots that had been released by the £EPA? o
7 according to Dr. Sanders’ maps. 7 A ldid. As 1 mentioned earher our firm rEqu:res that we _
8 Q: Then finally, the third category consisted of iots the EPA § transmi -.orrespondence like this to our chents. We did. And
9 . contended contairied ]unsdictronal wetlands which had been & our mstructions as we said earfier, were to meticuiously
10 mpacted cofract? 10 comply with what the government had specmed hiere S0 that they
11 A That's correct. 11 could begin to regenerate some income.
12 Q. And that group of lots, the EPA said could not be sold at 12 Q. Okay. Did you respond to Ms Cox on or about November
13 al?. : 13 1st, 20007
4 A Well, no. EPA said that these Category 3 lots as 14 A | believe [ did, yes. _
15 conditions far sale would, of course, require the notice that 15 Q. And 'l show you what is in evidence as Defandants’
16 they wouid require for Category 2, but then they would be™~ | 16  Exhibit 822, which is a letter from you to Ms. Cax? .
17 reviewed only.on a case by case basis, as the letter states, iT A Yes. It appears to be so, yes. '
18 But then the additional conditicn would be premitigation of 18 Q. You responded pretty qu'rcklv, dian’t you?
13 four of those identified altarations or impacts that appeared 19 A, Well, if the dates - '
20 on Dr. Sande:s’ maps. 30 THE REPORTER: | didn't hEa"J"ic:" you said.
21 Q. What do you mean by premitigation? . 21 BY MR, WITTMAN:
22 A. When a subdivisicn is submitted to the Carps of Engingers {22 Q. You have got a tet‘er dated Cctobar 31 ,ang you responded
23 for review ang approval;if there are delineated wetlands on 33 November 17
24 'the property, then the law is going to requirs that thase 22 A T would call that quick. .
15 ' werg you? |

Q. You were in 3 hurry to sall some fots,

9 (Pages 3959 to 3962}

MARGARET W. SEAL, RMR, CRR



A1 wasnt but the clients were

Q. And you then go of to say or discuss w:th her -- 1 think

you referred earlier in your tastimony to some typograph_rcai
errars or whatnot. I don't want to oet into that. But you --

to surmmarize, yeu'diseussed some minor inconsistencies between
whatyau had requested and what they agreed tg; correct?

A. Thatenght This is very intricate analysis, and some
inadvertent mistakes were made in EPA's review., We called

* those to their attennc_n, which they then - they later

corracted.

Q. All right. Then you tell her, do you not, on page 2 that
you understand her position on the third category of lots right
here, ‘but you wanted tc st_udy that some more; right?

A Yes. A

sl .L\nrl frn:llu ln I—hn rnrn-—ld 'ﬁ I= et narsoTs
- Il

1 frartaye ] up Woyou toll her
that additional Jots were coming available for resale because
of defaults-and resulting foreclosures. That's the portion 1

hughfighted there. What did you mean by that when you talked

- about the additiona! lots becoming availabie for resale?

A. WeII we Iearned from Dr. Beali and Mr. Lucas that -- bear

-in’'mingd now, this was late 2000 and properties had been sold
-for a period in excess of six years by this time. In the

course of those six years, some of these sales transictions had
failed for various reasons causrng the property to be returned
to the’ inventory of the corporatrons And those - the
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'own But we did say, given what the govarnment
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Page 3955
Was insisting
LDon in that fetter, that it was absolutely essentral that with

respect to Category 2 (ogs, that the disciosure statament- e
usad in gvery cass and tnag the gtsclosure statemeng and
attending cantraz* be submittec to EPA, as SPA requir.ed‘

Q. Okay. - - _
A YWa recommended strict r:amphance with the governmants
protocols, :

Q. Did Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas include .anguage in the
contracts after that time identifying possibie wetlands?

A Well, they included. the notice that the government -
required and that the government prepared in those sajes
coniracts. As I Just mentioned, | recall two changes that they-
mage in their own sales agreemeant 1 den't racall the cngrific
natdre of the second chignge. Bul they did add some ianguage to
their own sales agreement. That was nat part and parce! of the
EPA required natice, : :

Q. Are there any magic words in the Clean Water Act that
vsould De required notification language that you know of?

A. Not in.the Clean Water Act, no.

Q. And -- well, are there any specific requlations in there
that tell you what kind of language you're supposad to use?

A, Clean Water Act regulations?

Q. Yes.

A. I'm not aware of any.

et

1.
2
3
.
5
6
T
8
9

11
12 -
13.
14
15 -
15
17
13
15
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13
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Page 3964
locations of those lots were, of course, at random all over the

“deveiopment. Since they came back r_nto inventory, then our

clients wanted to have the opportunity to remarket them - to
resell what had already been sold, developed and occupied in
years past. . _ )

Q. In the normal course, would the resale of a lot that had |
been soid years earlier involve any need to be concerned over 3
Section 404 permit from the Corps of Engineers or the EPA?

Al well, it depends on where the lotis. First of aff -- but

T _in terms_of the sale of the property itself, we've covered that ;

several times. We'ra back to the fact that there is no
pronibition in Section 404 pertzaining to saies.

Q. There would be no prohibition on resgle; I take it? -

A, Well, a resale is a second sale,

Q. Okay. Far engugh. After you got Ms. Cox's letter of - )
Qctober 31, 2000, what advice, if any, did you give Mr. Lucas —
and Dr. Beall regarding language in the sales contracts that
they were using to notfy purchasers that the property may
contain wetlands? _ - '

A. When we got zopies of the -- what [ call the transactional
gocuments, the contracts, that had been used to effect the
sales of these iots pver 3 number of years — early cn, the

firm said our job is wetlands and environmental issues, We're
not going to presume to deal with your transactional documents,
They had made are or tvo changes to those documents of_their"

e e R+ T F D O FU R Ny

it
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Page 3066 |
Q. Okay. Did you advise Mr Lucas to make any use of the

defineation maps -- the wetlands dalineation maps that

Dr. Sanders was working on?

A, We did,

Q. What did you tell them ta do?

A, Dr. Sanders’ work had progressed substantially by that
time. As [ mentkioned earlier but did not explain, Dr. Sanders
was having some _significant technical difficulties with his
cartographer, his contractor, in converting field data through

a computer system to maps. Bur notwithstanding that, we .
recommended that these maps be -- | rememnber specifically -
recommending that they be mountad and made avaiiable at the
sales office wherever folks were talking about buying property
50 that not only they could be - they could discuss it, but

they couid actualfy see on Dr. Sanders' maps the specific
conditions that he had depicted on those maps. :

Q. And did you also sugdest they make ropies of the wetlands
delingations available to praspective purchasers? :
A Yes. . -

Q. Now, moving on through the fail - we're gown to, T guess,
the last thing I showed you, Novamber st of 2000. Throughout
the fall of the year 2000, Mr. Paimer, would you describe what
you did to assist your clienrs in camplying with the concemns -
of the Environmental Pratacion Agency to resolve this matter?
A. As I mentioned several times, the main effort that we were

20 {Pages 3963 to 3966)
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abour that ¢ time nzd rsen Cut“cam:aﬂy, if ti"at s whar you re

" Pagz 39" - Page 3[:-:9
1 btyngto move gionc was the Sarde's work. And T've said i referring to. . :
2. repeatedly that shat was the main Lnrng that smod in the way Q. Well, let me show you what's besn reczived 1n, c-wdence as
3 inour view of n2gouating & dﬁal se Eement with EPA. o 3 Govemnment Exhibit -- it's actuslly a defensa exhibit, top.
s Nav,. callarerai s thew dn =55ue5 and a!l of that, of < Deferse Exhipit 823, [ don't nave the JOVErament's number. -
5 COUrse, trere wers onge: ﬂg Icsuns with the state D-='1:'ar|:m¢-nr of 5 Have vou ever seen this pubiic notice dates November 3, "DD{J"‘
& Health Bhgut on sie v.as:av EEr syslems But in terms of what "6 A {have, . e
7 owe were“tﬂ,mg te do is simply, agair, o repeat myself over ) 7 Q. Ang when did chu first see |t’
8 : and over, move the matter tawards seL-.lement We had asked for | B8 & WEI as pest I recall, either cn or aftar Noaember 3rd
9 anon sita meaung with representatives of EPA and the 9 2000, :
1 Department ofJL.cucn, wnich gczurred, so that we couldt al' 10 . Q. Dl Ms. Cox or anyscdy. glse at the EPA uweyou an\; natica
11 - drive the propnr‘y S0 we were domg tnmgs like that agam 11 that the EPA intended o send this nauce out?. - : -
iz '_ trving [2 move the mattar along. ) 12 A, Not this specific notce. In an earhier letter before '
13 Q. in that connecson; did vou recommend o Mr. Lucas anc:! - 13 Ms. Cox left Region 4 and Mr, Schwart took over the fite, she
114 . Beall that thev rerain additional experts ta assist then in 14 caid jn ane of the (etarc that she sent tn me that they wers
tis . Ciofling & comprehensive rutigationg plan? We lalhed sboui . i5 concernea about public reaction to these exhibits-and the
156 mitigation & moment ago. Did you advise ther ta do that? 16  pubiic awareness of these issues. And that they were about to
17 - A 1did. We did. Mr. Crawfard and T' dld ' 17 embark upon a public Information and eutreach L3mMpaign of some
18 Q. Did they do it? 18 sort. She did not, as I remember i that letter, specify what
12 A Theydid. Butit camz a iittle bit later.” ‘But we gat to : 19 it would be. But we then ultimately took this to be that,
20 'a point where the Sanders’ work was essentlairy completa 1 20 Q. And did she ever teli you that they were gonna send this
21 .say essentially because, franuy, we were not able to resolve 21w all residents of Big Hill Acres? - : :
22 the techmizal difficulties that Dr. Sanders was hawng with his 22 A Wehad no discussions, as | remembar, at all about this
23 .cartogra pher And the time samply carne to put the work o bed .{ €3 document prior to the time it was released. And as’ memary
24 And so we put the work to ‘bed, acknowledgmg that there 124 serves me correctly, even thereafter. _
25 ;probably were arrors i the work But we wera hopmg - and 75 Q. Okay. and what was yaur reaction to this notice?
. S .
B : Page 3968 Page 3970
1 EPA.as well - that the arrors would be reiatuve-y 1 A WeH our concerns, of cburse again, were o try to work P
2 mseg nificant in the farger scale of things. 2 through these very difficult | 1ssues, to deal with other:
3. But then the hext phase of our efforts to craft a work out 3 problems that were arising with respect to septic systems that |
4 had to then begin.- We recommended after conversa t:ons with 4 people were reporting not working properly. And | honestly -~
5 Dr. Sanders that new team members be brought intodo twa 5 my personal apinion about this was that it was -- it was beyond"
& specific thrr'as That is, the watlands assessment -- [ 6. swnply informative. It was mf[ammatory
7 referred to that a fittle bit ago - to take Dr. Sanders' work 7 Q. All right,
8 product and then get on the ground and do therr specialized _ B: MR. WITTMAN: May T have just the screen Tor the
S work to do wetlands assessmants. And than based on the:r own 9 witness, Your Honor?
10 conclusions about restoration versus mitigation or both, t6 10 BY MR. WITTMAN:
11 prepare a plan to be submitted to EPA for consideration as the 1 Q. Let me show you what's been marked for Jdentlfcatlon as
12 ultimate basis for resclution of the wetlands 1ssues. 12 Defendants’ Exhibit —
13 Q. And whe wers those peapie? 13 THE COQURT: You want the document cam?”
14 A The firm is Wigiife Technical Services, Ina:Orporatnd i4 MR, WITTMAN; I'm sorry. | just wanted the witness -
1S Itsin Vicksourg, Mississizp. The principals at that time -- 15 to be able to see it, not the jury. That's af. :
16 Idon't know if tney still are -- were Mr. Bill Tomfmsan ar*d 14 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 1 m|sunclersmod_w'hat you
17 Mr. Miks Goff. 17 said. Go ahead. '
18 Q. Did anything happen in Hovember of 2000 to'causa a problem | 18 MR. WITTMAN: Okay.
19 for Big Hill Acres in'terms of resalvmg this mr:utter7 19 BY MR. WITTMAN: _ : :
20 A well, 1 dont know what you're refarring t2, Mr. YWittman, 20 . Q. Imgonna show you what's been marked for identification -
21 but the situation in the whels C’\mmunr"y had become v very 21 as Defendants' Exhibit 825 and ask It vou can wentify that.
‘2 agitated and unsatiied over not only the wetlands issyas, _ 22 A. it appears to be a ietter from me to Or, 82all and
23 There vas @ Cand tar of press coverage of these issues and tha 23 Mr. Lucas.
24 miastewa:er issu2s, The cegres of tension in the commty 24 .0 Okay. .
' 25 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, 1 offer into evidence

21 {Pages 3567 to 3970_}
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1+ Defendants' Exhibit 825. 1. toxics management division in EDA Remon 4.. One of the senior
I THE COURT:- Any objection? 2. staff tembers there. At the time I wrote this letter to her,
3 M3, HARRIS: Ygur Honor, we've already addressed this 3 she was the dlremo. of the watﬂr management dI\HSIOn and had
4 at the berich. . : 14 just a55umed that new respdnsmiht\, as 1 recall, in Region 4.
5 ' . THE COURT: wWhat i your objerticn? T know you' 5 Q. Iwantto direct your attentian, if I may, to the last
" <) addressed it at the bench. :.‘DE"IfICBHY what is your objection 6 paragréph_ on the page. You teil Ms. Banister that a .
7 o this docsment? 7 jurisdictional determination had ot bean made: is that
8 MS. HARRIS: “That it was not provided in discovery, 8 correct? © '
9 andit's irrelevant. 9 A That's torrect.
10 THE COURT: -You can mark it for identification 10 Q. And ome of the central :ssues in: this case befare thls _
11 . purposes, and the witness can testify regarding what occurred. | 11 jury is whether the federal government has any regulatory power
12 ' MR. WITTMAN: Okay. : 12 over Big Hifi Acres and Mr. Lucas under Section 404 of the -
i3 (Exhibit D-825 marked for |dent|fn_ation) 13 Ciean Water Act, isntit?
14 BY MR. WITTMAN: . 14 & Yag . ) . )
15 0 Well tel ug -- fﬂi' the jury, ¥ you would, Mo Palmer, 5 @ Did you coniinue Lo press for an on site meeting? | think
16- based upon your recollection: of events at the time -- and if 16  you've mentioned that earlier.
17 that letter refreshes, you may refer to it - what advice, if 17 A, Yes. '
18 any, YOu gave to your clients after that EPa publrc notice was 18 Q. And why did Yyou want an on site meeting st this pcmt in
18 issued. : S i 19 . December of '*DOD’ _ . :
20 A well, T can't see the whole letter. 1 see & couple of 20 A Well, at that time - and 1 dont remember exactly when it -
21 paragraphs Could T see thé whole Ietter please’ 21  occurred -- the Department of JUSIICE became involved in the
22 Q. There you go.’ . 22 mafter along with EPA Region 4 personnel, both program and
123 A Okay. 23 legal. Sol s:mply renterated my befief that we would all be
24 Q. Ithink that's it. 24 better served by. gettmg tngelﬁer down here near the . .
25 AL Well, this is an-example of a Iawyer being mad: And I 25 develppment so that we could all -- espeually for the new
i
Page 3972 Page 3874
1 was. And I was writing to my chents because they wers as 1 Department of Justice personael -- recall and reflect on
2 well. And I just expressed my feelings on that point. Butin 2 everything that had gone on and to then move from this
3 the face of that, T stilt.came back to-our effofts to move 3 'mspectmn of the premises, as we would call it, into our
3 forward to try to get to resolution. : 4 settlement discussions. .
S Q. Did you believe that the '-nwronmerltal Protection Agenr:,» S G Okay. Andlat me show you what's been marked -
& was.employing u_n_e_tl.'nca.l_sa_cpcs'«' _ & - MR Wl’T‘I’MAN [ think Exhibit 827 has been received
7 A, Well, T-said it in this letter. And if 1 didn't believa 7 in evidence. I'm not sure. So Tl offer it again just to
8 it, I wouldn't have said -it: 8 make certain,’ ‘We would offer Defense Exhibit 827,
9t Q. Did you advise your clients’ ignts what recourse, if any, they g THE COURT: Has it got a corresponding government's .-
10 had at this paint? 10 exhibit number? Because it has not been admitted as a‘clefense
1A Well,. it's right there an the screen, These processes 11 exhibit. . _ _
12 ultimately, ultimately will lead to a point where respondents, 12 MS. HARRIS: Tt does not, Your Honor.
13 in this case in an administrative action, will have their day 13 THE COURT: You can show it to the witness.
14 incourt. But they don’t.get there for a fong time. 14 MR. WITTMAN: He's identified it.
15 Q. Despite all of that, did You continue to try and reach an . | 15 THE CLERK: He just did. _
16 amicable settlement of this problem with the £pa? 15 MR. WITTMAN: He just did. He identified it.
17 A, Well, of course. Wa had no reason to deviate from our 17 MS. HARRIS: To everybody. _ e
18 plan. : S o 18 MR.WITTMAN: I thought it had been offered. But I
19, Q. Let me refer you, if [ may, to Defense Exhibit 827 and ask { 19 - was in error, But T wifl now offer i,
20 youif #ou identfy that as the letter you wrote on December 7,120 - THE COURT: Any objection? -
21 2000, to Ms. Beverly Banister -- 21 MS. HARRIS: Not at this paint, Your Henar.
22 . A Yes: . 22 THE COURT: Without objection, it will be marked and
23 Q. - with the EPA. And first of all, tell us who is 123 admitted. _ _
24 Ms Banistar? 24 {Exhitit _D—827 marked and recaived in evidence} .
25 A Ms. Banister now is t"IE ector of the air pesticides and 25 Please try to remind me -- since Tam the

THE COURT:

22 {Pages 3971 to 3974)
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EPA: Correct?

S _ Page 3977
1 onecontrolling the videg, i€ there is a document that's not o1 A ‘rns . '
2 been admitted, gither side, pieasa rarmind me to. 2_' MR. W ITFMAN T 1mav, le: me appriach the wltness
3 MR. WITTMAN: 1 though" that ane had. That was not 3 end give him a full-copy of that, Yaur Honer. :

4 onecounsel indicated an DDJE"EIOI'! to this mc-rmng *hoqgm 4. BY MR, WITTMAN:
5 it had been admitted. Let me make sure, i 5. Q. Thisis Defense Exhibit 57¢. Lo
6 - _~THE COURT: It's admifted now. _ 6 MR, WITTMAN: And we would offer Defendants Exhibit
7" MR:. WI'ETMAN Any objection to lhat? . 7. 529 into evidence at this point. o
8 MS. HARRIS: No. 8.  MS.HARRIS: No objection, © . S
9. BY MR, WITTMAN: - 9 THE COURT: Without objection, it wnil be marked and
107 Q. [ show you a copy of a letter dated Septembér 21st, ..OOO 10 admitted. o
11 M. Paimer, from the Environmental Protaction Agsency and ask |1t {Exhibit D- £29 marked and re_ewed in ewdence)
12 you if you recognize that s a response from Mr. bchwart ta 17 BY MR, WITTMAN: o . : .
13 ¢ your earlierletter, 13 Q. You mentioned earlier some problarns tnat, Dr Sanders was
14 A Ido. 14 having with mans -And take 2 look at what you haue docrribnd
15 Q. Okay. 15 * here as the car{ographer issue. And telf the jury, if you
i6 - MR, WITTMAN: foer itito EVIdEﬂCE Your Honcr 16 - wauld, what problems Dr. Sanders was having with respect to the
17 Defendants' Exhibit 828. 17 aerial photography. - : : :
13- MS. HARRIS: No objection: 18 A As best]recall -- ang to condense what wouid otherwzse
19 - THE COURT Without ODJE’tIDr‘ it wil be marked and 19 bea Iong answer -- Dr. Sanders In the field generated varipus
20 admitted. ' 20 kinds of dats. Some of that data was recorded manually 'on
21 (Exhibit £-828 marked and received in ewdence} 21 field notes. Some of that data was recorded, as 1 recatl,
22 BY MR. WITTMAN: ' _ 22 electronically with various modam devices that these gentlemen -
3 Q. AndI just want to show you one thing on the second page |23 “and ladies use, _ . R
24 . in the second to last paragrébh. ‘Mr. Schwartz tells yout that 24 He then tock his field notes and data to a cartographer, -
25 the Department of Justice is now 1nvalved in this case and will {25 Ms. Ann-Eidridge, T believe, and asked her to convert his field:
Page 3976 Page 3978
1 participate in all negotiations to resoive the enrorcement 1 work into maps using her Can'fputars her plotters and, of
2 | case? 2 course, the software that had to take Dr. Sanders’ work and - -
30 A Yes. _ ) 3 convert it magically in a computer to produce maps like the one
4 Q. Was that your first nobtice that the Department of Jusuce 1 you've already shown. And ha was having difficuity-somewhere
5 had become involved in this case™ ' > inthe software. The transfer of the data was not-coming out .
6 - A. Ibelieve it is, yes. ' : & onthe maps precisely as he thaught it would. .
7 Q. What significance, if any, did vou sttach to that? 7 (). Was the prablem the computers weren't producng what he:
8 AL Well, T appreciate it much more now in my current posatnon 8 had actuslly seen -- observed on the graundj
3 -than I did then. But at a point in these enforcerment cases, 1.8 A Correct. o :
10 fEPA must make a decision about going forward at the reg[onal 10 Q. Now, moving on, :f_we_ may. As_k you tn' turn to page 4 and
11 -level or referring the matter, as it's called, to the 11 ask you did you continue to have concerns gver the_fail ure o -
12 Department of Justice, which then brmgs DOJ into the matter [ 12 include the timber _cdmnanies in these discussions?
13 and could bring in all of the VE!"IOLIS component;. w1th|n the 13 A Well, we did because we got.[o-a..pom; in -- what I
11 Departmentof Justice. : 14 referred [0 3 moment ago as the hand off that-occurred from
15 - Q. Okay. And even after the entry of the Departmem of . 15 Dr. Sanders to Mr. Gofs and Mr. Temlinson, wha wouid then do
16 Justice; did you continue into the year 2001 to work toward~ | 16 ~ the wetlands assessment and genarate the rn.ugatinn report :
17 what you've called an ultimate resolution of the mattar? '_ 17 And itis at that point that the actual impacis to delineated
18 A, Oh, yes. We did have the meeting down here. We had 18 wetlands were going to he given a serious review by these other
18 another one, I think -- I'm trying - yeah, must have been one | 19 twa men. : .
20 -after the one-on the Coast. \We met in Atlanta in a contmumg ™ andwe s;mply ratsed, agaim, tb at this pamtwa : '
21 effort to, as [ keeo saying, move the matter along. 21 contended that it was very Gifficult to pregsaly allocate
122 Q. Okay. Let me refer you to & lerter dated rnbruary 2Eth, 22 responsiility for whe did what, when and wherg, but that we
23 2001. Get us into the yaar 2001 now. Its a letter fram voLr 23 vould move ghead an',r-.*;a.\,‘ and work toward a global resolution by -
24 to some paople at the DEf‘a.}'nﬂnt or Justice and also i “he 24 " seftlment. And though, if that settiermnens =fam failed, then .
25 : 25

we reserved the right -- 35 [ said in the middle of that page . -

23 (Pages 3975 to 3978)
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i then we would continue to assert our original COI“It"ﬁtIOI‘IS about
" the obligations of other parties.
. Q. Directing your attentton to the bottom of the page, did

septrc systems?

- Q. And Wha’s was your avaluation of the septic system issue?
- AL Well, as I mentioned earlier; Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas

W00~ Oh W ke L) ba

_intervening moniths that they were getting reports from prdperty

- time we got to this stage of the situation with the canditions
.in the community very tense, our main focus was o simply fix

‘thinne.

“Q. And that's. essentrally what you say at the top of page S
of this fetter, is it not? .-

Q. Providing relief to a particular proper*y owner? . '
“A. Yes.. : )

Page 3879

you have discussions - ¢id you address the 15sue of raulmg

A C)h absolutely

advised us €arly and at several points diring these months --

owners that septic'systems were not working propn_erly.' By the

Anr that was nor racneninandation tn Mr Licag and

1. Beail, inat every effort be mage 10-fespond to problems
that were reported regardless of whose tot they were on, when
they were instailed, why the malfunction occurred. That we
feit & was in everybody" s best mnterests to help peogle who
needed help.

A.-Yes,

Q. What WES yOur understandlng a5 to how many fazllng saptic

10

12
13
1
15
16
17
18

118

20
21

22 -

23
24
25
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~where Dr. Sanders on his maps did delineste wetlands, but did

- to the categories that EPA had earlier specified. And we were:
attemnpting - and these letters so state -- we were rezlly

:Page-298:

ra2pairs made to lan:rg saptnh systems regardi“=5 of the feascn

for the failure? :

A As bast I remember, they d|d COr whnther warranties had
axpired, that Teally didn't matter, Thess D-\_‘O men said, "Given
the tensions in the community, we just nead to 5aive prat)iems_"
Z. Okay. I I may refer you to page G of the letter, in -
which you agam deal with the sub]ef‘t of the resale of
additional Iots for resale -- refease of additianal lats: f_c_:..
resale; correct?

Al Yes, _ - .

G Explain to the jur?, if you would, Mr. Paimer, what you
were bying to do with respect to the release of these
additonal lots for resale.

A A Trmantionad sarkior we and SPA oravitated +o g ooink
of talking about these lots in terms of categories. And again,
the first cat'egory were lots on which Dr. Sanders found no
wetlands to delineate. The government had already raleased a

number of those unconditionaily. The second category were lots

not delineate any alterations or impacts to those wetlands, -
And the third cateqory were lats, as I've already mentioned,
where Dr, Sanders not only delineated wetlands, but also
depicted on his maps evidence of alteration or impact according

L o Y I B R T O Y I

Systems had been reported 'a'_t—'thi's-pcint in ime? -

Page 3980

A. Well, as I recite in the next paragraph, when we asked

fhat question of our:clients, we were told that they understcod
that there were aout a dozen lots of approximately 600 that
were out there. About a dozen probiem systems

Q. Okay. And did you make any effort to find out what was
causing the problems to tné systems at Big Hill Acres that had
been reported? i

A, Well, we didn't in the firm. We asked Dr. Beall and _

Mr. Lucas [ try toget informatiom. And either they got it
individually from-talking with lzndowners or they made iﬁ'quiry
through their instailer that had installed these systems. 1
don’t know where they got their information, but we asked them
to help ug bettsr undersiand vhat these problems were that' were'
being reported, .

Q. Did you have any understanding'as to whether
malfunctioning septic systems nad been reported on Iots 'thre
there were no wetlands at ali?”

A. That's what our clients said to us, yes, that there were
instances whére there were probiems reported on lots where
there were no wetlands delineatsd, .

Q. What was Mr. Lucas' position recardmg repalr of
malfunctioning sestic syst“ms

A, To go fix them: _

Q. Okay. Did Mr. Lucas.and Dr. Seall undertake to have

[ el e e T R R I S Y
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© restoration was agreed to. And we felt that EPA was just —

_ ) Page 3582
focused an the Category 3 lots because - :

Q. Why is that? .

A. Well, as I mentioned earlier, the condition that had -

the conditions which had beeri specified for saie were not only
z2se by case review, but premitigation of the impacts per lot.
And so we raised cencerns in this letter about that because we
were -- we were rying to work toward a settlement that would
mitigate ail impacts everywhere or restore some where .

straining regardmg the Category 3 lots. And so we went back
agam and asked for relief there. : '

Q. Did you tell Mr, Schwartz that at the bottom of page 7. of
the letter we were just dlscussmg" I'm referring to the last -
sentence on _that page. i
A Yes. _ o

Q. Dkay. You said i _wou[d_hot enhiance our restoration
mitigation plan or otherwise just like Ca
correct? ) _ B
A. That's true, Because we at that time had Mr. Goff and
Mr. Tamiinson at work. And they were looking at the -- at the
enure area, as [recall. And it may have aven been reflected
In this [ettar. We all realized, 3s did TPA, that we had no
current imagery for the site that was more current than.fike
1996. Our clients offared 10 have an averflight done and to
pay for it. That was done o provide Inot only sur wetlands

tegory 2 lots; .

MARGARET W. SEAL, RMR, CRR
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1 consuftants but also EPA wetlands personne! tha most current 1 vyour reguest for me to reverse myseff is demed
2 imagery to work with, to then look at mitigation and 2 I'll see you at 1:30.
3 restoration issues, to then prepare the plan. 3 (Rercess at 12:71 p.r.)
4 THE COURT: Let's try to hold that thought and taxe 4 ' :

5 the noon recess: Ladies and gentlemer: of the jury, it seems 5
&  like é:i_rr-eagortune time for you to take the noon recess. Wa're [
7 going thgefback in the habit, as you may recall, of me 7
8 telling you whiat to do during your noon recess. ' 3
a Please don't talk with anyone aboist this case or permit 9

13 anyone to talk with you about it. In the event that anyone 10

11 attempts to approach you conteming this case, you should - | 11

12 report that to the Court immediately. In the event that this 12

13 case is reported in the media, please don't read anything about | 13

14 it in the newsnaner. Please dnn't listen ta any radia nr 14

is r?lE‘-%iSiC‘!" newscasts concerning i, : 115 - -

16 And as always, during the noon recess ar.any other time, 16

17 - for that matter, do not attempt to make any independent 17

18 investigation or research concerning this case.on your own. 18

19 Youareto be'guided solely and exclusively by the evidence 19

20 that you hear here in the courtroom, ' 20

21 T'll see you at 1:30. Thank you. 1:30, yas. That should 21

22 e plenty of time. _ 22

23 (Jury out at 12:20 p.m.} ' _ 23

24 THE COURT: Very well. We'll be in recess untii 24

25 1:30. ' 25

< Pags 3984
1 " MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, could 1 ask one thlng before

2 we leave?

3 THE COURT: I'm sorry. I didn't hear you.

4 MS. HARRIS: I'm just waiting for the door to shut.

5 : I would ask that the Judge reverse its ruling on treating this
6  witness as adverse. 1 think he's shown himself to be anything

7 . but adversa. And that there be no more leading from here on -
8  out

9 THE COURT: Well, adverseness -- my interpretation of _ - .

10~ the rule is, is the witness sufficiently identified with one _ — _—

11 . side or the other to permit some leniency. -1 think under the - B

12 - circumstances, Mr. Paimer, who is now head of the region, the

13 "EPA, is sufficiently identified with. gmremment that some.

14 leniency should be provrded And 1 mtend to prcwde that

15 leniency to both sides. L -

i6 ‘MS. HARRIS: Just ‘or the record I point out ‘ue made-

17 it ctear when he started to testl‘y that he was here in his

18 'Epersonai capacity and not as the regronal administrator.

18 THE COURT: Tl let the jury evaluate. :

12 MR. WITTMAN: - A5 a matter of Fact, given that . _

21 pos:tlon he’s required to have that statement made “That's

22 why I asked the question.

23 THE COURT: I think ™r. Palmer is making his best

24 efforts to be cangid and truthful. And I glve hoth sides

25 some leniency on Jeading' guestions. If it requires a rufing,

25 (Pages 3983 to 3985)
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: . _ Page 3986
(February §, 2005, 1:36 v.m.) A :
{Of£f the record discussion) o o ézfgdg_

i

THE COURT: Are the partiss ready 16 proceed?

o

s

MR. WITTMAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Bring in the jury, please.
(Jurv in at 1:37 p.m.)
I\J{'I:l‘ - ‘;": : TT:‘«T;:: - ::r_‘! :r T Ji_ ] ](_"t‘-_"v—_-l'_‘;' . :1'(-1 e E-':"_'l.'.'.._._‘ T

THE COURT: You may; Thank you.
BY MR. WITTMAN:
Q. Good_aftefnoon, Mr. Palmer,
A. Good afternocon, Mr. Wittmaﬁ..
Q. Before the noon break, wé*wereﬂlooking_at_a letter that

you had written to Mr. Schwartz of the EPA on February 28th,

2001. Do vou recall that?

Q. I just have a couple more things ﬁb £a1k to.you abcution
that letter. If you would, tufn-to-page 8 of the ‘letter. And
that secend ES—?he last paragrapﬁﬁﬁﬁ”the'page'about midway
down, you refer to an apparent campaign or an appareﬁt'¢rq$ade'

to dsstrov Big Hill Acres. What did vou mean by that?

o
]
=
-
)]

was my characterization -- and again, another example

ot a lawver being mad when You write a lstter -- of my

impression of the situation that had come about in the

community with several meetings in the community. Newspaper:

articlies attributing statements to various folks, including

MARGARET W. SEAL, RMR, CRR
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1 governmant officials, which -- and I used the word earlier 1 MS HARRIS: nNo objection. i

2 inflammiatory - And it just struck me as — here we were trying 2 THE COURT: w_:thcut_ phpeztion. i Wlli ba marked and

3 13 move matters along to a :.ansfactory end. And the situation 3 admitad, ' o

4. i the commiunity was not only agitated, was being exacerbated. | 4 {Extubit 5-537 marked and received m_e\_r:dence}

5 And that was the opinion 1 was expressing there. 5 MR, WITTMAN, :

& Q. ”.:'-\"H'LE end of that pagz, did you refer spec:ﬁca!ly ta the ) Q—. Lel’s just ——'1 want e turn to page 2. And Just ioekmg

7 mvalvemeh* of EPA offlaals in that acavnty? 7 - at the portion I've h:ghlughted on the screen, just to set

8 A Idid: S 8 . us -- this lettar 15 in response to your November 1st latter; -

9 Q. And finally, if you would, turn to the iast page and the 8 correct? B '

10 . first full paragraph. 1 A Yes.
11 A, Yes, 11 Q. And dated Harch 19th? So there hacl been some Fve months
iZ2 . Q. What did you mean by saying that the govemment had 12 : that had elapsed during which you had no FESpONSE Concerning
13 decided to run a real estate business located in Jackson County 13 your request for approval of sale of additional lots?
14 from ramnte pfficec in Atlanta znd Wa:hsngrnn? ' 14 A That's ::rr::ﬁ o .
i i3 A. As I menuonea gerore the lunach preak, we had made some 15 Q. I want ta refer vou to one -- toward the end of the
16 substantial progress, frankly, with EPA with respect to two of. 16 letter, if yue would. Down. toward the battom of the page..
17 - the three categories of iots. We had gottan substantlal rehef 17 Second paragraph rrc:rn the bottom. Mr. Schwartz te{ls you,
18  with respect o the Category 1 lots. 1B doesn't he, that any hardship. created by the EPA's ]
19 We had gotten substantial but conditional relief with 13 restrictions, he ciavms are attributable to your dients'
20 respect to the Category 2 lots; lots where, as T mentioned, 20 serious and widespread violations of the Ciean Water Act. Do
21 Dr. 5anders had detineated not only the presence of wetlands, 21 you see that?
22 but did not depict any alteration or impact. And as [ said 227 A Ido.
23 earlier, we agreed with the requirements of EPA that eny- 23 Q Did you dasagree wzth Mr. Schwartz's contention. trat your
/ 124 proposed sale of thése properties be ac'cuﬁ'!'qjaﬁied by full 24 dient had violated the Clean Water Act? .
« 125 disclosure. ‘We talked abaut usmg Dr. Sanders maps in the 25 A Well I dlsagreed with the way Mr. SchwarL phrased his
. Page 3988 Page 3990

i '-context of that. 1 -point. Frankly, I took it as another axample of a jawyer .-

2 We were stuck still on the Category 3 lots where the £ writing when he was mad.

3 agency offered to review things on 2 case by case basis, | 3 Q. Why did you disagrée with Mr, Schwartz? .

% understand that perfectly well, and [ did then, But my point _ 4 A Well he cha; racterized the violations that the government

5 that 1 was making here and made additionally is the practical 5 asserted as being widespread and intentional, I simply took

6 ‘reality of doing that when & prospective purchaser appeared to 1 & umbrage at the characterization of the situation at'hand, .

7 consider a parcel and became interested in it and was readyto ] 7 Q. Had vour clients intentionatly. v_ic:iated-the Clean Water

B go forward and at that point then whoever was handiing the 8  Act, Mr. Palmer?

8  transaction for the companies would say, “Wall, we have to step 9 A Well, as I said \n.hen we started this morning,-our cllents
10 and call Atfanta, Georgia;-and get EPA into the sales process - _ 10 toid us at the outset they didn't know what Section 404
11 with this approval.” And my -~ the point of my concern is that 11  wetlands were.

12 the risk of losing that opportunity was substantial. And 12 MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, T object to that. -
13 that's the point I was making. i 13 THE COURT: What is the basis of your objection?.

* Q. And did Mr. Schwarts reSpond to your letter7 ) 14 M5, HARRIS: Whether they violated the Clean Water
15 A I believe he did. : : 15 Act 15 for the jury to decide.

16 Q. Let me show you what's been marked as Defendants' Exhibit | 15 THE COURT: Objection is overruled. You may proceed
17 32, aleter dated March 9th, 2003, toyou from Mr. Sehwar‘u 17 with your answar, Mr. Palmer.l
13 MR. WITTMAN: &nd if [ may, Your Honor, Tl hand a 18 A AsT said earlier, after they said o my partner and .
19 copy to the wilness so he can follow us. 18 myself initially that they -- that they did not understand what
20, BY MR.-WITTMAN: ' [ 20 Secrion 404 wetlands were angd proceeded to describe the
21 Q. Can vou identify that as.a copy of the letter, Mr. Palmer? 121 evoiufion of ther -- of their development cut in this area,

21 A Yes, itappears to be. ' ’ 22 then repeatedly they cantendad that they never intended to
23 MR WTTTMAN: Your Honar I offer into evndence 23 violate any law. ' '

24 Gefendants’ Zxnimt §32. ) Z4 Q. And did tne acuers thaz WE'E taken after June of 1999 by
35 25

THE CGURT: Any objection?

Mr. Lucas angd Sig Hil Acres represent their efforts to make up
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. ' . . . Pai 093
I i for any possible alieged violation of Section 4047 Ioogentral w=stﬂ\*éate' system - mayba central warer and. was%:wBatger
E 2 A well, as [ answered your guesgion this meorning, they 2. svstem De mstalled mraugnam tris araa. -
I 3 “immediately began to be as responsive as they could be, at 5 0 Okay.
< least to the knowledge of my firm, with EPA and EPA's < MS HARRIS: Your Honor, i@ | couls €arret the
5 ‘requirements.and demands. 5 record, Cavarnmen‘ Exhnbn: 136s5a alfr—"re'- March 3, 20[}1
£ Q. 'LthQe: refer-you niow to a lettar -- you responded, of & leder. not this one.-I'm spery about tnat. _
7 course, to-¥r. Schwartz, did you not? _' . 7 "THE COURT: Do you have any oblumcn to Defendantg
8 A Tlikaly di.r;ih. The tetter, though, Mr. Wittman, is at a 8 Exhibi; 8307 : :
9 point when there was-a hand off going on in the lawyerranks at | @ MS. HARRIS: No, Your Honer, [ Son't.
13 EPA. The earlier letters that you have shown me were sent by 19 THE COURT: All right. Then, wathout objection,
1!, Thanne Cox. Al this pomt in time, as I have already o 11 Mr. Wittman, you may mark and tne clerk will admit Defendants:
12 mentioned, Ms. Cox moved from Region 4 to another reglon 12 Exhibit B30 into evidence. : .
i3 So the file then came under new maﬂagement as it were, by i3 MR. WITTMAN: Thank you Your Konor,
14 Mr. Schwartz. And as Mr. Schwartz said in this letter there e (Exhibit D-830 marked ang recerved in evidance)
153 wac 2 bRt of 2 fumble during that hand off that took 5 tan i iZ  BY MR, WITTHARN:
15 t;rne tc recover the fumble, but 1 accepted what he said in 16 Q. Did you explore the pcssmnltty of gettmg 3 central
17  explanation of that. i ' 17  wastewater callection system at Big Hill Acres? _
18 Q. Okay. Let me show you what's been marked for 18 A Well, we did it reacting to events in the area that had
13  identification a5 Defendants' Exhibit 830. Let me hand you a 19 already begun to unfold. The West Jackson County Utility
20 copy of that. Is that 3 copy of your response to Mr. Schwartz? 20 District had bagun ronsidering an expansion of their system to
21 A, It appears o be, yes. 21 theeast, And at a pointin 't[‘me when they weare atternpting to
22 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, offer into evsdence 12 meet the requirements of their enabling legislation in order to
23 Defendants' Exhibit 830, 23 Initiate an expansion, they contacted Dr. Beali and Mr. Lucas.
24 THE COURT: Any objection?” 24 about supporting the concept. _ _
25 MS. HARRIS: I don't know what it is. 25 But that support was going to req_uire certain specific
Page 3982 Pane 3994
1 MR. WITTMAN: 1 gave YOUu a copy of afl those this 1 actions on the part of Dr. Beatlt and Mr. Lucas to comply with
2 morning. 2 the obligations of the district.to meet their - their
3 MS. HARRIS: 1 don't know which one it is. No 3 threshold for Even.proposing to expand. And that's what we
4 objection. That's actually aiready in evidence. 4 were addressing in this letter. o
5 THE COURT: What is the correspondmg govemment 5 5 Q. Okay. What ultimately happened to the efforts to get a -
o exhibit number? G central wastewater callection system at Big Hill Acres? '
7 "MS. HARRIS: That'is Government's Exhibit 136. 7 A, 1don't know what uitimately happened. I know when I
& THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Harris. ' 8 stepped out of this matter on Qctaber 19th of 2'001 no progress
a MR, WITTMAN: I will accept the gcvernment exhibit, 9 had been made that I recall toward the expansion of this
10 Your Honar, and remark mine. -10 district to provide central wastewater and water
11 BY MR, WITTMAN: 11 infrastructure.
12 Q. Ijusthad one guestion on this document I'd like to have 12 Q. Justto elaborate on that a littde bit, would it have.
13 you dear up for us, if you would, Mr. Palmer. In'the first 13 reguired the approval of all of the residents at Big Hill Acres
14 paragraph of the letter, the part that T've highlighted relates 4 at that time in 2901 to get a central wastewater system
15 o your decision to support or oppose the WICUD e‘xpansibn 15 installed at Big Hill Acres?
16 propasal on @ possible supplemental environmentai project. - |1 A. Asrecall, the protocofs that the district was obhgated -
17 What was that all about? 17 to follow was a multipart test, at least two pieces. One was
13 A Inan eadier tetter, ] bel‘eve over the sngnature of 18 gefting the owners of property which exceeded, I think, 160
19 Thanne Cox that you've not shown me today thus far, I don't 19  acres in size to support the concept. Bui then in addition to
20 think she outlined on behaif of EFA the elements of a ' 20 that, there was a requirement.to obrain the suppart by
21 conceptuat settlement, which we had askad for. And in that 21 signature of 3 certain number of individual property owners.
22 letter, sha idantifiad, T think, four specific components of @ 22 And there was a setback provision of where they fived with
23 conceptual settlement, each of which; of caurse, Ieft 3 lot of ' 13 respect to certain thoroughfares, Ang so Jackson County was
23 further work and discussion ahead. But one of the, 1 think, 24 zttempting to meat that initial requirement by gefiing
25 25 signatures of support from property owners.

four components ivas the government's interest in seeing that a
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Page 3997
Q And wias Jackson County providing this service for free or

of Heaith about that issue?

y
wpuld there be an assessmerit levied against the prpperb,v owners 2 A Well, the MISSISSJppI Departmer-t of Healtn ts the agency
for the privilege. of having a centra wastewater system 3 of state gcvernmen[ that is responsible for the administration
installed at Big Hill Acres? ' <+ and enfpr-.ernent of a bodv of state iaw. called the MIS;ISS;p;ﬂ
A Well, the Jackson County Utility District -- West Jacxsm 3 mdmdual an site waslewater dlsppsaI

Caunty uylrty Diskrict is just that, it is a utlllty The € Q. System?

utility camtal‘lzes the installation of its mfrastructure, - ST A Law. And system may, be in there spmewhere

water and wastewater. And then those who become partitipan_ts 8 oQ oAl rlght And why were you asking Mr. BpoHan for helpa .
in those services will ultimately be assessed user fees, % A Well, for two reasons, One, they are the cognizant state
probably manthly user fees. There would possibly be an 18 agency that has oversight ‘over these individual Systems of

additional ad valorem tax assaciated with the expansion of the various kinds. After the Department of Environmentaf Quality

11

district. 50 yes, there would be additional costs associated 12 takes the first step that the law reguires in what' scalted a
with the use of such a system if it-were ever expandec to’ cover 13 faasibility study to determing whether or net these'individua[
this area, : ) 14 systems are even r-runn to be Allowwart  Anrt then the haalth
Q. And that would indtuds § cost to the Proparty GWRETs at 15 depa et tdkes aver 10 oversee nat anly the types and kinds -
Big Hill Acres? _ ' 16. of systems that are approvable, tut also to certify certain

. A Yes. Because the discussion was expanding in the 17 individuals who prpppse to engage in the business of installing

: dtrectzon of Big Hill Acres to encompass the entlretv of that 1§ and rémaving these kinds of systems. :
emerging development. : : 19 Q. Wasthere a cpncern at that bime over the installers nf
Q. Okay. Let me ask you a few queshions about septic system 20 the systems at Big Hill Acres taking steps to repair the .
repairs, Mr. Palmer. Did you have discussions with the 21  systems? ]
Mississippi Department of Health regarding repairs to 22 A There was cpncem about one. And it was report°d to
maifunctlonmg saptic systems at Big Hill Acres? ' 23 M. Lueas, who in turm reported it to Mr. Crawfard and me. The _

A We did.” 24 individual that had installed, I think, mast of the systems .
Q. Let me show you what's been marked as Defendants’ Exhibit {2 lhropg_hout' these parcels became very concerned from tumars he
) . , .
o Page 3995 ' h Page 3993
B44. 1 had heard that his certlfcatroh wollid be in }eopardy iff he

) MR Wn‘rMAN With Ms. Harris' consent, Your Honpr I 2 attempted to effect any repairs. : :

. will mark this exhibit Governraent Exhitit 136, and T will 3 Q. Okay. Would you turn to page 2 of the letter piease,
withdraw Defendants’ Exhibit 844 and use the government 4 sir? And if you would, take 3 lgok at the partion that T've .
exhibit, if that's okay. S highlighted there. Does that paragraph axplain what the

THE COURT: Very well, & concerns were on Mr. Shields’ part?
BY MR. WITTMAN: 7 A, Yes. oo
Q. This.is in evidence already, Mr. Palmer, so you don't need § Q. Hewas cpncerned as this |nd|Cates that some adverse
to identify it. Dld you have reports of maifunctioning septic 9 action might be taken agamst him by the Department of Health?
) Systems at Big Hill Acres in March of 20017 10 A Wefl, he was. And this is the individual, like 1 just
A Wedid Andas1 testlﬂed earlier, even earher ‘than 11 said, from what we learned frprn Dr. Beall and Mr. Liurcas, who .

“fhat,

12 had installed most of these systems and would be most -
3. Ckay. A&nd in the first page of your letter; you talk 13 knowledgeabie about how they were installed and waould be the
“about approximately a dozen residences that are =\penencmg 14 “first person Epgic'ally to go to to seek help in repairing these
"problems? 1_5 .'probiems whatever they were. But he was niot comfortabie at -
A. Yes. And.this letter is my record of the telephone  * - |15 al undertaking repairs for fear that his certification r'nght
‘conversation 1 had alrzady had with Mr. Bogoan. Andl then 17 be, as I said, placed in Jeopardy _
wrate him to memorialize'the conversation we had and to put in 18 Q. If youwould, turn to page 3. Does that describe what
writing the cencerns that we had and the approach that we 19" your propesal was to the Department of Healtn with respect to
wanted to take. - : : R 20 taking care of problems that had bean reported with respect to
Q. Your letter indicates that you had ca’Hed him once on 21 malfunctioning 52plic systems?
2%, Friday, February 2nd, and again on Monday, February 15th. Did |22 A, Yes. ' .
you ever talk to him? : 23 Q. And it goeson - soif L can shon the whpie paragraph
A Yes. ' 24 Does that whote paragraph reflact yaur prpposa{s to what would.
Q. Okay. And why were ypu wr:tmg the M!SSIS:JDQI Cepartment | 25 ba done with respect to repair of septic systems that ware

.
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Page 3059

'enorted to be malfunctlonlng at Big Hill Acres?

Yes. This is our proposal to the Department of Health

.And you say there if the health department declrnes to

srticipate in finding a solution, Mr. Shiglds will then

proceed as in his ]udgment conditions warrant; is that correct?
A. WeIL\\hat's what we proposed. Because as [ said maybe
severai tImES‘EEN'hEF‘ in this letier and ! testified earller
today, Dr. Baall and Mr. Lucds expressed to us their concern
that-probiems be addressed, problems be fixed, period.
Q. Did you receive a response to this letter from Mr. Boggan?
A, I'did.
Q. Let-re show you what I've marked for identification as

- Defendants” Extubit 845, and iet mie give you a copy of it 56

vou'll have it before’vou: Is that a copy of vour response?
A Ve : ’
MR, WITTMAN: This is also a government exhibit, Your
Horor. It's Gavernment Exhibit 137, I'm told. So I'm gonna
use that number rather than adding another document to the
record. i

BY MR, WITTMAN: : _ _

Q. So you now have in front of you what used to be Defense
Exhibit 845 and-is now Government Exhibit 137, And I'd like 1o
ask you a few questions about it.” First of afl, the

hightighted portions I've gat in Paragraph 2, Mr. Boggan tells
you that every effart should be made to repeir these systems;

LEL I S

oo~ dhow

1 Exzhibit 543, which is 3 letter dated March. 8th, 2001, from

: ternpurary fixes for these probiems; correct?

o o ' Pags 4001
A The latter itsel f 23 addressec to me is not addressed tg -

anyone efse And betow Mr. Boggan's signature, thera's ng -
indication that Topies wers sent te any party. Whzt we did, of .
coursg, immediately vias forward the letter 2gain, accerding to-
firm policy, to Dr. Bzakh.and Mr. Lucas, ) e
Q. That letter is datad March 5th; Zorrect?

A Yes. : .

G. And there's no copy shown to anyona™

A. Ng. ‘ : . .

Q. MNow, let me show you what's besn marked as Defendarits:

Mr. Schwartz of the ZPA to Mr. Riley of the. Mississippi
Cepanmant of Znvironmentat Quality. Do you see thar?
A Tdo. o
MR, WITTHAN.
Exhibit §43. _
MS. HARRIS: [ believe it might be Government's 138.
MR. WITTMAN: Okay. If that's correct, ! will accept:
that, Your Honor, and withdraw B43.
BY MR. WITTMAN:
Q. And looking at Government Exhibit 138, in the first .
paragrapk, it refiects, does it nol, that the EPA requested
Mr. Lucas coordinate with the Department of Health to :mp!ement

Tour Honor, I affer into avidenca

A. Yes,

s
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Page 4000
correct?

A. He did, which we very much appreoated hls recognition of

-aur common goal to deal’ ‘with the prcbiems

Q- And he tells you that the staff of the Department of

_Health is availatie to make refommendatlcns, does he not?

A, He did.

. Q. And that these repairs should be done in accordance with
"applicable reguiatrons when possibie; rorrect?

A. Yes,

Q. And if you do that, he says the Department of Health will
take no action agamst a licensed. mstaller attemptmg to rnake
those repaiis? :

A. That's what the fetter recites.

Q. All'right: and then he goes on in the iast paragraoh to

restate that prop05|tlon does he not?
" A. He does.

Q. And he restates several points. His assistance s going

te be making inspections or on‘ermg rer‘ommendatlor'ls |snt
that right? '

A - Yes. o _

-Q. And he says they will not undertake an enforcement action
against 3 licensad installer -- that would be Mr. Shlelds fo.
example - attempting to make such remaws’

A. That's what the letter says.’ _'

Q. And who got copies of this lettar?

Q. And it goes on to say in the sacond paragraph that the EPA

L I U SV R R

- matter,

(%= I - BN I s L]

.c;c-.op

Fage 4002

doasn't intend to take any action if the activities recommended
to address failing seplic systems arguably involve some
discharge regulated under Section 304 of the Clean Water Act?
A. That's what it says. And this letter, like the leter I
wrote to Mr. Boggan, Mr. Wittman, came after, as | recall, a '
personal conversation 1 also had with Mr. Schwartz ahout: the

Q. And you did show — Mr. Schwarts dfd send you a copy ‘of
hus letter, did he not?

A. He did. It's shown on the letter itself.

Q. Okay. And a copy also went to the Depertmeﬂt of Health,
Ms. Srmpson’ :
That's correct. _ )

. And to Mr. Palmer hcugh?

That's correct, .

. Now, ta your knowledge, did the Mississippi Department of
Health ever make ah_y inspections or offer any recommendations
for the repair of failing septic systemns at Big Hill Acres?

A, Idon't know. We were not involved as counsel in any .
subsequent matters involving failing systems or discussions -
with regulators or attermpts to repair sysiems.

Q. But the EPA had reguested Mr. Lucas to maks temporary
rpakrs to those systems, had it not?”

n

A, Well, that's what Mr. Schwanz's letter said.

5 (Pages 3999 to 4002)
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Q. Allright. And what was your understandlng Mr. Palmer, t - il government counsni has had a chancz o check that CD-ROM.
- of the effect of this exchange of letters between the E M5. HARRIS: I haven't even szen 3 CD-ROM, I'm

Mississippi Department of Health and the Environmentai 3 sor,.

Protect:or: Agency with rnspect o maklng repairs to failing 4 “THE COURT: Are vou famibac with- it, Mr, K'sr,:en_ig?

systems at Big Hifl Acres? o 5 MR. KORZENIK: .I'm not, but that doesn't mean that .-

A Well the good news, which,-aqain, we very much ~.&  fet'me check. I'm not familiar with it : _

apprec:ated__qs that senior requlators were agreeing with us 7 MS. HARRIS: I thought one was promised and never

that the main Tocus of our coliective concern should be people B deiivered. But we have to check with Josh, '

who have probiems and to help them get some relief from 9 MR. WITTMAN: This is the last case I'm ever aonng

whatever prublems they were experiencing in their dwellings, 10 dea! with CD-ROMs being exchanged.

And that was 3 major step forward for us in dealing with one of [ 11 : M5. HARRIS:  That's a good ided, "

the sources of substantial unrest and tension in the community. 2. MR, WITTMAN: Because you can't tell what was

Q. Did you advise Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall of this o 13 exchanged and what was not exchanged without opening up 3

correspondence between the EPA and the Department of Health"-' 14 CD-RIM in the middie of 3 rrisl.

A Oh, 1did And 2gzin, to ropest mysol, we fonwarded i5 THE COUR(: It's 2 good 10ea to make kind of a rhdex )
these letters on to Dr, Beall and Mr. Lucas with the ' 16 with regard © what's contained on it.
admonition, Mr, Wittman, as explained, 1 believe, in one of my 17 MR. WITTMAN: Yes. We should have done théqt.
-Ierters that neither Mr. Lucas nor Dr. Beall should personally 18 THE COURT: I'm inclined, while Mr, Korzenik is
engage in repairs. They were not certified by the Department 18 researching this, to accent the representahans of counsel as
) of Health to conduct those activities. And w2 admonished them 20 an officer of the court.
“to rely upon those like Mr. Shields who were _properly certified 21 - MR. KORZENIK: The keeper of the records h’as’said
1o do that kind of work. . : - 22 thatwegota CD of photo"raphs We didn" t geta CD of :
Q. All right. Let me show you what's been marked for 23 documents.
identification as Defendants" Exhibit 8332 24 M5, HARRIS: That's what [ thought. .
MS. HARRIS: Your Honar, that one's not in evidence, 25 _ THE COURT: A'H right. I'm going to be cpnsistent;
Page 4004 | : ' ' Page 4006
1 MR. WITTMAN: May I just have the screen without the 1 if nothmg else. If it wasn't provided during discovery, it's
2 jury, Your Honor? 2 excluded. But the witness can testify to what he did and what
3 BY MR. WITTMAN: 3 ke said. : _
4 Q. Okay. Do you recognize this as a letter you sent-on March | 4 MR, WITTMAN: Okay, I'll do that. Thank you, Your’
5 Bth, 2001, to Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beali? 5  Honor.
& A, Yes, 6 (Bench cenference concluded)
7 Q. Ckay. _ . o 7 BY MR. WITTMAN: '
8 MR, DEAN HOLLEMAN: It's still on, 8 Q. Let me ask you this; Mr. Palmer. Did yOou rngard this
3 MR. WITTMAN: The jury 15 still on? 8 exchange of correspondence between the EPA and the M!SSISSIppI
THE COURT I beg your pardon. You £an go ahead 10 Department of Health to be major progress?
I'm sorTy. _ . . 11 A Yes, sir, Ithought thats what I just said.
Q. Okay. Do you recognue your 51gnature there? 12 Q. Did anyane from the Envnronmenta1 Protectlon Agency ever '—
A, Tdo. _ ' 13" tell you that Mr. Lucas orthe companies were required to
" MR, WITTMAN: All right Your.Honor, Iofﬁer into 14 obtan a Clean Water Act Sertion 402 permu also referred o
ewdence Defendants’ Exhibit 833. : 13 a5 an NPDES permit, for-the Septlc tanks installed at 'Big Hill
MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, this is one we addres;ed "7 {16 Acres before they could-ba repa:red?’
earlier, and you sustained my abjectiori. 17 A No. :
- MR, WI’"‘VIAN May we approach on that, Your Honor? } 18 Q. Dld anyonefom the I“'ss1551pp+ Denarrmnht ﬂf
THE \.DURT You mav. ] : 19 Enwironmental Quality. ever tell you that?
{Bench conference on the record with all counsel; - 20 A, No, o "
defendants nat present, as foliows: b . 21 Q. And under Mississiapi law, is the awne- of a s2piic system

MR. WITTMAN: [ understand -- during the noon hcur I |32 requived to get a parmit for effient gischarge on his own’
checked this out, I understand _there was a CD-ROM that was {23 property? A
* furnished to the government which had these exhibits on it. 24 A, Na. . :
_ And that they have indeed been furnished. I'm just wondering | 25 - Q. Ckay. Did you ever advise My, Lucas that he needed Lo

bica
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Page 4007 " - Page 4p00
1 apply fora Soctron 402 NPD:S permlt for any cf the septic 1 Q And if you would, please, refer to page.3. And I've got
2 tanks instalied in wetlands at Big Hill Acres? - Just one guestion thare witn respect to the rehef YOU were
3 A. No. Notaslong as they conformed to the provisions of 3 requesting. I'li girect you just to the last paragraph on thag
4 the Mlsslz.s:pp: on site wastewater disposal law. < Dpage. Again, you take issue with the EPA. do you not, '
5 Q. Andtovour knowledge did Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall atampt | S regarding their pesition as t= the Categary 3 lors being
& to compiy with that law by hiring a ilcensed professional & unreasonable? '
7: eng:neeranda Ircensed installer to install those 5ept1c 7 A We do.
8  systems? - B Q. Idon'twantyou to regeat it. That's for the reasons You
"9 A Yes. . _ ‘% mentioned, 1 think, ever beiore funch and briefly after Iunr:h;
10 Q. Okay. Now, in April of 2001, did you finally complete the 10 correct?
11 mapping of the parcels of land at Big Hill Acres that you were 1 A. Yes,
12 trying to get released for sale at Big Hill Acres and send them 12 Q. Now, did all of the tots -- I'm sorry. Oid some of the
13 on ko the EPA? o : 13 lots at Brg Hill Acres contain very small amaunts of bropeny'
14 - A The date, I ‘can't be precise about But that sounds about 14 that was arguahly considarad o he watlapds? '
112 rishe, in the _.,,..13 or 2001, . © . j IS AL Wefl, lhey did. And we refer to that eitner in this
16 Q. Let me show you an exhibit that I've marked as Defendants' | 16  letter or anather one that you've shiown me. The wark that
17 Exhibit B34, a letter dated April 18th, 2001, to Mr. Schwartz, 17 Dr. Sanders had basicaily completed at that point refiected
18 who had replaced Ms Cox, as understand it; correct? 16 thatin a number of cases - and I don't refember how many --
19 A That is-correct. 18 the line which depicted some degree of impact, again, according
20 Q. aAll nght And do you recegnize this as acopyofa’ 20  to the.categories that EPA-specifiad, the lines showed
21 letter you sent to Mr. Schwarz on or about Aprit 18th of 20017 21 extremely small areas, areas that [ beiieve we referred to in
22 A, Yes, 12 one of these tetters - maybe this one -- as areas that would
23 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, I offer into ewdence 23" be measured in square feet, not in acres
24 Defendanrs Exhibit £34. : 24 And so we took the position that for lots with extremely
25 M3. HARRIS: No obiection. 25 small }de!meated impact areas, that we should be aflowed to
. : ;
_ ) Page 4003 : Page 4010
1 THE COURT: \.VlthOUt objection, it wﬂ[ be marked and 1 proceed with them essentially as Categary 2 Iots and to move
-2 admitted. 12 forward. _ :
3 {Exhibit D-834 marked and rece:ved in evidence) "3 Q. Okay, Let me ask you to turn to page 3. And you
-4 BY MR, WITTMAN: _ "~ 4 basically made the proposal that the EPA release all of the -
5 Q. Now, if you would, please, turn to page 2 of that letter. | 5 remaining fots and other parcels and inventory that could be
6 And Il ask you: Was Big Hill Acres experiencing any 1 ©  marketed for sale now: is that correct? _ '
7 financial problems'as a result of the EPA’s cease and desist - 7 A Wedid. And as I mentioned earlier, Mr. wittman, we got g
8 ordér that had been issued back in Juty of 20007 & toa point, in an effort 1o bring to closure all of this work,
S A They were. 8 of proposing that even though we reserved our prerogative to
10 Q. And tell the jury, if you would brteﬂy, what the nature 10 argue about wha did what wher® and wﬁaﬁfnuacm were
11  of those problems were. _ 11 attributable to what activities, that we were asking Mike Goff
12 A As Dr. Beall and Mr. Lucas kept us apprised of their 12 and 8iil Tomlinson ko simply prepare a plan for EPA to consider
13 financial status they focused on their income as well as their | 13 that did not differentiate among any of that, but simply took
14 - other obllgatlons which included expenses -- maintenance 1+ into account all of Dr, Sanders’ wark and t'wen prepare a work
15 expenses, operational expenses -- across these two 13 out accordingly.
16  developments. Itincluded cerainly their professional and-~ 8 Essantially, we p'ro_posed to mitigate and/or restoré
17 legal fees. 1t included obkigations to lenders from whom they 17 everything regardless of whe might have eriginally caus}ed the
18 had borrowed substantial sums of mdn'ey,‘ not only as to 18 problern. And that's why we were strugaling to understand EPA's
19 repayment of interest. But as ] recall, at some point a 19  unwillingness to release the Category 3 fots when we were
ple} 'requiremeﬁt to beqin to repay some principal. 20 propcsmg to mrtrgate for everything. '
217 50 we asked them to simply prepare for us — as simple a5 | 21 Q. Okay. And did you include swith your fettar 12
22 could be, put together a cash flow matrix showing monthly 22 Mr. chwarz a series of calor coded mabs 1o ave what you
23 obligations and monthly receipts. So that wauld Qive us 3 23 daescribe as the big picture of the <[tuat'on we ar2 dealing
24 better picture af thetr -- - of their fiscal situation. And they 74 with? :
did tf“at : 23 A Wedid

[
i
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: S : Page 4311
1 Q, I'm gonna ask'if you can :dentrfy for us these four * Y- tastimony, 1 would ask that.you plaase try to uss f‘ms -
2 maps -- and I have mounted on 2 board for ease of presenting | - 2 muocnonﬂ S the jury and the court reporter can hear yo You
3 tham to the jury -- as the maps that accompaniad your letter. -| 3 THZ WITNESS: \:=-s Your Henor.
4 .A.'_ They appear 15 ba. Certainly from looking at that First 4 THE COURT: Caunsel for cavﬂ*nmﬂnt ma‘,- Move anywh:re
5 one, it has tha fzatures that are described in this latter. 5 i ihe Zurroom fhar they <an se2 thase maps, if you wauld
& And:-iiﬁ'-&uyere te s2e alithe others -- there should have been § ks te. ’ _
7 one e;c'h‘?cji* Or. Sanders' plats -- then yes, that would be the 7 T MR, WITTMAN: It wou[d heip if you tum these things
B set that we sent with this fetter to Mr. Schwartz. g the nant way, doesn't it? Im runnmg cut of easels, We can '
9 Q. Look familiar? : 9 oo from there, Can YOU s‘ep over hare, please, My, Palrneﬂ )
1:0 A. Yes. 10 And siep to *hn mika -< well, I’ 1[ gt the mrcrophone 50 you
11 Q. Okay. And again. all five have the various. multrcoiors 11 canuse ik,
12 that are described -- o - ‘12 BY MR, WITTMAN: .
13 A, Yes. ) 13 Q. Ivetried to set thesh up, Mr Pa-mer runnmcr fram Ieﬁ:
14 (0 - in wvour |arter? 14 tarighoto r=“e"* the Drc:"-wt‘. 3T 3anReRTs 28 v Mo fram
15 A, Right. inar one also. 15 eastio west across the ncrth property lmej
16 Q. And finatly? 16 A Yes, sir.
17 A. And that's the fifth one. 17 Q. and referring Hrst ta the bcara or: the left—hand 5¢de _
18 MR, WITTMAN: Yaour Honor we'd offer these maps in 18 ~ can you telt us what that dEDiC 5 and what those colors star_u_:l ]
19 ewde: :ce as part of Defendants’ B34. 19 for? _ ' . o
20 MS. HARRIS: No-objection. 20 A ¥ you will aliow me, Mr. Wigtman, since it's been aimost
21 THE COURT: Let me ask you this: Defendants 834, 21 four years since I have pored over thesa documerits and.
22 that's collectively all five maps? 22 cartainly these plates to refer to the letter thats aiready
23 MR. WITTMAN: Yes. And the letter that accompanied | 23 been admitted into evidence.
24 them. Ican mark the map separately if you would prefer. ‘24 Q. Please do. _ _ L
25 THE COURT: I was going to ask you if you had the- 25 A Taq explain what the color codes were intended to do and
: : Page 4012 Page 4014
1 mapsina smailer version that could be included in the record. 1 did do when we had these maps prepared, as ¥OU 5ee on page 4 of
' 2" ' MR. WITTMAN: I can get a copy. [ couldn't shiow them 2 the letter, the Iots that have been either sold or are
3 to the jury, though, without mounting them. So that's why i 3 available for sale are shaded pink. And you've got three of
4 did it this way. . . 4 those cthers that — I don't knew that the }ury €an see if you
5 THE COURT: Dces the gavernment have any Db]ECtTC‘ﬁ to ¢ 5 putthosz other two down there.
6 Hawmg Mr. Vattrman the.opportunity to get some smaller = But the areas that were shaded pink are Iots that had
7. versions of what the jury will ses to include in the record’ . 7 already been solé or were avanabie for sale. The roads are
8 M5. HARRIS: Ne, Your Honar. - § colored bluz and orange. The roads that were constructed |n .
9 + MROWITTMAN: Actually, Your Honor, it will be e 9 whaole or in pact by JaCKSO_I'l_CQUnty we shaded bive. - The roads
10 same. vErsion  We just numbered these on a board. The maps— {10 that were constructed by Dr. Beall snd Mr. tucas using their
11 themselves are right thare. I mounted them here simply for 11. forces or their contractors are shadad in orange.
12. easg.of prnsentatncn 12 The lots that are shaded in yeifow are the ones that we.
13 THE COURT: If you wili get me something that's, for: 13 were askmb ‘at that pont to have released for sale, And 1
14 lack cr a batter term, foldable and filable, 14 made note here abaut thesz yel[ow lots, that there are some
15 _MR. W.D“‘MAN, We can do that, Your Honor. 15 that are sot shaded becauss they were :ntem:led to allow access.
16 - THE COURT.: Without ojection then, Defendants’ 16 This one [ spot right here, which is not shaded. And beyor!d
17 Exhibit 834, which is the lettar and the accompanying maps, 17 toat, the areas that are shadad green zre the areas that at )
18" will be marked and admittad: 18  that point in time Mr. Goff and Mr Tomlinson were already _. .I
19" . (Exhibit D-334 marked and received in evidence) 19 recommending be cons:dered for set aside as uar‘ of their
20 MR, WITFMAN: Your Henor, it's difficuit to guestion 20 =merging mitigation pla'l for EPA, 50 that ts the -- 'hat
21 the witness thers about these. Can I set these up on an easal 2:  exoians the multicolor maps that YOU se2.
22 and have the wilhess 2ave the witness box to come °xpiam all 22 . And Joes this exhibit refiect qraphlcally iT you wm )
33 this? : L3 wnat you and [ have been talking about for the past ccuple
24, | THE COURT: Yes., Plgase sét up the microphone. 24 - hours duning your examination with r—‘lspw— to Iots that have
25 Mr. Palmer, sir, vou may siep down during this portion of your 25 b2en sold, iots you ware r\rm:n:;s.ng to seIE and Iois hat wefe'_ '_
L .
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A Well, it's very tadious work, Mr. Wittman: It's the king

1 gonna be used possibly to rhitfgate' - SBrve as_mitigatior_‘n in 1
2 your discussions witn the Environmental Protection Agency? < . of work, honestly, that I as a professional engineer would’
3 A Yes, That was the intent behind preparing these mapsand | 3 enjoy doing. But it's very. expensive when lawyers are doing
4 submitting them to £pa. R L 3 It Butit simply had to be done, in our Spinien; to continye
5 Q. Okay. And just so we're clear, actually this map should 5 o awve the government a very accurate picional representation |
6 reany;iaQ_Ig something like this in terms of it's a land along ' 6  of what woulg have been extremely difficuic o work with jf we -
7 Jim RamZeyRoad; is that corract? o 7 Just, as I've saigt many times, had worked with stacks of paper. |
8 A Thats co?rem. It's a county road that runs east tp B Q. Did you continue to represent Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall '
3 west. Across this extent of the property is the blue line. 2 throughout the saring and the summer of 2001
10 Andthe way these have 'beeh'mourited, they just don‘t-match up |10 A [did. Qur firm -- well, as [ mentioned, my involvement
11 exactly. There are 2 toupfe of things to note, though.' This 11 in the matier ended on the 18th of October, as | recall. So |
12 is an overlap area. That's why it's not shaded. That's just _ 12 was involved with Mr, Crawford throughout the SPTINg, summer
13 the way Dr. Sanders wound up having his maps prepared, 13 and early fail of 2607, : Co
14 And there is ane araa dver hera that i< laft lrﬁcr.‘-iored aft 14 0 And ok e chn, YO whIls boon marics
30 8 Aud 1 think we iy have mentoned that somewnere g this {15 MR. WITTMAN: Can I shaw this just ta the iwitness,
16 fetter. And it was one of the areas where thare was _ 16 Your Honor? ' T
17  substantial se-dirn'en_t deposition in those heavy rains that - 17 BY.MR. WITTMAN: L -

18 washed material from this fidge into this swale. And we left 18 Q. Let me show You what I've marked as Defendants' Extibit
19" it uncovered because that was one of the areas that EPA had 15 835 for identification. Do YOu recognize that as a letter that
20 aiready begun to talk about a5 a restoration area rather than 20 you sent to Mr. Schwartz - that you received from
21 using that s a'miﬁgation area. 21 Mr, Schwartz, [ should say --

22 Q. And we've heard some testimany about Consolidated 22 A Yes. )

23" Investmentg owning some property as weil. Does this map 23 Q. --on May 3rd, 20017

’,;l 24 reflect, if I can put it c_r_ve_r her_e_, the acr_eage that was owned - 24 A Yes. T |
,:-" f135 by Consolidateg Investments 'as well? 25__ Q. O_kfly. And Mr, Schwarts tells you that he agrees tg a
. ] : . Page 4015 _ S n Page 4018
I A We're gonna have to dance a little bit, mMr. Wittman, here. 1 meeting and thinks it's & gobd idea?
2 Q. T'msorry. ' ’ - 2 A Yes.
3 A Yes, it does, As'I:recalf, the property that Consolidated 3 Q. Did you, in fact, go to Ablanta in July of 2001 to meet
4 Investments acquired is the easternmost tract, which is bounded 4 with Mr, Schwartz? - :
5 on the north by Jim Ramsey Road. And it is deprcted on this 5 A Idid asi recall, we struggled with caiendars and wound
5 map essentia’l[y in Section 11, a5 I recail. & up having July 3rd as the enly date that we cauld all be there,
7 Q. And then, finally, this fast sechon, is that a section 7 Mr. Goff, Mr. Tomlinson and I met with Mr. McDermott,
8 that adjoins the prcrpérty on tha scuth over here? o . 8  Ms. Tonglao and several - Mr. Schwart~. Ang as'T recall,
S A Itdoes, Mr. Wittman. But I want o believe it's somewhat 9 Mr. Hough was there.. And I befieve Mr. Wylie was there,

0 morete-the east of where you_-'a_re. Sornewha't more dr)wn inhere. |1p ‘MR, WITTMAN: Again, Your Honar, if | may have the
11 Because that's Sectidh 15, as 1 rec_'an. And it would -- t't ) I1 screen Just for the witness, ) '
L2 would fall where thess -- where the - there's some roads that 2 BY MR. WITTMAN:

13 would have to match up, put that's where that would go. It 13 Q. Let me show you a copy of 3 letter dated July 6th, 2001,
14 would not be o the eng over thers. o : 14 addressed to you from Mr. Sehwartz. Do you recognize that
15 ° Q. That depicts the entiraty of the antire 2,600 acres 15 letter as a copy-of a letter Sent to you on or about July 6th,
16 approximately? o ' B 16 20017 . : -
17 A Yes, sir. _ _ 17 A Trecognize the part of it that 1 sge.

18 Q. Okay. I think you can r23ume your seat, now. And thank I8 Q. Okay. Let me turn to the secand page. Do ybu recognize
19 you very much. M. Palmer, dic it take a lot of effort and 12" Mr. Schwarr signzture? '

20 btmarg compile all these maps and to dc' the kind of work you - 20 A, Yeg, :

21 were doing at Big Hill Acres i Acq| of 2001° 21 MR, WITTMAN: Your Honor, offer into evidence -

22 A T'msory. Asi was Siking dovin, [ was distracted. 12 Defendants’ Exhipit 836.

23 Waould you repear yaur queston? o 23 THE COURT: any objection?

24 Q. what kind of lime ang. efr'cﬁ dig it take te put al this ) 243 ™S. HARRIS: No objection.

25 tagather and present it to s zovernment? ' 25 THE COURT: withaut objection, it will ba marked and

- —
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1- . agmitted. | 1 Q. Okay. But there were this -- indeed notwithstanding what
2 {Exh.git D-535 markad awd rec=-|v=-d n nvidenca) 2 that exhibit Showed you. there wera some lots that had not bee;r;
3 BY MR. WITTMAN: : _ 3 sold you were ‘seaing a refease for correc’c"
4 Q. Had virtaally all of the 19t 2: Big Hill Acres been sold 4 A That's correst.
5 prior to the issuance of the EPA's administrative cease and 5 Q. Andyau got some of those fats released as tlme wenk on,
& desst. Dnder in August of ZUOD’ ' ‘6 did you pot?
? A well, I‘dontmow thati..an say virtually all becausa I 7 A Yes, we did. -
B don't know what that means. T know that, havmg beer in 8 Q. Now, did there come a time in the Fall of 7001
9 business for some five years by that time in 1959 and then by 9 Mr. Paimer, when you were, 1 guess, requested to join the EDA
10 the time the two C and Ds were issued in '99, a number of lots 10 and serve as its regignal dl_r_ector? _
11 had been sold. ] don't know exactly how many. 11 A Yes, sir. ' S
12 Q. As we just saw on the maps we showéd the Jury 3 moment age | 13 Q. And when did that ochur‘f‘ . .
i3 that accompamed vour letter of April 2001, the fots au shaded ' 13 A | recewed word, as best [ recall on the afternoon of .
14 inoink had been =nids carrnet? ' 12 Totobar IOt ©was o a B e Seuls Missiaiog andyguily
15 A Yes, - . 15 cali, not directly fmm the EPA White House limison, but .
16 Q. Okay. Ijustwant to refer briefiy to your letter - the 16 indirectly. He was not able to catch me, but the deputy
17 tetter of Juby Gth, 2001, from Mr. Schwartz to you. And ] just 17  regional administrator called to tell me that they had. gotten -
18 ~ have a couple questions about it. He tells you in the second 18 word that my appmntment had been announced, -
19 paragraph of te letter, does henot, that many aspects of the 1% Q. And when you learned that, what, if anythlng, dtd you do-
0 plan prepared by Wildife Tehhmcai Services were satrsfactary 20 - with rESpec‘t to your representation of Big Hill Acres?
21 correct? 21 A The very next day, completely disengaged fram alk )
22 A Yes. : 22 matters in which T was involved in the firm involving EP4, the
23 Q. And he gees on t deal with other areas that he wanted to 23 Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality, the
24 cormment on; correct? 24 Mississippi Department of Health-and two other agencies which
25 - A He did. The main goat of this meeting for us and, [ 25 administer and enforce certain EPA delegated programs in-
- Page 4020 Page 4022
1 believe, for EPA as well was to have gur first conversation 1 Mrsmssrpp: One is the MlSSlSSlppl Cil and Gas Board. The
2 about the work out plan that Mr. Goff and Mr. Tomfinson had - | 2 cther is the Mississippi Department of Agriculture and
3 progressed substantially on.- Now, we had been told in that 3 Commerce. 1had tc Jmmechately disengage from all activity
4 “letter that'you just showed me from Mr. Schwartz that they 4 involving alt those agenaes and any other activity that might -
5 “wanted a copy of the dacument that Mr. Goff and Mr. Tomlinson 5 .inany way present a potential conﬂact of interest for me.or
6 would be talking from at least Lhree days before the I'"IE‘EL'IHQ | & them. _ o
7 And that was done, as I recall, _ 7. Q. Were you able to give any further advice to-Mr, Lucas-or
8  Sothemam goal of the meeting was to really begih to get § Big Hilf Acres aftﬂr the -announcement of your appomtment -
8 the wetlands scientists from EPA and the wetlands consultants 3 A No sir. -
10 that had been retained by Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beal| fu!iy engaged _“_IIG Q_. -~ tO-EPA? And did you |n fact not glve any . adwce to
11 ‘on the intricacies of the plan that Mr Goff and Mr Tornlmson 11 them after that time?
2 were proposing. o S 12 A. Thatis correct.
13 Q. Okay. 1asked you a moment ago-if you were familiar w'ith 13 MR. WrTTMAN Your Hanor, 1f T csu[d have ]ust one
14 the amount of property that had besn sdid by- Big Hill Acres by 14  moment.
(15 August of 2000::And wi referred to'the maps and o forth. I 157 (Off the record discussion between defense counsel) .
16 -want to refer you to another exhibit in evidénce as Government 15 MR WlTT_MAN Thank you, Mr. Paimer Your. Honor, 1
17 Exhibit 123(a). And that's a summary of the lots sold at Big 17 tender the witness. _
18 _Hill Acres that was introduced durmg the government's case. 18 THE COURT: Lross-examination?
19 That reflects, does. it not, tha' the total soid by August 2000 19 _ CRQSS-EXAMINAT_ION
20 was 670 fots? 20 BY M5. HARRIS'
21 . AL That's what this table shows, 21 Q. Good afternoen, Mr. Paimer.
22 Q. Okay. And that’s the point in time at which the EPA 22 A Good afternocn. _ _ _ o
23 issued its administrativa C and O v restricting the sale of all 237 Q. Mow, you began representing Mr. Lucas and you said
21 future lots? R 24+ Mr. Beall, ig Hill Aces 2nd Consolidated Investments in April
25 A Yes, sir. 25 ' '
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1 - A Thatis correct. ’ 1 coures, One, vou are correct in that thﬁ mardates are broad.
2 . Q. And you've mentioned saveral times that you did this along 2 Interestingly, the reference to secticn numbers is less broad,
3 with your partner, John Cravdford? "3 But re'*a'ulesa. this was a broad -- broadly drawn cease and
4 A. Thatis correct. o 4 desist. .
5 @ And after your representation endad, Mr. Crawford's 5 Q. And Lu&as you Iearned had respmded in writing to--
& continiegy & that cease and desist order on june 15th, 1999, And I'm .
7 A That'E‘r‘ri"?j‘!.mderstanding. _ 7 refernng you to Government Exhibit 130.
5 Q. Okay. And it continued f"or at least a year, didn't it7 ) 8 A Mr Lur;_as adwsed us that he had signed the lettar that
% A Idon't know howong, but I understood that the firm did 8  was addressed to the Corps af Engineers responding to that
18" maintain an open fite, Mr. Crawford would have succeeded me as | 10 cease and desist, yes. :
11 -the file manager.” That's why all of the correspondence was it Q And in that letier, he assured the Corps that there would -
12 over my signat -2 The firm asisigns a file ménagér to each 12 be nc additonal activities in wetfands, didn't he?.
13 .case. And I hac been the file manager. And Mr. Crawford 13 A. That's what it says,
1 :'"*nﬂr"‘-' NN ke the Bl althoonh ke Snd Reen warking wits i 12 L Ang b Esuweed e Duips Uaal Uesd woukd Be g siiditiuna
15 me rom the pegmning. 15 . sales of Iots in wetlands without authorization?
15 Q. Okay. So Mr. Crawfards mvolvement w:th Mr Lucas was _ 16 MR. WITTMAN: Objection, Your Honor. It-misstates:
17 .more extensive than yours" 17 the letter.
18 AL Well, to the extent that there was |nvolvement afterl 18 THE COURT The letter is in evidence. The jury can
19" withdrew, yes. - . 19 * determine what it says.
20 Q. Okay. Ang Mr Crawford's nct in the awkward pasmon of 20 - BY MS. HARRIS: .
21 leading the- agency enformg th|5 crrmmal actuon agamst his 21 - Q. And as you pointed out, the United States Environmental
22 former clignt, ishe? - 27 Protection Agency had also issued what you call a cease and
b 123 A Excuse me. Say that agam 23 desist? '
-"’-";; 24 Q. T said Mr. Crawford'is fiot in the awkward pos:tmn of 24 . A Yes.
H A _Ieadlng the dgency, EPA whnch is enfurcmg this cnrnma! 25 _ Q That too - and I‘m referrmg to Government Exh:blt 131,
: . S Page 4024 ‘Pagé 4026
© 1 action-d@gainst his former client, is"he? ' 1 which was |ssued on August 4th 1999 -- was a very broad-order?
2 MR. WITTMAN: ObjECtIDI'i Your Honor. Argumentatwe 2 AN was, I can't read it; but I know it was. :
3 THE COURT: Objection Susta:ned 3 Q. Ckay.. Let me seeif] can make it a little closer. Broad
4 BY M5. HARRIS: - ) 9 in the sense that it ordered that Mr. Lucas cease partictpating -
5 Q. Inany event, you're testifying here today, not 5 in or causing discharges in wetiands?
& Mr. Crawford; correct? . § A Yas.
7 A That's correct: _ 7 Q. And cease all work-in wetland57
8 Q. And-do-you think that your current position as regionat g MR. WITTMAN Your Honor, T'm gonna. object to her ¢ -
9 administrator of EPA has anythlng tc do.with thaL__._ 9  characterization of - - .
10 A, Well, T was the onotivat was suhpoenaed And my nameis |10 THE REPORTER: Her charactematlon of what?
Il on all of the ietters. 11 ‘MR, WITTMAN: I'm gonna object to her
11 Q. By the time you got involved in this matter in Aprif of 1.‘. characterization of the order. The document speaks for |t5elf-
13 2000, several things had happened; sight, already? 13 and she's mischaracterizing what the order says, '
14 A Yes. 14 THE COURT: Again, that order is before the jury.
15 Q. You menticned ane of those bemg the Umted States Army 13 The jury can cleterrnme what it 53Ys.
16 Corps of Engineers bad issued a cease and desist order? 16 BY MS. HARRIS: : : .
17 A Yes. 17 Q. And you lzamed in April of 2000 that. ‘your client had also
18 Q. And that was - and I'm dil‘EC*mg your, attentlon o 18 responded to the Envm)nmental Protection Agency in wntmg“J R
13 Government Exnipit 129. That was a very broad order, wasnt 19 A Yes. Mr. Lucas provided a copy of this to us.
20 i 20 Q. I'm showing you his response of August 8th, 1909, WhiCh is.
21 AL It was. 21 Government Exhibit 191. :
22 Q. In fact it girectad that your dlients basmally stcp 2 MR, NI"TMAN What is the exhlblt you have an'the :
23 constructing ther subdivisian? . 23 screen, pleass, Ms. Harris?
24 A, well, the mandates are clear. 'won't interpret them 22 MS. HARRIS: 161
| 25 beyond what the;‘_sév. Th_ere are two.things about the ordar, of | 25 MR. WITT_MAN: Thank you.
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1€ recavas them or not or knew about them?

Pages 4027
1 A -Yes. Isee that date in the upper left-hand corner ﬂgrgnL 1 | MS. HARRIS: The letters ars i 2wdznce. But so far -
2 at the top of the screen. S : ‘2 before the jury, Mr. Lucas has Claimed be Pasn’t seen the
3 Q Right? 3 ietters that were sent to Mr. Thompsan. _
4 A, Yes. Ido sesthat dats. o 4 © MR WITTMARN: Mr. Luczs Rasn' expuainec anything to
5 Q. And.Mr_ Lucas states that he's complied with the order; - S this jury. ' _ _
& corredth_ S -6 MR. TIMOTHY HOLLEMAN: Your H_c-_ncr, may we approach?
7 A ThéfE‘u&rﬁat’ it says. 7 May we approach, Your Honar? o -
8 Q. .Okay. Bu! as of-the-time that you began your g8 THE COURT: You may. Seems ke 2. good time to get a
§  representation in April, you knew that Mr. Lucas had, in fact, 9 cup of coffee. 1 don't know boit you. Thank you, ladies and
I:D con-‘.;nued"m:detiélop Big Hill Acres, didn't you? - ' 10 ﬂentlemen of the Jury. Why tor't you go E}Eh.k to the jury room.
11 A wWeknaw that some-lots had béensold.” And that was fiot in | 11 (Jury outat2:47 pm) _
12 doubt. As to additional development activities in the sense of 12 MR. WITTMAN: Your Honcr. may e witness step ogt?
13 roads and thatsort of thifig, e were tdld at the outsét that 13 THE COURT: Would you, Mr. Palmer? _
13 that har hean: rnmnlomd 14 THE WITNFSS: Yo sr Thank whii, Voar 5}.‘{.';.',,
i5 Y. 10id by Mr. Lucass 15 THE COURT You can take a little b.eak too _ )
16 A Yes. . 16 MR, TIMOTHY HOLLEMAN: Ready, Your Honor? Your
17 Q. You then iearned that it was not just the Arrny Corps of 17 Honor, comes now the Defendant Robbie Lucas Wrigley and Tenews
IE Engineers and the Environmental Protection Agency that 18  her mation for a mistrial and adds as grounds for the motnon
19 Mr. Lucas had been involved with; correct? Thiat he had also 19 for mistrial Ms. Harris' comment 1n the presence. of the Jury
20 heard from the Department of Health -- the ‘Mississippi State 20 that Mr. Robert Lucas clarmed. And sne made a statement after
21 Department of Health?. - 21 that about what Mr. Lucas was da:mmg That's a comment for -
22 A, Thatis rorrect. - ) 22 the second time on the defendants’ right to testify or against
23 Q. And you knew that because Mr. Lucas gave you copies of 23 s nght not to testify and to remain silent. And we, again,
24 tetters that he had received from the Department of Health? 24 renew our motion for a mistrial. That's the second time the
25 A, Thatis correct. 25 Assmtant u. s. Attorney has done that in this trial,
. Page 2028 Page 4030
1 Q. And thesz were copies of letters that were addressed from 1 THE COURT: Anybudy glse?
7 the Department of Health to him - to Robert Lu@s? . 2 MR. HOLDER: We join in the motion, Judge if you
3 A, Iremember on2-addressed to him. And there was at least 3 will allow me o join.
4 pne mare or twa more addrzssed to Mr. Thompson. But T helieve 4 MR. WITTMAN: As do we, Your Honor on behalf cf
5 1 remember one that was addressad to bam. 1 5 Mr. Lucas. o .
6 Q. And do you remember that that one addressed to him advised 6 THE COURT: Does the government wish to respond?
7 hum of erroneous recommendations regarding wastewster treatment | 7 MS. HARRIS: First of all, Your Honor, 1 was merely -
.S' systemns? : : 8 responding to your question, And I think that it's clear to
_S° A Idont remember the content of the lﬂtter If you can 9 the jury that the defense can make assertions. through their .
10 show it to me, it may refrash my mernory. But I don't remember 10 counsel. ] was not comm'enting on'ahybody's failure to testify
11 the substance of that or even whan the letter was sent, what 11 or right to sifence. . [ was comme_ntirig'on what has been.
12 year. [dom't have any recollection of that nght now, the ' 12 presented in cross-examination of government witnesses.
13 substance of it 13 THE COURT: Okay.
14 Q. Do youremember; as vou stated; ihat at least one or mare 14 MS. HARRIS: [ also believe that I was commenting on _
(15 letters from the t‘apar‘rment of Health addressed to M.E. 15, something that's relevant to Mr. Paimer's advice to his client
19 Thompson werz provided to you by Mr. Lucas? 16 given that these letters were provided by Mr. Lugas to him. .
17 A Yes. . ' 17 MR. HOLDER: The oniy tning I'q say in response to
15 Q. And. those wers'lettars warning_l‘vlr. Thompson that he was 18 that, Judge I'don't know that any claim has been made at ail
19 placing underorouna septic systéms in saturated soils; correct? 19 that Mr. Lucas said he didn't g2t any notification -
29 MR. HOLDZR: I object tothat because T think the 20 THE REPORTEZR: That he d:dn i get any. nntifcation
21 lettars speak far themsatves. -They'r2 in evidence-and have 21 what? _ _
22 been tesified 1o oefore. ' 22 MR. HOLDER: That he didn't get any notification of
23 THE COURT: .what is it you seek to test here, 23 - any letters that were sent to Mr. Thampson. 1 think there
23 Ms. Harris, thicuss s withess i the letter is already in 24 might -- may be scme that Tnumpson didn't gat a Iet(er fmm the
25 avidancs, wherer i 25

Department of Health, but I'm not aware af any claim by

12 (Pag'es 4027 to 4030)
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THE COURT: Piease bring in the jury.

: ) Page 4321
1 HrLucas that he didn't g2t any letters. _ 1 (Jurv m at 3 09 p.m.)
2 THE COURT: Alf right. In all fairness to 2 THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlﬂmen of the
3 Ms. Harvis, T really- don t see how the comment that she mada 3 ury, bafore.we proceed any further, you may recail that I've
4 can be characterized as a cormment on Mr. Lucas' testifying in % 10ld you many times thar duning the tnat [ may need give you
5 this case one way or the ather. Looking at the record 3 aninstrucion. And it's come time for me o qive you such an
c Jtseif == and Ms. Harris was respondlng te a question by the & instruztion. And I'l ask that you listen very carefuily,
7 Court. And tny question was this, and | quote: Whatisityou | 7 Ladres and gentlemen, the government's attorney made 3
8 seek-to test here, Ms. Harns through this withess if the 8 comment during an objection which may have been taken by you as
& letteris already in evidence, whether he received them or not 9 an indtcation that Mr. Lucas would or should testify in this
19 or knew about them? And than Ms. Harris replies: The letters | 10 case. First, I want to remind you the defendants are presumed
11 are in evidence. But so far before the jury, Mr. Lucas has 11 mnocent until proven guilty. The burden of proof is on the
12 daimed hé hasa't seen the letters that were sent to 12 government until the very end of the case. The defendants have
130 Hr Thompsaon. _ |13 no burden to prove their innocence or to present any evidence
14 I nresiime what Ms Harric was resmndiﬁ.q tnis comments |13 ortn tastfy
115 iuade vy counsei so far rhay_ tend tg ingicate Mr. Lucas had not | 15 Since the defendants have the right to remain silent, the-
16 seen these letters. 1 have great difficulty characterizing 16  law prohibits you from arriving at your verdict from
17 that as # direct and intentional comment on the part of the 17 considenng that the defendants may not have testified. 1
18- government on Mr. Lucas’ failure to testify-br whether he 18 mstruct vou that Mr. Lucas has absolutely na duty. to testify.
19 should testify in this case. _ ' 19 And you are not to held it against him or to consider that in -
vl Ir an abundance of 'caution' hoWE\}er I will instruct the 20 any way as to whether or not he is guilty or not guiity of the-
21 jury, once again, that they retp dlsregard any such comments. | 21 crimes that are charged againét hirm in the indictment.
22 Ifind that Ms, Harris' commients -- again, I have great 22 f{ie has an absolute right under the Constitution of the
23 difficuity charactenzmg them as a comment on Mr. Lucas' 23 United States not to testify, And that is not to be-held -
24 failure to festify. But even if so ccnstrued -- and that wou!d 23 against him by the jury. And 1 want you ta keep that in mind
5 bea stretch -- they were not intentional. And Ms. Harris' 25 &t all times. 1 don't koow whether Mr. Lucas wil testify or
. 4 R
. Page 4032
1 comment was in response to my question. L -net. However, any remarks munsel for the government may have
2 In the future, T think it wotld be prudent if the _ 2 made that might lead you to expect Mr. Lucas to testify should
3 government would be circumspect before they make any mention | 3 be put cut of your minds entirzly. Thank you, ladies and
4 . about the defendants doing anything in responsa even to a _ 4. gentlemen.
5 question asked by the Cuur‘t My guestion was inténded to 5 You may proceed with eress-examination, Ms. Harris.
6 determine whether you were just trying to get the witness to [+ MS. HARRIS: Thank you, Your Honor,
7 corroborate what 5 already in evidence or whether you were 7 the doc cam -- Elmo back — dow cam.
5 gelting to the pomt which is whether or not the contents of 5 EYMS. HARRIS:
2 these letters were made known by this witness to-his clients, 9 Q. Mr. Palmer, I think vou had stated earlier that it was tfie
{10 which may go to the issue of knowledge. And if I mislad ycu, _ 10 April 11th, 2000, letter from ERA with the proposed consent
11 Ms. Harris, for that [ am truly deeply sorry. 11 order that led to Mr. Lucas and Mr. Beall contact:ng you for
12 MS. HARRIS: No, Your Honar, 1 apo!ogize to the 12 representation? :
i3 Court, : : 13 A Yes, Itwas the communication from EPA which preposed the
i THE COURT: That's all tight. [ don't think 4 entry into a consent arder, as I recal!, the documeant was
1% there's -- guite frankly, 1 don't think there's any harm done. 15 captured - was captioneq, rather.
18 Motions for mistrial are dened. 16 Q. And showing you that April 11th letter, which is
i7 Why don't we take a short break as well. And again, I 17" Government Exhibit 178, In that lzttar, EPA 2xpresses conicerm
16 will instruct the Jury upon their return that - ¥ the{/ even 18 about the continuarion of szles at the development berore the
19 heard the commeﬁt, that tﬁey're to disragard it. 19 delineations are completad: is that correct?
2 MR. WITTMAN: Thank you, Your Honor. ‘20 A, That's correct. .
2 THE COURT: we'll be in recass. 21 Q. And they indicate that that concern arises gut of a'site'
2 {Recess at 2:53 p.m., ontil 3:08 p.m.) 22 vz that two EPA employees. made, Palmer Hough and Lee Pele;,
23 THE COURT: Are we ready to proceed? 23 on March 7th of 2000; is that carrec? .
3z " MS. HARRI3: Yes, Your Honor. 24 A, Thal's what 1t says.
23 25

Page 4034

If I could have

Q. Tnat's what it says.” Did you have some reason to doubt . ... -
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Q. Ckay. And so you reviewed the history of the case?.

_ : Pagz 4035 Page 40““
1. the veracity of that statement? : 1 A Yes.
2 A If's not a mater of veracity. It's that one thing you' 2 Q. And you reviewed the lav?
3 just asked me to look at talked about sales, and the nextthing [ 3 A.- Yes. ' '
4. talks about dredged and/o: fill material. *And I am again 4 Q. And you assessed the risks that \mur clienits aaL=d7 '
5 looking at these things for tha first time in'a long time. And 'S A. Whichis -- yes. Tnat's what iawyers do,
6 whatl ~+@s looking for is something that conaects the sale of {6 Q. Right. A"lc! then you adwsed them?
7 property” t‘tﬁhe aHegat:ons of dredged or fill material 7 A Yes.
g associated with a sale. 8 Q. Andyou dldl‘l { say 1o them at the ttme T'ru'_s s
9 Q. Could it be that a sale of a lot containing wetlands 9 outrageous; we're gonna fight this"? T
lUE_ mvo[wng putting inhabitants on it who will then Filt the lot 10 A No, _
{1 in the course of living there? I1 Q. Youdidn't say to them that the government hasno .
12 . MRWITTMAN: Objectmn Vour Honor. Cal[s far 12 authority aver this property?
13 speculation... : 13 A. Mo, 1didn't say that. _ o
14 THE COURT: He can festify tn what he norcsived 140 Vou, in fact, told them that they choule! tyrcua 2
i»  Unecton overruled. 15 settiement with all parties? '
16 A Well a lot of things could happen after a sale is made. 16 A, That's exactly right. ' _ .
17 Q. In any event, the proposed order stated respondent shafl | 17 Q. And you told them this because yeu know that when there‘s
18 - immediately cease marketing, selling, conveying, et cetera. | 18 a significant risk of losing, it's best to negotiate?
19 Ar. that was never signed; right? 19 © MR, WITTMAN: Ob_]ectlon Your Honor. Calls for
20 A. No. Thatwas the proposed order. 20 speculation,
21 Q.. Now, up until this point, Mr. Lucas and his partner, 2U THE COURT: Overruled. .
22 Mr. Beall, had been reprasenting themselves? ' 22 A It's best to negotiate regardiess of the risk. Settlerﬁent'
23 A It appears that that is the case; I'm not aware -- 23 s far preferable in my opinicn than protracted and expenswe
24 centainly during the time period of the cease and desist order | 24 legal fights,’ _
25 by the Corps or.the cease and-desist order by the--by EPA or (25 Q. In any event, vour first letter to EPA was on May 10th.
Page 4036 | Page 41333
1 the proposed order that EPA sent and you just put on the 1 Andmn that letter, which is Défense Exhibit 811, your entire
4 - screen, I'm.not aware that they were represented by legal- 2 ‘representation of Mr. Lucas was premised on the_ fact that Blg._
3 counsel anywhere. : : 3 Hill Acres do contain jurisdictional wetlands? . - '
4 Q. 5o your understanding was that they had been dealing with | 4 A, Would you show me what you are referring to, please? '
5 the Department of Health, the Army Corps of E nglneers and the 5 Q. I'mdiracting you to page 3 whare it states: 'To be sure,
& EPA with no legal counsel?, ' & we now know thal some of these deveiopment actwltres were
7. A. Yes. . 7 conducted.in regu1ated wetlands, but mast were not."
8 Q. Andyou had been head cr MDEQ for the pnor 1" years; is 8 A. That's what we said based on the initial :nformatlcn we _
Y that _sight? — 9 gathered from Mr. Lucas and Dr. Sanders.
10  A. Yes. From September of 1887 until January 1st of 2000. 10 Q. And what regulateET«Te'frands meant was that they were
11 Q. And there was a big natice in the paper when you Ieft DEQ |11 covered under the Clean Water Act under Sertion 4047 '
12 and:joined the law. firm of Butler Snow?’ 12 A Regulated wetlands are covered under the Clean Water Act,
13 - A. Yes. The law firm published an announcement. - 13 Section 404. _ _ _
14 Q. And your clients mentioned to you that they saw this 14 Q. And you also stated down here, I think rigit here, that
15 '_ notice when they sought you out for. representation? - 15 jurisdictional wetlands have been al‘fectedj
16 A. Dr. Bealt specificaily mentioned that to me, yes. 16 A Thats what it says.
17 ° Q! Sothey came to you for guidarce? 17 Q. That's right. And there were several ather referenc-ﬂs to
1 A Yes, 18 regulated’ wetlands in your first letter?
19 Q. And they came to you bezause of your wealth of expenence 19  A. Yes. i ' o
20 -in dealing with these environmental matters"" 20 Q. There is aiso 3 - I‘I! get a little closer -- statement
21 A That's what they said.. 21 that-- and I'm rererrmg down here to what's highlighted --
22 G And they came i you -~ lat's nat be modast - becausa you | 22 that Dr. Sanders has pointed out, I assume to Mr, Lucas, that
23 wera considerad one cf the tops in the field? ' 23 several areas that he recognized not only as jur.sdtct:onal but
21 AL Well, some would say that. 21 impacted wetlands?
RES 2

A. That is correct. Dr, Sande'rs; fo!iow_ing the protccolﬁ'.
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Page 4043

Lv. Sanders had already gotten 2neugh mto his work that we

asked him if he vrould be able Lo at that point in time ]

differentiate dmong the typen ‘and kinds of lmpacts th_at he had

cbserved ang aftribut= those typeés and kinds of impacts to

- particular partiss doing particular things.- And Dr. Sanders

s3id that‘he could not. We were faced with & decrsmn af
pressing fcrward to try to promote 2 settiement or stopping and

: launchmq into collateral imgatlon to press thls party paint

. at the time. And we chose not to, _

Q. 5o the answer was ng? You didn't?

A, We didn't pursue it further for those r:eascnsll_

0. She also looked into vour sucigestiod that the property

: owners themseives were liable’ and pointed out to yau, !

[

";-e“é--:, bk -pa-ge S 1.2t Lhe nay i H
- families who ate first time purchasers and worklng people who
: need affordable housmg And she was quoting there from cne of
the answers that Mr. Lucas and Mr. Beall gave in their
: informatian request or mavbe just Mr. Lucas. She also pointed
- out, didn't she, that these pedple were not made aware of the
fact that there werp wetlands on their property?
_ A. The exact words, Ms. Harris, are: Most were not aWate of
 the existence of wetlands and are not aware of the legal
ramification of filf activity on their lots, which is exactly
" the same pasition that Dr. Beall ang Mr., Lucas advanced to
Mr. Crawfdrd and me at our ﬁrst meeting.

Iy Wl P e

Wm N enL

Page 4045
THE COURT: Ob]ECUOﬂ sustanec. What is relevant

herﬂ.fgr our purposes, Ms. Harris, is what this attorney may
have told his client. which aoes to knowledge. So lap's try to
facus on that. Objaction sustained. -

BY M. HARRIS: L

Q. Vvould ¥ou agree that se!hng proaerty CGr‘tEunlng wetlands

- by misrepresenting the nature .of that property is fraud?

MR, WITTMAN: Objection, Your Henor,
THE COURT: Objection sustained.

- Q. You went over @ June 9th letter that you submitted to EPA

containing responses to information request. That was Defense
Exhibit 11237
A Yes,

~~ -~
~. LD

there's a specific question ~ and that's Questioa 11 --
about -- do You have a copy of that?.
A Yes, | do.

34 that one? And in that dune 9t leiter,

: Q. About mads The questmn askmg When did respondent

begm to update old logging roads and then construct new roads?. .
Pravide the dates when work began. Now, thls dascription: of -

the road construction goes on for nearly three pages; cerrect‘«‘ :

A, Correct

Q. And as I stated this was submitted June 9th, 20007
A. Yes,

' Q. Nou;v, this description of the reads_ in Big. Hill Acres does

i N ‘ Page 40344
Q.- Well, it's here that, Ibelneve EPA through Ms. Cox first

indicate that the fact that this information ‘is not makmg its
“way apparently to: the homeowners i is the reason why they are
-going to have o engage in communlty cutreach cc;rrect’ h

- A. Yes. [ testified to that earlier. a

' Q. Now you advised both EPA and your cllents that the sale

of lots containing wetlands in and of itself did not wolate '
-Section 404 of the Clean Water Act’ '

‘ot mention Sugargate Road;l does it?

Page 4045

A Twould have to read each of the paragraphs and see. [ -
can't recall from memary, without doing that, if it does or
doesn't. But if you say it dclesnt then I will accept that,

hat it doesn't. . -
Q. I‘ve hightighted the road names on thls capy, |f it will -

help. . :
A, 1don't see, at first blush, a reference to Sugargate, no.
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A. Tdid. "And they agreed. -

- _€. Ang you don t see elther g reference to Barksdale, do yeu?

. Q. But you would agree, wouldntyou that the placement of 10 A. Excuse me? :
‘underground septic systmns mte federally protected wetlands 11 MR. WITFMAN Db}ECtIOI'l The- document isin

“does violate Section 404 - o 12 ‘evidence. And Ms. Harris represents the road is not in there.
"A. Yes. _ 13 We can proceed with that,

Q. - if done without 2 permit? 14 THE COURT: Are you testing his atullty to see?

A. Doing anythung in a regulated wetland ‘which is regulated 15° MS&. HARRIS: Nuo, Your Honor. I'm just testing what -
'under Section 404, uniess it is specifically exempted is 16 _ -mfo.matmn was provided and what roads were actually built
‘subject to the regulatory requirements of Section -104 17 afer Juns Bth, 2000.

Q. And you would so advise any dient? i8 THE COURT: This witness can shed no more. llght than

A. Yes. Because that's the faw. 19 what is already in evidence, the document itsaff. Objection is

Q. And you would also agraa, wouldn't you, that the placement | 20 sustained.

of an underground septic system into a wetland violates 21 BY MS, HARRIS:
Mississippi State law, the rogulatlcns regardlnu mdwndual en |22 Q. Justio summarre then, if L may, the Follow:ng rpads are
site wastnwatﬂr Jisposal systems’ : |23 net mentkioned, are they? Sugargate, Eark:.dale Regale,
MR, WITTMAN: Again. Your Honar, object to reievanc= |24 | Burgundy, Redgate, Roanoke, ]
VIGlEltIOI'l of Mississippi |aW |25 MR. WITTMAN: Objection.

16 (Pages 4043 to 4046)
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1. THE COURT: I justsustained that obiection. Sustain 1 A It appears to be such, yes. o o
2 itagain. o . ' 2 G Andit's an e-mai lfmm Thanne Cox to 5almer HDUqh and‘Les
3 MS. HARRIS: I'l move on. 3 Pelej and athers mvoI\rﬂd in thrs cass?
{4 BY MS. HARRIS: ’ 4 A Un-huho .
5 Q. Would you agree that roads that are not mentioned in 5° Q. And it reFernnLes a sit2 visit that Ms. Cm and I\.r Hough
g . Quelel are not menticned because’ they werg benng 6  made an July 20th?
7 constructéd at that time or at a later time? 7 MR. WITTMA'\ I'm going ta obIE't tD her test:fymg
8 MR. WITTMAN: Again, Your Honor, ob]ect ta 8 what's in the document untit she offers it.
S - speculation. Q THE COURT. Qbjection sustamed. .
10 - THE COURT He can tEStITY it he knows. Ob]ecuor‘ 10 MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, I can link it up.
11 overrufed. il THE COURT: You want him to Just identify :t?
1Z A And ] don't know the answer to that quest:on about wihy' 2 MS. HARRIS: It mdlcates - .
13 any roadway was not mentioned. 13 THE COURT: Don't tel me what it md:cates You
P14 0L Tl mave onte a latter written Tune 15k, RIGHI LS DT wnnt this wingss tn idantife @0 :5 bz czpable :;‘ Hen
g 15 Mr. Lucas from the Mississippi Department of Enviranmental =~ | 15 #? Do you know what that is, Mr. Palmer? .
16  Quality and the Department of Health. It's Government 16 THE WITNESS: No, sir, Ms. Harris charactertzed it
17 Exhibit 132, And T don't know if Mr. Wittman went over this 17 as an internal EPA document But its ‘ot one of my flrms
18 "one. Butdo you recall being pmwded this letter by your 18 documents. .
‘19 cllenﬁ1 19 THE COURT: All nght Hﬂ doesn't kncw what it is.
20 A Ido recall this latter, yes. It's diffiéuit to read on 20 BY MS. HARRIS: , .
21 the screen. But because it's dated June 15, 2000, it would 21 Q. bid you recefve a telephone call or do you recail getnng
22 have been after we commenced representation of Dr. Bealland |22 a telephone call from Thanne Cox shortly after July 20th of the
23 Mr, Lucas. And so'we expected them to bring to us any and au 23 year 2000 reg_arding cn'nt_inuing work in Big Hili Acres,
ff! 2% correspondence from any governmental entity. . o 24 specifically on Ruanck_e'Ruad, Regale anq Sugargate Roads?
7125 Q. And you recalt that it was yet another cease arid desist 25 A Idon't recall getting the phone call. ' But that's four
o Page 4048 Page 4050
1 order, do you not? 1 and a hail years ago. But | do not recall right now gettinga -
2 A Yes. It was - would vou flip to the -[ast';jagé? 1 think 2 call, But we were engaged. And if anycne from EPA, cert@inly
3 lremember the signatonies. But yes, it is a joint directive - 3 Ms. Cox, the attorney of record, had called, T would have or
4 issued by representatives. of the Department of Environmeantal. 4 M, Crawford would have responded..
5 Quaility and the state Department of Heaith. 5 . Do you remember anything at all about further deveiopment
6 Q- You mentioned the June 23nd, 2000, meet: ag inr Jackson \-ruh & inJuly of 2000 In Big Hill Acres? . S .
7 & whole cast of peuple correcr? 7 A No, I would not. Twas not on the ground -- being in
8 A Yes. B Jackson -- in the developments in Jackson County I was not
9 Q Ang on June 23rd; 23rd, that's the date that - havmg the topic 9 down-there,
10 arise at the June 22nd mesting regarding contmurng sales, you |10 Q. Mr. Wittman next went to the July Luth, 2000, letter,
11 had Mr. Crawford speak to Mr. Lucas and your other cirents and 11 which contained the second cease and desist from the EPA.
12 they agreed on June 23rd not to sell any mare lots, penod 12 A. Excuse me. The July?
13 without authorization? 13 Q. The July 26th, 2000, letter, which contained a second
14 A Yes. ' 14 cease and desist from the EPA, which 1 Deiueve is Governmert
15 Q. And you conveyed thatto Betty Ruth Fox? 15 Exhibit 133. “And in thns letter, 1 belleve once again, EPA
15 A Befty Rith Fox. ) : 16 outlined their ewdencn of ongoing activity, .vhnch was
17 Q. Now, I2t m2 shaw you what I'm markimg a5 Government 17  basically through site visits; is that correct?
18 Exhibit 213, wiich you have sézn before, 18 A, Thatis correct,
19 {Off the record discussmn banwvesn government and derensa 13- Q. And I think that it might be this Iet*er - it mu:;ht be
20 Lounsel} ' 20 the next one --where they md:catﬂd that between the cease and
21 BY MS. HARRIS: 21 desist of Jyne 3rd, 1999, and that following. year, Big Hill
22 Q. Now, lat ma snow vou wﬂal:s hoan marked #s Gov:-rnment 22 . Acres had soid 117 additiorial lots; is that - - o
23 Exiubit 21 3, whizh 1 believe you rna" have s@2n one {ime bacre 23 A Well that's what they set forth in th=|r remals as-a
23 A, Yes, . 24' predicate for their mandate. 50 it's there, That's what they
25 Q. This is actually an internal EPA document; co._'-rec:? 25

said.
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1 Q The sale of these. 117 additional lot_-. would be contrary to | 1 own werk Jproduct, substantiel numbers. of 1ot5 nat by his pun
2 what Mr Lucas told the Corps in h|s June 15 1O99 !etter 2 opmaon contalned wetlands There are'also subsLant:al numters
3 correct? 3 of lots that don't contan. arw 5 to say thal.somsbody woyle
4 MR. WITTMAN: Db]e"tron Your Hmcr 4 e hard pressed to buy one tnat didn't, hen { would ngg agrea
'S. MlSChEI racterizes the letter. ' 5 wath that. 1 would call it an over characterization.. _
6 - THE COURT: Overruled. He can testify if hn knows, [ & Q. On August 1si, 2000, Gavernment Exhitit 122, vou subritzer
7 A I wild have to go back and look at the language in the 7 tothe EPA the D. R.’Sanders' delineation;. correc:? :
B letter. And I will, if you can retrieve it, since you're 8 A Yes.
9 asking me to compare cne set of facts with an earher % Q. And the statzd pu_rpose of this deiineation was o
10 representation. _ 10 detarming federél!y requlatac wetlands; correct? -
11 Q. Okay. Going back then to the June 15th, '99, ietter -- 11 A. The stated purpose was to give to EPA Dr. Sanders' - .-
12 I'm gonna get the exhibit number, which I believe is ' 12 opinions of where wetlands areas were focated on the progerty - -
13. Government's Exhitit 130, ' ' ' 13 and to also identify, again, as required by EPA befare wa
(14 A ver, 11 bochmn enchaed, thoowdeobSooton of roctain ¥ sinns oF bmpsoes
L i5 Q_.'-';'ve justundertined 1t, - 15 That was the purpose of the Sanders' work at_that peint bafore -
16 A. Yes. ' 16  we then later asked him to prepare a summary report.
17 Q. It states: "No additional lots containing impacted _ 17 Q. You, I think, impiied in your direct testimony that
18 wetland will be sold without authorization from your office"? | 16 Dr. Sanders had some issues with Mr. Hough and there were same
19 A, That's whét it said. 19 disagreements on the actual delineations?. o
20 Q. I'm gonna show you somethmg that you have not seen 20 A. Yes, according to Dr. 5anders' conversations with me. -
21 before, but what's previously been admitted as Government's (21 Q. Were you aware that when Mr. Hough ponted out areas where
22  Exhibit 205. Thisis an -- a graphic prepare_d by Peter Stokely | 22 they disagreed to Dr. Sanders that Dr Sanders did, in fact,
23 of the Environmental Protéction Agency that depicts the 23 agree that there were errors?
24 boundaries of Big Hill Acres You ¢an see that, can't you? 24 A. T'm aware that in some situations Dr. Sanders did, in
25 A, Yes, 25 fact, a?ree to amend his call. And'in other areas, Dr. Sanders
. - ' Page 4052 Page 4054 |
1 . Q. And the jurisdictional wetlands determination made by D.R. 1 declined o do that.
2 - Sanders, which would be the green lines, if you could see that. 2 Q. Were you sware that when Lhese errors were usuaily pointad
3 A Ican. And what's the date of this view? 3 out, Dr. Sanders said it was because of his son.or Arville
4 Q. T believe this is a 2003 aenal sateihte image - aerrai 4 - Touchat?
5 Imean. : : 5 A Well, I'm not aware of that detail of conversation between
6 A Thank you. _ 6 these people on the ground. :
©7 Q. And each one of the lots -- each one of these red déts 7 Q. And are you aware that the area in which there was any.
8 represents a'lot in Big Hill'Acres that contains wetlands on 8 disagreement at all comprlsed less than six acres of the entire
9 i L o 9 2,600 acre tract?
0 MR WITTMAN: Your Honor, I'm gonna object to this 18 A, I'm not aware of the number, na.
11 line of cross-examination. This witness has not seen this 11 Q. Moving on to your September 12th, 2000, Ietter which is
12 document before. o 12 - Defense Exhibit 818, you, once again, assured or werz assured
13 THE COURT: What s your question? 3 by Big Hill Acres that all sales transactions had ceased on
14 MS5. HARRIS: My question, if I could get to i, is 14 " Friday, June 23rd; correct? .
15 -there are 656 red dots on thlS graphrc in B|g I-'|II Acres And 13 A, We were assured that this had occurrad, yes.
16 1 would ask - | B 16 Q. And that was, again, based on wha[ your clients had told
17 MR, WITTMAN: Your Honor T'm gonna ahject to her 17 you?
18 testifying. 18 A, Yes. .
19 MS5. HARR1S: Thatwas testimcny - 19 §. And you alsg Domted out or took the opportunity to point
20 THE COURT: Overruled. Let me hear the quesaen 20 oufthat you had spent quite -- your clients had spent guite 3
21 BY MS HARRIS: 21 sumof maney in deimeatlons £150,000; and in efforts to
22 Q. Would you agres with me that one would be hard pressed to | 22 stabmzn the area through grass seed and hay, 1 believe you
23 sell a-ot in'Big Hill Acrés that did not coritdin wetiands? 23 said, to the tune of 5375,0007
23 A.-T'mnot going to agree with you on the characterization of 4 A Yes. _ .
LES hard pressed. Therz arz certainly,'according to Or. Sanders’ 25 Q. Now, you wou!dn t have encouraged ycu ehents m Spend
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1 that kind of money if you felt that the government had no I BY MS. HARRIS: . - .
2 regulatery authority over this prc:perty would you? 2 Q.' Once again, you stated that your clients hag dgreed to
3 MR. WITTMAN:- Objection, Your’ Honor 3 cease ail sales as of Juhe 23rd, 20007
2 THE COURT: Overruiad. + A, That's correct.
5 A No. Again, as | have testified repeatedly tdday, we hegan S Q. Now, Gavernmerni Exhibit 21 7(n) 15 the sale of Ict AI 15 on
b our attecgpt te represent thase clients with wewpo:nt of . 6 July gth of 2000';' torrsct?
7. promct:ng~s&ttlement Given Dr. Sanders' work, we were looking 7 A That's what it S3YS. :
5 &t the prospects ultimately of government requirement te do B Q. And Government Exhibit 212{0] 'nvclves the sale of lot F-8§
& restoration, additionat stabiiization and rhitigation. And so g on AugusL 17th of 2000; correct?
10 , We encouraged our clients to continue Lo weork wherever there 10 A. That's what it says. :
11 . was destabilized soil ta prevent any further erosion, ail in an il Q. Government Exhibit 21‘r‘(pJ involves the sale of lob FR-20.
12 effort to demonstrate a good faith appmach to resolv;ng thesz 12 . And you can tell from the sheet attached to it that that wason
13 issues, 13 August 24th of 2000; correct? )
14 Q. On October j0t’|~ 2000 s a lstter fram yoir o FPa, 14 A Lot me inak barauce thare's no date on the cover rsheot,
i 1& ° Government Exhitit 134, you were sEEking intenim rener 15 where are you ioaking for a date on the second sheet? - -
16 regarding 55 particular lots and seeking ta sell these lots to 16 Q. You can tell the date right there {indicating}.
17 stem the -~ what, the cash flow toss? 17 A Okay.
18 A Yes. . 18 Q. That's where they also indicate the date.
13 Q. And shortty theréafter, 35 you've pointed out earlier, 19 A Jseeit _ . o
20 “there was a response. And particutar jots were specified as 20 Q. And Government Exhibit 212{q} involves a renta! or ease
21 lots that could be soid; some that could: be soid with 3 21  of lot YY-8 on September 28th, 20007
22 disclaimer; and others that could not be sold? 22 A. That's the date shown,
23 A That's.right. ‘And I've alsp said that I was very 23 Q. And Government Exhibit HH-5 involves the sale of lot
24  appreciative of EPA's granting this relief, It was ré;ianal!y 24 HB-5 - I'm sorry. Government Exhibit 212(r} is the sale of
45 based. And it really‘heiped our clierits deat with their fiscal 25 lot HH-5 on October 27th, 2000; correct?
Page 4056 o e Page 4058
1 difficulties. _ 1 A, That's what this shows. - : :
Z Q. And you stated that you were familiar with the BiQ Hilk 2 Q. Were you aware of these sales of property?
3 Acres contracts; correct? ' 3 A No.
4 A. We had been given copies of the documents that they had 4 Q. Were these'rontiary to the agreement that had been made
5 been.using over a number of years {o effect their sales, yes' 5 with the Environmental Pratection Agency not to sl property?
6 Q Can you identify the Foflowirg Gevernment's Exhltn{ 212(ny | & A, Yes. :
7 through 212{(q) -- {r}. I'm sorry. 21 2{r). ' 7 Q. Turnmu your attention back to this particular set cf lots
B A, These are marked 213{n) through 212{r). 8 - that were lisfed as the do not sefl lots, at least withaout
9 Q And they are Big Hili Acres contracts for the saie of 9 authorization and a premitigation.pfan, in Government Exhibit
10 property; correct? 18 135, Iwant to show you what's besn marked as Government -
11 A. That's what they are captioned. So [ presume yes, they 11 Exhibits 212(a) through {n}, I befieve. And once again, ask
12 are: Andthe parties that are named at the outsel below the 12 you if you can ;dennfy these as the sale of lats by Big Hift
13 header reflect Big Hill Acres, yas.- 13 Acres. - _ -
14 MS. HARRIS: Yaur Honor, I'd move for admission of 14 A Well, these are :opips of contracts, which, as the ones
15 Government's Exhibits 212{n} through (r).” 15 . you just showed me, appear to be records of sales transactions
15 MR. WITTMAN: Are those covered by a prior 16 invalving Big Hill Acres properties. :
17 Stipuiation7 17 MS. HARRIS: Your Honor, I'd move for the admission
18 MS. HARRIS: Theyrﬂ just contracts we got These 18  of Government's Exhibits 212/} through -- 1 think it's (n) -
19 arose in the course of his tesumony _ 19 {(*n}, as in Mary, _
20 MR. WITTMAN: Mo objection as to authenticity, Your 20 THE COURT: Any objection? :
21 Honor. They appear to be zuthentic documents. 21 MR, WITTMAN: It would take a fot of time to go
22 THE COURT: If there's ne objé__-ttion then, they'll be 22 through all. tnesn individually. We've just seen them for the .
23 markad and admitted, _ 23 first time here. They do appear to be authentic. If counsel
24 . (Exhibits G-212(m) th'ouch G-21 (r} marked and received in | 24 represents they are documents that are received from us, T will
25  evidence) ’ ' ' 25 accept that representation.
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MS. HARRIS: They were, Your Honor.

Page 4{31:“

it 1 A, Nc. ] L . .
2 THE COURT: without ub]ection they’ll be marked and 2 Q. That would affect the slatnmem ‘fDU made wculdn‘* it, in
3 aamltted Government's Exhibit 212(a) through (m). h 3 'your Crrober 20th, 2000, ietter that Big Hill Acres wag not
| {Exhibits G- 212(a) through G-212(m} marked arid received iy | 4 having any new income: correct? _ _ B
5 evidence) ' ' 5 © MR. WITTMAN: Objection tc argumentative, Your Hongs
& BY MS ﬁARRIS A+ THE COURT: Objectron overruled. L
7 Q. Tummg-your attention to Gcwernrnent's Exhlblt 7’12{a), 7 A Ifhad known about these transactions, thCh I did not,
B thatisa cant*act far sale between B:g Hill Acres and someone 8: then yes, it would have cartawnly affected any representation
9 buying lot AB-9 on June 16th, 2001; correct? ' ' S about losing i income. But I've testified that 1 was not aware -
10 A, That's what it says. 10 of what you now have introduzad intg ewdence And so the .
11 Q. Ckay. And ot AB-S, there's one of those listed in the do 11 staterment that [ wrote at the ume, having no knowiedga of .
12 not seil category in your October 315t 2000 letter is that 12 this, would stand. : L
13 correct? : 13 Q. I'mnot trying te impugn your integrity. I'm just saying .
14 & Thatic what tha chart in the lstar chowe, 1 that thay word, in foct making TSTEY . WEIAN T RS T Vi ]
15 Q. Aid lhis was o feiler inat you forwarded (o your chients? 15 clients were, in fact, makmg maney because they were selling.
16 A Yes. - o 16 lots?
17 Q. Government's Exhibit 212(h) involves the sale of lot AJ-5 17 A. Well, these contracts reflect transactions that caHed fur
18 on May 12th, 2001. AJ-5 being-in Section 11, which is also 18 the payment of proceeds to the seflers, yes. —_—
19 listed on that chart; correct? 18 Q. And.they were, in fact, not missing opportunities, as one
20 A. Correct. 20 of your other fetters said, referring to lost opportunities .
21 Q Government Exhibit 212{c) involves the sale on May qth, 21 " because they couldn't sell property? S
22 2001, of lot P-10; which is also on that list of do not sefl 22 A Weil, I den't know about the relative numbevs of these
23 lots; corfect? 23 things that you're talkmg about and how big a lost opportunity
24 A. Yes. Now, I'm switching back and forth from the screente | 24 it would be. But certainly to have made a flat statement that
25 the documents trying to follow you here. I think 1-'can-c_cmcbr 25 al opportunnties would have been lost in the face of some.-
Page 4060 . _ Page 4062
1 with what you just said. 1 transactions would have been a misrepresentation,
2 Q. Okay. Ifit helps, ot P-10 is writteri-on the last 2 Q. Would You agree that it looks like your chents were -
3 line -- the first one in the last line under Section 8 and Fox 3 telling you one thmg and dc.ag anather? S
4 Run extension on your screen. 4 MR. WITTMAN: Objection, Your Honor.. Argumentatzve
5 A Give me the exhibit nurtiber again, please. 5 THE COURT: Cb}ec”mn sustained.
& Q. P-10 was Government Exhibit 212(c). _ N 6 BY M5, HARRIS: . .
FOOA 212(q). Okay Iseﬂ pP-10 wrltten under descrlpnon of 7 Q. Justone more note on that October 3ist [etter because lt
8 land parcel. ' 8 did come up. In that iast paragraph, Ms, Cox-does tell you -
S5 Q. And you see it dn the list on the IastJme as undf:r_the 8  that she is leaving the office and that Paul Schwartz will be
10 do not sell colivnn? ' 10 taking over; carrect? '
11 A Yes, I'do. _ 11 A Yes, shedoes. .
12 Q. Government Exhibit-212(d - _ 12 .Q. You mentloned in that — in your direct testlmony that at
13 THE COURT: Ms. Harris, do you-intend to go through 13 a-certain point - and it might have been the October 20th
14 each one of these cantracts and simply have this witness 14 . letter -- you approa;hed EPA with t'1e idea of selling land chat
15 confirm and comparz between one exhibit and another? _ 15  had been previousiy inhabited? o :
16 MS. HARRIS: T just have 5 few more. I'do mtend to " 116 A. Yes. Theletters will reflect !.hut we asked tr—A about
17 do that. I could’just list them. 17 resales. . .
18 THE COURT: I think the jury is‘very capablé of 18 Q. And I believe that was the Cctober 20th, EIUDD, letter;
19 making the same comparison and réaching the sarhe co'r_'.'cl_usibns' 19 correct? . ' o
20 without the riecessity of this witriess going. over it Let's © 120 A, Well, 've gotten so much. pc.p"—‘l’ here I rﬂa]ly need to
21 move along to something that this Wlti"lESS @n I::e heiprul with. 21 clear the desk, if you don't mingd. .
22 BY MS.HARRIS: : o '22_ Q. Let me ‘see here. Ivn got a ot .of paDer too
23 Q Were you awara of the fact that your clients were anilmg 23 A Did you say the. O..t ber or September "Bth October "‘Bth'r‘
24 properties after the October 31st, 2000, lettar that were 24 which lettar, please? . L
25 ’ _25 Q. 'mwrong. It was the \Jove'ncer 13t Jetter whn:h was -

specifically on thﬂ do notsell list? -
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I'm not sure what exhibit that was.

Page 4065

1 17 Q. Mr. wittman shewed you a letter. whrch L don’t happen to
2 MR. WITTMAN: Defendants’ Exhibrt 822, I thlnk 2 have, | believe written gn 12-21, 2000, where you first learned
3 BY MS. HARRIS: : - 3 of the Department of Justice’s involvement; is that correct?
4 Q. Defense Exhibit 8§22, where I think 'you brrhg ﬁ_p the idea 4 A Yes. - '
S of seiiing lots that had been foreclosed vpon? : 5 Q. And I think you exgressed alarm at that pont that this
& A Yeah: 1 was lcokrng for the Ietter I just don thave it & zase had gotten to that stage, didyou -- o
7 herein thls" stack ) o 7 MR, WITTMAN: T don't.think the witness expressed-any
8 Q. Ive got it on the sr:reen for you B atarm, Your Honor.
9 A Okay. ' ) 9 BY MS. HARRIS:
10 Q. And you indicate in this letter that'ybu wilt r:ompile a 10 - Q. You mentioned ssmething about suronise? ’U‘»hat vias it you’
11 list and submit it for review regarding these particular 11 said? . . _ _
12  properties? ' 12 A well, I believe when [ was asked about the letter and 1
13 A, That's what we said. It wis being comp:ied and will be 13 was shown the letter, | made the comment that I now better
1% submitied for review. Would you bsck us and iet me SEE ThE ¢ 15 undESIAAG in Ry Cunent Chaciy Fhan T did S st e
15 remamaer of this letter, please. so 1 can see the context aof 15 these matters or:grnate within EPA and at a point in time maybe
16 what was being said? 16 referred to the Department of lustice, And when we got the
17 MR. WITTMAN: I thmk he wants to see rhe ﬂrst page 17 letter that the anartrnnnt of Justice had become.invelved, 1
18 of this exhibit. 18 was surprised at that paint. 8ut EPA had made 3 decrsron to .
19 MS: HARRIS: Oh, the Frst page 18 refer the matter.
20" BY MS. HARRIS: ' 20 Q. And you're aware, since you are regional administrator,
21 Q. Ithought you wanted - 21 . that the EPA does have guidelines regarding the enforcement
22 © A. Yeah. Ijust would hke to see what paragraphs come 12 when a case is ¢ivil, when a case is cnminal?
23  before,  ° 23 A, Yes. _ L e
24 Q. This was 'tha't"one-day'turnaround, if-'you recall, w_here you {24 Q. And you're aware that ca_se_s-_gd erir_ninai when there are -
25 tried to correct the errors on the 'nriginal EFA list that we 25 what's _r':onsidered blatant cenduct?
: : Page 4064 _ ‘Page 4066
1 ]ust referred to. 1. ME. WITTMAN: Objection, Your Honor. - Co
2 A Yes. Okay. 1ndw remember which letter we - specifically 2 THE COURT: Objection sustained.
3 talked about. That was the one day turnaround. 3 BY MS. HARRIS: o .
4 Q. This was the ane where you indicated you would compiie a 4 . Q. Let me turn your aitention back to, your February 28th
S5 list and send it? : 5 " letter on page 4. S
& A, Yes. We had asked Mr. Lucas and Dr. Beall to begm as 5 A Ckay. I have the letter in my Hanu Okay
7 the letter says, comprlmg a fist of those lots that they 7 Q. Atthis point on February 28th, _001, yOU were sLifl
8 expected to be available for resale. . 8 operating on the premise that these are jurisdictional -
8 Q. Okay. And then turning your attention td the letter that 9 wetlands; correct? :
10 you wrote February IZBth, 2001. That would be 'rh_e front page 10 A, Well, we were operating on Dr. Sanders' work praduct where
11 just to orient you. Orrceagain requesting certain relief 11 he, as I've said several times, {ollowed the protocols he was
12  regarding the sale of property? 12 expectzd to at the time to.delineate wetlands and also ta .
13 A Yes. _ . 13 depict imaacts or alterations to those wetlands. So we were-
14 Q. Iwanted YDLE to turn to the last Sage in that under 14 continuing to operate on that premise. - :
15 summary where, once again, you state that you will submit ycur 15 Q. Ckay. And turning to page 5 -- this has come upon
16 updated inventory of availabie lots, ; 16 several occasions. 501 don't want to beat it to death.- But
17 A. That's what we said. 17 in all of thess letiers regarding repairs to failing systems,
18 Q. Ckay: Soall of the delay here is not attnbutable to the 18  which would include your February 28th, letter; your March.2nd
13 Environmental Prataction Agency, is it? 19 letter of 2001 to Ricky Saggan;.his response ta you; and your
20 A. Well, no.- As we said earlier, there are a lut of things 20 response again on March 2th, '01, is it not correct that
1 going on during this particular time wlth the transition from 21 _' repairs were authorized and no action -- adverse action would - | -
=2 Ms. Cox tor. Schwartz. Part of that was simply the hand or‘ 22 be taken aiways an the candition-that the Departmanr of-Health
23 within EPA, which cartairdy I acknowledge The recrmtlans 123 makea recomr'rendauc-rj
24 - about additional waork that we ware contempiatmg belng done 2% AL Thatwas thz agresmiant that Mr. Bogqar and ! siruck. And
25

25  certainly was a part of that as wel[

that is the 8greamant nat t recounted in my letter tg him as
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“included-in the sale transaction.

Page 40p9

Caeo m .. .

IS

provided that thHe aovernment raquired and drafted notice was.

client te stop saifing fand?

1 clearly as1 could, that we anticipated that the Department of ! _
2 Health would p[ay an ar:twe role i |r'| reso!wng problems because 2 It was the Group 3 lots that on'59verai'occa§ioﬁ'5'in these h
3 the Department of Health Had complamed about not being as 3 lefters we were at loggerheads over because the govérnment had
4 : active in the eariy s;agas of thes= davelopments as they -- as < offered.to consider them on a case by case basis. Ag !
5 they wanted to be. And 50 inan effort to brmg the heaith 5 testified earlier, though, they werg gding to require
6 -depar‘tmanl inta these | repairs and also because of snmpty the & premitigation for the existing Impacts. "And so we cont:nued to
7 tensmns m*the “community, 1 aqreed with Mr. Boggan to a 7 not agree about the. Cateacry 3 dots.: -
B . certain protess that would be foilowed in terms of getting some | § . . Q. And in the July 6th, 2001, ietter from Paul Schwartz to -
9 people some heip, i g you which is Government Exhibit -- I'm sorry -- Defense
10 Q. So you never advised your clients that they had blanket’ 10 Exhibit 836, in response to your April- 18th leter, once agam
11 authority to make repairs to failing systems wit_hcut Depa_rtment 11 EPA said no blanket release, correct? Co
12 -of Health involvement, did you? - ' : 12 A They said no blanket release. And we immediately réferred '
13 A¥ Np. Berause that woula contravene thn Ietter you have on 13 -back to those Category 3 lots, which they had consnstently sa|d
14 the srreen. o _ _ - ¢ 1 they weould notissuc 2 Blankst soleaan oo
115 Q. And 3t of these té&'c'rs e gra‘&idéd 1 your dienis? 15 Q. 50w remained a case by case determination?
16 A. Yes. ' ' 16 A For the Category 3 lots, it did. Eventhough we asked for
17 Q. Directing your attenhcm t6 your March - well tha March 17 them to give us additiona! relief on the Category 3s witha - _
18 19th, 2001, letter from Paul Schwartz to you where, onte again, | 18 comrmitment to then have Mr. Goff and Mr. Termilinson take the o
. 18 lots are divided into categories. [ think this is the 13 approach that ail impacts Dr. Sanders had delinedted would be
20  correction to -- that you had ‘asked for hack on November 1st? 20 accounted for i the final work. out plan. EPA was nat willing -~
21 A Yes. Where there were some inadvertent errors in EPA's |2} togothatfar. So the relief we got was on-Category 1 and 2°
22 technical review. We called them to EPA's attention. .And I ' 22 lots. But we did not get blanket release on Category 3 lots,
23 believe this is the letter that corrects those mistakes. 23 - no.
o jF24 Q. And this letter, as I sald was March 19th, 2001 and you 24. Q. And your clients knew there was no bianket authonty tc
. 125 provided this to your cllenP 25 sell Categc:ry 3 lots?
L . :
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4 1 A Weprovided all of these letters to our clients. 1 A, That's what the letter said. - :
2 Q. And AI-14 wason the Category 3, do not sefl ilst" 2 Q. And as you stated several times, you gave CODiES of the
3 A That's what it says. 3 letters to your'clients? :
4 Q. And were you aware thal Big Hill Acres sold that iot AI ~14 4 A Yes
1 5 onMay 15th, 20017 o 5 Q. Now, therz's been 3 lot of “alk in your Hn'err tett:mony
6 A No, I was not & about efforts at sattlement - -
q 7 MS. HARRIS: Im trying to skip some Ietters So the 7 A, Uh-huh. _
8 Court's indulgence. -8 Q. - trying to settlz, trying to settie?
9 BY MS. HARRIS: _ _ 9 A Uh-huh o _
10 Q. Once again, in your April 18t'h;_'letter, 2001, Befense 10 Q. Would you agree thatit's hard for the government to
11 Exhibit 834, which invoived all of the calor coded maps that _ _1i settle a case when a lawyer is saymg one thing and his client
12 were just moved into evidence, you weré requesting assentlaﬂy |12 . .is doing something eise? S
13 blanket authority to seli land? _ _ 13 MR. WITTMAN: Objection. Argumentative, Your Honor. -
14 A. We were asking for general refaa'ses asi remernber, I 14 THE COURT? -Obyection sustained.
15 need to get the letter. Ang I have it now. As] have 15 BY M5, HARRIS:
16 testified earfier today and even on cross here, EPA did reiease "1 16 Q. Youstated that.you weren 't aware that your chent;
17 . at cut request cestain lots. . And the dIStlﬂCthl‘lS just to 17 continued to sell lgts; 15 that correct? ' '
18  repeat. were that the Category 1 lots contained no 18 A Correct. Butat notime until today, this afternaon, was
19  jurisdictional wetlands whatsoever. So there was no reason for 119 1aver aware of that actvity; which is avidencac by these
20 the government 1o object 1o tr=nsacnms affectlng thosn . 20 agreemerts. And at no time did EPA svar say ¥ word to-me about
21 properties. And they said so. o 21 things like this, if th ev in fact, knew about it, So they
T 22 S The Category 2 lots were thase where Or. Sanders had 22 didrg say anytﬁmc ta me about: these actvibiss that you are’
: 23 dellneated the presenca of séme wet[ands on those propertles 23 aiking about, and 1 was not aware of them,
24 And the government aoproved a nunber of those to be soid 24 Q. Didntthﬂy make comelated - repeated requesis for your
25 25
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.1 AL Wefl they did. But Ms. Harris, you are now producing 1 and the att:tude of the heatth department then I drew a 9% 9073

2 sales documents that reflect otherwise. My paint i€, at no 2. similar conclusion here that the d:fnculties whach apparently

3 e in ali of this exthange of correspondence with EPA did 3 had existed batwaen thesz par‘tres for a long time hag boileg
4 an?oody show to me or Mr, Crawford or anybody else in our firm 4 over and now ware fipe for trzatment b an enforcement actior.

3 & document that would reflect a breach of agreement on the part 5 _And that's why [ used the Iarguage with you I said last night.

6 of our. cllents with EPA. Nothing was ever said to us about any "1 -6 Q. And learning’ that your chients were seng Pproperty when
"7 of th:gac;mty, which now I'm learning about today. 7 -tney toid you they werent does that change Your-opinion-about -
& Q. Ithink you indicated in- your direct testimony that you 8 ‘either the EPA, the Corps of r:ngrneers or the Department of

8 thought the Environmental:Protection-Agency was actmg 9 'Hea!th?

10 unethr..ally Did 1 hear you say- that? : 16 THE REPORT:R I dld t hear Et Judge . :
1t AT don't know that 1 used the word unethical. 1 exglained 11 MR. TIMOTHY H(JLLEMI\N Objectron Argumentatwe
12 Twas agitated about the conduct of.certain EPA foiks in the - 12 THE COURT: Owverr uled.
i3 commumty dowri-there.as reported in the press with’ stalerments 13 THE REPORTER: Argumentatrve'
19 attributed to those people and as reported by people who' 14 THE-COURT: 1 think he said oblectzon aroumpr-.ranup
lo  attended meebings and hearrd these falie make ﬂ,atarqnnrc, 1t 15 Your objection is that's its srgureniative?
16 was the context of that fonduct:that had irritated me. - 16 MR. TIMOTHY HOLLEMAN: Argumentative, Your Honor
17 Q. And you said durmg, I think, your cross-examination when 17 THE COURT: Db]ect:on i5 overruled. You rnay answer,
18 1 asked you. about the discrepancies-and what Mr. Lucas told you 18 Mr. Palmaer. :
13 about Troy Eph:lam S visit and what Troy Ephnam s-report was, 19 A. What I have learned today th'rough the presentation of
20 that there’ s @ possibifity: because they didn't:square, you 20 these contracts, which, at first blush,' contravene the - .
21 accepted your clients' wards - 21  agreements that we had mada in good faith with regulators, is 2
12 A Ddid _ 22 substantial disappaintment.
33 Q. -- was untruthful? 23 Q. T'm sorry. What was the fast line you sau:l"| I got
24 A, Say that again. - 24 distracted. _
25 Q. Was Mr. Ephriam -- 25 THE COURT: He said he was disappuinted.

Page 4072 . . ) Page 1074

1 MR. WI‘I‘*MAN Object on the grounds of repetition, t M5. HARRIS: Okay. I have nothing further. :
2 Your Honor. 2 THE COURT: Any redirect?

3 THE COURT: Well, he's testified that he acr:epted his 3 MR. WITTMAN: Yes, Your Honor.

4 dients’ word. Let's move on. 4 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
$  BY MS. HARRIS: _ 5 - BY MR. WITTMAN: _

& Q. Andin a conversation that we had last night, you toid me - B Q You answered a number gf questlons, Mr. Palmer, by .

7 that You thought the Department of Heaith had a veridetta -- 7 Ms. Harris about a letter -- the October 31st letter, the one
B _ MR. WITTMAN: Your Honor, the conversation she had € day turnaround letter. Do you sea that? _

9 last night -- 9 A Give me a moment, Mr. Wittman, and let me find it, please.
10 THE COURT: well, I'm going to OverruTe that. And — 10 Q. Ithink that'sthe lettervyowhad before you in which EPA
11 I'm going to assume that this is-a. relevant guestion that has 11 had agreed to the reiease of certain lots dated October 31st of
12 something to do with this case. You m3y go ‘ahead and restate | 12  the year 2000, -

13 your question. 13 A. Ibelieve I have it here, yes, .

14 BY MS. HARRIS: . 14 Q. Okay. And'Ms, Harris asked you some questions with
15 Q Ina conversation that you and [ had last night, you ) 15 respect to some lats that were sold. [ think the first one she
16 indicated to me that you-thought that the' Department of Health | 16  talked about was in June of 3001, AB-2. Anather one was AJ-5,
17 bad a vendetia against your client and they wanted to take h:m - 117 And none of those lots were listad on this letter, were they?

18 down7 : : . 13 A Excuse me. Say again,

15 - That was the conclusion-that I came to after takinijth'e' 12 Q. “The lots she talkeo to you about that werg sold in May and

20 statements of Dr, Beall and M, Lucas about FEIBtIOFIShIDS a 20 June of 2001 were not mentioned in this letter, were they?
21 bebween thesa gentlemen, marnly Mr. Lucas and the health 2 A. Idom't see that they were.
22 department: And what Mr. Lucas characterized as a similar, 1 22 Q. Okay. Andasa pract:cai matter, between October slst of

23 wouid say, antagonistic relationship between Mr. Thompson and | 23 2000 and May of gOOI other Iots were rereesed were they nol?

4 thé health department. L ' 24 A Yes, they were,

25 So based on the information that § was given by my clients 25 Q Okay., I\ow you were askad abgout the aoreements that

- 23 (Pages 4071 to 4074)

MARGARET W. SEAL: RMR, CRR



. L
. - B

= : " Page 407

. Pa 7
1 Mr. Lucas and Big Hilt Acres had with the EPA. Do yau recall L Q And that is not one of the sections mentroned in the gs:?
2 'the guestions Ms. Harris asked you about that7 L 2 c2ase and desist order, is it? s
3 A Yes. ' : 3 A No.

4 Q. And whether there was a vidlation of the agrEBment Isn't % Q. And the roads you were asked abaut — Barksdale, that's in
5. ita fact that ak of the agreements she asked you about and 3' Section 7, is it not? '
& the agreements that you talked about today were premisec onar | § A It is. . . .
7 overall resnlutmn of thrs entire case? 7 G And Sugargatethat's aisa in Section 7?
B A Yes. ’ _ 8 A Ttis
9 Q. An overali settlernent? And there has beer no settlement 8 Q. Andsois Regalej :
10 of this case, has there? That's pretty obvious? 10 A, Yes, sir. . : : :
11 A. No, sir. ' 11 Q. So none.of those roads Ms Harr:s tzlked tc ¥ou about wers
12 Q. And without a settlement, Big Hilt Acres rould seil ail 17 even covered by the EPA's cease and desist order, were they?
(13 the land it wanted to.without v:olaung Section 304 of the 13 A No, .. _ ' . ' L T
14 - Clean Water Act, couldn't it? 14 Q Thank ?611 . Ynil_ ran take vniir eeat now, nleacs . vln._. Wwera
15 4 withoit w-nb*-"h Cartion f‘”" "f'tf co"c:ft."' 17 ashed Ly P, Haitis sDoUE the extent of federaily reguiateq
16 Q. Okay. Now, let's go back for just 2 moment. [ wén_t o 16 waters. Do you recall being asked. about that in terms of z
17 . talk ta you about the cease and desist order of 1999, which 17 conversation with -- or report from Paimer Hough?
18 - Ms. Harris asked you about that. And that cease and desast 18 A Yes, sir. _ : o '
19 arder refated to certain cpﬂtlflc parL'; of B|g Hill Au:res dnd 19_ Q. Is there substantial disagreement about. what lands are
20 itnot? : 20 subject to federal regulation under Section 404 of the Clean
21 A. Yes. Iroted, I befieve, in response to the question that 21 Water Act?
22 the -- the ‘order specifically addresses certain aumbered 22 A Well, there is a substantial difference now between what
3 sections, being 8, 2, 10 and 15 in Township § Scuth, Range § 23 s a'wetland under long-standing scientific protocols and what -
24 West, T R ' 24 s a jurisdictional wetlands. .
25 Q And Ms. Cox(sic) asked you about some specific roads. 25 Q. Sothatthereis a dispute, if you will, between
- Page 4076 : ) Page 4078
1 She mentioned Sugargate Road, as I recall? I junsdictional and nonjurisdictional, if you will, wetlands; :
2 A Yes. Ms, Harris did. 2 correct?
3 Q. And Reancke Road? 3 A Yes.
4 A, I think that was one. . 4 Q. 5o there are wetlands that are not subject to -~
3 Q. Let me show you a section map, |f I may. And Barksdaie 5 A They're wetlands either WaY.
& Road was another one; carrect? & Q. Butthere are many wetlands that are not subject to .-
-7 .. A. Tseem to recall that, Mr. Wittman, but T was not wntmg 7 regulation under the Clean Water Act, are they not?
8 those down, B A That's correct. _
9 Q. .Tm gonna show you a section map. And we'vegotalarge | 9 Q. You were asked some guestions about the Mississippi .
10 one already in evidence. But this sne may-be easier foryouto | 10 Department of Health and their invglvement. with th?a failing of
i1 look at. What section of land is Regaie Road located in? 11 the -- allegedly failing septic systems at Big Hi}l Acres. Do
12 - A Section 7, as it appears on-what is depicted here. 12 you know what involvement the Mississippi Department of Health
13 _ MR. WITTMAN: And Your Honor, may 1 exhlb:t this to 13 acwally had in the repair of failing septic systems at Big
14 the jury? 14 Mill Acres? o
15 THE COURT: You may. Is it in evidence? 15 A, No, sit. When Mr, Boggan and 1 struck our agreement and
16 “MR.WITTHMAN: - Yes, it's, Your Honor, ' -7 116 we sent to Mr. Lucas and Dr. Bealf copies of Mr. Boggan's
17. THE COURT: Then you may. ’ _ 17 letter as well as Mr. Sc'hwan"t;'s ietter,. then after that we had .-
18 MR. WITTMAN: And for the record, it is Defense 18 no wnwolvement with any particular pragblems ar any remedies.
12 Exhibit 129, And ff I could ask.Mr. Pa!rner if he cou!d to 19 Q. Ckay. You te'stified - in rasponse to the last question
20 step down - . 20 Ms. Harris asked you about, You sawd you were disappointad |
21 THE COURT: Would you pleas"e, Mr. Palmer? 1t about lots that were sold that vou thought were not scld. Now,
22 MR, WITTMAN: - Your Honor? ' 22 have you had an oppcrt'unity to tatk to anyone. about those lots
(23 BY MR, WITTMAM: . ' 23 before you were asked thosa questions today?
22 Q. And this is Serticn 7of Townsmp 6 - 23 AL Mo, sir. 1 was not aware of any of this untit today..
25 A, 7i6-8. 23 Q. 50 vyou were not aware of what reasons may or may. net have

—
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1 - been given for the sale of those particular lots? ' I MR DEAN HOLLEMAN Judge, can you hiear that?
2 A, MNo. Because I've had no conversations about it, 2 THE COURT: That doesn't sound ton good, does it?
3 MR. WITTMAN: Thank you. Thank you very much. 3 Try again, Mr. Mayfeld
4 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Palmer, sir. You are 4 A. Lee Michael Mayfield, Sr
5 excused. 5 Q Very good Thank you. And Mr. Mayfleld where gdo you
& - THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor, & live?
2 F-fR MOLDER: Your Honar, I'd like to know if I can 7 A. In 13517 Pcnce De Leon, Ocean _Springs.
8 ask him jﬁét‘ﬂ couple questions? I didn't ask any on direct B Q. Are you married?
9 because I didn't feel the need to, but suddeniy I do after 9 A Yes, lam, . .
10 cross-examination. It's only a couple of questions. 10 Q. What is your wife's name?
11 THE COURT:" All right. On your representation that 11 A, Nancy Mayfield. _
12 you're only going to ask a couple of questions and that if they | 12 Q. I believe you have twa children?
13 deal with redirect exammatlon Il perrn:t it. Iapolog:’e 13 A Yes.
14 Mr. Paimer. 14 Q. And what are their ages?
P15 THE WLINESS: Thank vou, Your Honor. ' 1y A. Four and five monfhs
.16 MR. WITTMAN: Mr. Holder says he does not need this | 16 Q. And are you emplcyed"
17 mike. o . : 17 A Yes; Iam.
1B MR. HOLDER: Thisisen? Yeah, this is on. Okay. 18 Q. And what is your occuanon'«‘ .
19 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 1S A lam production manager for a construction company.
20 BY MR. HOLDER: 20 Q. And how iong have you been in the area -- worked in the
21 Q. Mr. Palmer, my name is W F. Holder. I represent M. E 21 area of construction?
22 Thompson. I just have a couple of questions. It is true, is 22 A. About ten years. .
23 it not, that you never represented nor ac!vtsed M.E. Thompsan 23 Q. And how long have you lived at your Qcean Springs address
124 directly in any way? 24 that you jusf gave us? -
25 A Until today I had never even met-Mr.. Thompson 25 A Slin'ce April.
- Page 4080 “Page 4082
1 Q. Okay. Oritalked to him? 11 Q. April of 20047 :
Z A No, sir. _ 2 A Of'04, yes.
3 ¢ And You never -- any of these letters that you've 3 Q. And teli the jury prior to Apnl of 2004, where did You
4 testified from about here today were never - as far as you 4 live?
5 know, were never sent to Mr. Thompson? 5 A, 13500 Regale Drive, )
6 AL we didn't send anylhmg to Mr. Thompson because he was nat 8 Q. 1Is that located in the Big Hill Acres subdivision?
7 ourdient, 7 A Yes,itis. .
] MR. HOLDER: Thank you, Judge._ | B Q. And what is the lot number or identification number there?
g9 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr._HGIder."Mr.'Hoileman, do 3 A AG-10. .
10 you have anything-before 1 excuse Mr. Palmer finally? 10 6 Okay. Iwant to ask you-- .
11 - MR. TIMOTHY HOLLEMAN: No, I don'®. _ 19 MR. DEAN HOLLEMAN: Judge may [ get an exh:bit
12 - THECOURT: Thank you, Mr. Palmer, sir. 12 please? May I get near the -
13 THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honar. 13 BY MR. DEAN HOLLEMAN:
14 THE COURT: Who is your next witness? 14 Q. Wouid you bh_ease for the jury — do vou recognize this
15 MR. DEAN HOLLEMAN: Leroy Mayfield.: 15 as - can you look at it and see if yOu can recognize it as the
18 - LERQY MAYFIELD 16 area of Big Hill Acres as far as a map would be concerned? Lat
17 waes thereupon called ‘as a witness for and on bahalf of the 17 me refer. You fo Jim Ramsey Road across the top.
18 defendant and, having baan duly sworn, testified as Follows 18 A, Dkay,
18 ‘DIRECT EXAMINATION 19 Q. This would be -- are you familiar with the power line out
20 BY MR, DEAN HOLLEMAN: _ |20 there?
21 Q. Could you state your full nzme for the record? 121 A Yeah. o
22 A Le= Michael Mayfisid, Sr, _ 22 Q. And T'm gonna try to direct YOu 0 an area here.
23 Q. Could you bring that.mrike kind of right tc Gelaw your 23 A. Regaie. There's Sugargate right there.
24 chin? What was your name again, plaasa? 24 Q. You're pointing on the left side of this photograph, which
25 Al les Michze!-Mayfiald, Sr. 25

is D-129, on the left side of the photograph. Waould you point
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